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wdh;kh ms<sn| ú.%yh 

ye|skaùu 

fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï l¾udka;h ;=, YS% ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh 

mqfrda.dó;ajh f.k ;sfnk w;ru Tjqkaf.a wNsjDoaêh i|yd wdh;kh u.ska ,ndfok 

odhl;ajh iïnkaOfhka fuu l¾udka;fha kshef,k ksIamdolhka wdh;kh we.hSug ,lalr 

;sfí'  fuu l¾udka;h i|yd wmf.a wdh;kh u.ska ie,fik m¾fhaIK" mqyqKq lsrSï iy 

WmfoaYk fiajdjka wdoS jQ YlH;djhka Tjqkaf.a jHdmdr ld¾hhka fufyhùfï oS l¾udka;fha 

wNdjDoaêh fjkqfjka fhdod.kq we;'  fuys m%;sM,hla jYfhka" ;ukaf.a yelshdjka kka 

whqrska j¾Okh lr.ksñka ;re mka;sfha wdodhï W;amdolhka njg m;aùug 

l¾udka;lrejkag yelshdj ,eî ;sfí'  wm wdh;kfha odhl;ajh iu.ska fuu m%jK;djh 

kej;Sulska f;drj bosrshg hk w;ru l¾udka;h ms<sn| oekqu iïnkaOfhkajk .dul 

n,h jYfhka" l¾udka;fha kj;u b,a¨u iy wjYH;d iuÕ m%j¾Okh ùu wmf.a wruqK 

fõ' 

 

kQ;k ;dCIK j¾Okhka iuÕ ksIamdok uÜgfï j¾Okhka fya;=fjka fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï 

l¾udka;fha f.da,Sh ;rÕldrS;ajh fù.j;a iy úma,ùh m%jK;d iys;jk w;r ;u 

;Dma;shg irs,k ksIamdokh f;dard.ekSu i|yd mdrsfNda.slhka o fmrg jvd nqoaêu;aj 

lghq;= lrhs'  fuys m%;sM,hla jYfhka mdrsfNda.slhdf.a wjYH;djhg .e,fmk uÜgfï 

ksIamdokhka fj<|m,g heùug ksIamdolhka oeä wjOdkhla fhduq lrhs'  fj<|fmdf,ys 

;sfnk weo m¿ÿ rys; bia;rï ksmehqï f;dard.ekSfï mdrsfNda.sl wjOdkh fya;=fjka th 

oeka ksmehqu iy mdrsfNda.sl m%idoh w;r ;rÕhla fõ' 

 

fuu l%shdj,sfhaoS l¾udka;h i|yd jQ bosrs oelaula iys; kdhlhka ìyslsrSu i|yd mqyqKq 

lsrSï wdh;khla jYfhka YS% ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh WmldrS fõ'  ke.S tk 

f.da,Sh fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï l¾udka;h i|yd m¾fhaIK" mqyqKq lsrSï iy WmfoaYk 

fiajdjka iemhSu ;u m%uqL;u jHdmdrsl ld¾hhka lr.;a YS% ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï 

wdh;kfha N+ñldj fï i|yd w;sYh jeo.;alula Wiq,hs'  f.da,Sh fj<|mf,ys" fuf;la 

Wmfhda.Slr fkd.;a wjia:djka i|yd l¾udka; fCIa;%fhys mj;akd b,a¨ug irs,k fia úúO 

fCIa;%hka i|yd mdi,a yerhk whg;a l¾udka;fha kshe,s mqoa.,hkag;a mqyqKqj ,ndoSug 

wdh;kh oeka fmruqK f.k isà' 

 

mqyqKq lsrSfï ld¾hhka fj;ska miq.sh jirj,oS wdh;kh úYd, wdodhula Wmhdf.k ;sfnk 

w;r m¾fhaIK u.ska Wmhk ,o wdodhu idudkH uÜgul mej;sKs'  YsIH m%cdj i;H 

jYfhkau fù.j;a j¾Okhla ,nñka fooyila muK m%udKhla jQ w;r t<fUk j¾Ihkays 

oS n|jd.kakd YsIH ixLHdj jeälsrSu i|yd jvd;a myiqlï we;slsrSug ie,iqïlr ;sfí'  

jeäukla jYfhka M,odhs;djh ms<sn|j ie,ls,su;a ùu u; foaYSh iy cd;Hka;r 

fj<|mf,ys ;rÕldrS ;;ajhg m;aùu Wfoid M,odhs;djh j¾Okh lr.ekSug W;aiqljk 

l¾udka;lrejka i|yd úfYaI{ mqyqKq jevigyka o bosrsm;a flf¾'  óg wu;rj wvq 
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myiqlï iys; osia;%slalhkays m%cdjka fj; oekqu ,ndoSu i|ydjk .DydY%s; l¾udka; ms<sn| 

mqyqKq mdGud,d meje;aùu o wdh;kfha m%uqL ld¾hhla jk w;r tu.ska tu m%cdjf.a cSjk 

;;ajhka ia:sridr cSjfkdaamdhhka Tiafia by< kxjd.ekSug Tjqkg yelsfõ'  wdh;kh 

oshqKqfõ udj; Tiafia ,nd;sfnk m%.;sh wkqj bosrsfha oS ;j;j;a fndfyda jHdmdrsl 

wjia:djka iys;j oshqKqfjka oshqKqjg m;aùug wdh;khg yelshdj ,efnkq we;'   

md,l uKav,h 

wdh;kfha m%;sm;a;s yd kS;srS;s iïnJOfhka ;SrK .ekSfï n,h md,l uKav,h fj; mejrS 

we;s w;r tu ;SrK wOHCI ckrd,ajrhd úiska ls%hdu;aul lrkq ,efí' 

md,l uKav, /iaùu iEu uilu meje;afjk w;r m%.;s ls%hdldrlï iudf,dapkh lsrSu;a 

wdh;kfha fufyhqï lghq;= iïmdokh lsrSu;a fuysoS isÿ flf¾' 

2018'12'31 jk oskg md,l uKav,h 

tï'ta ;dcqãka uy;d 

frdahs chisxy uy;d 

iNdm;s 

wkqYdil 

w;sf¾l 
f,alï 

l¾udka; yd jdKsc lghq;=
wud;HdxYh

l¾udka; yd jdKsc lghq;=
wud;HdxYh

fla'tÑ' nkaÿq, m%kdJÿ uy;d idudcsl taldnoaO weÕ,qï ixioh 

*s,slaia ta m%kdkaÿ uy;d

ta't,a'tï' i,Sï uy;d 

c*d¾ i;d¾ uy;d

idudcsl 

idudcsl 

idudcsl 

Y%S ,xld weÕ,qï wmkhk 
lrejkaf.a ix.uh 

ixj¾Ok Wmdhud¾. iy 
cd;Hka;r fj<| wud;HdxYh 

Y%S ,xld weÕ,qï wmkhk 
lrejkaf.a ix.uh 

wd¾'tï' chka;s ñh 

wdpd¾h hQ'cS'tia' úchmd, ñh 

wdpd¾h iS'tka' fyar;a uy;d 

B'ta'tka'tia' fmf¾rd uy;d 

vì'ãS'hQ' is,ajd 

y¾I úfcaj¾Ok uy;d

idudcsl 

idudcsl 

idudcsl 

ksrSCIl 

idudcsl 

idudcsl 

uqo,a yd ie,iqï wud;HdxYh 

fudrgqj úYaj úoHd,h 

újD; úYaj úoHd,h 

fmaIl¾u ksYamdok ix.uh 

l¾udka; yd jdKsc lghq;=
wud;HdxYh

tï'mS' lkakka.r uy;d uKav,fha 
f,alï 
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2018'12'31 oskg ld¾h uKav,h 

iïmQ¾K ld¾h uKav, ixLHdj 110 ls' 

ld¾h uKav,fha rdcldrs fnoS hk wdldrh 

j¾.h l,ukdrlK 
yd fufyhqï 

;dlaIKsl 
fufyhqï 

uQ,H fmdÿ mrsmd,k 

fiajl 05 48 05 34 

;djld,sl$mqyqKq ke; 08 ke; ke; 

.súiqï.;$mejreï ke; 10 ke; ke; 

ta' frdnÜ õ' mSrSia uy;d - wOHCI ckrd,a MBA(UK), B.Sc(Eng)Hons, PG DIP IE,

AMIE(SL),MIAE(UK),MA-DEV.Studies&Public Policy MCPM (SL)

tia b,xf.dajka uy;d  - wOHCI ^mqyqKq iy ld¾ñl&
B.Sc. (Eng) (Text), MBA, AMIE (SL)

mS'ù'tia' úfcar;ak uy;d - wOHCI ^fufyhqï&
M.Sc (MIT), M.Sc (Mgt), B.Tech (Eng) Hons

AMIE (SL), LLB

tï'mS' lkakka.r uy;d - ksfhdacH wOHCI ^mrsmd,k&
MBA (P.I.M.), B.Sc (Col),

PG Dip in International Relations (BCIS),

Dip in American Prof. Qualification (HRM)

LLB (UG), Dip in Legal Studies

jhs'ta'mS'cS' hdmd uy;añh - .Kldêldrs
B.Com (Spe), CBA

tï'tia'tï' b,aydï uy;d - wNHka;r ú.Kl
HNDA, ACPM

fcHIaG ks<Odrs uKav,h ^;dlaIK& 

cS'fla'fla'tia' l=udr uy;d - fcHIaG ;dCIK{ B.Sc. Eng.(Text), MBA,AMIE(SL)

î't,a'tia'mS' ksYdka; uhd - fcHIaG ;dCIK{, B.Sc. (Hons), M.Sc (Text)

fca'mS' iurfldaka uy;d - fcHIaG ;dCIK{" NDT (Mech.)

fla'ta'wd¾'ù' wfíj¾Ok ñh -  fcHIaG ;dCIK{" NDT (Tex. Tech.) 

fla' fc.oSika uy;d  -  fcHIaG ;dCIK{, B.Sc. (Eng) (Text)

M.Sc. (Text), AMIE (SL)

ví'tï'tia'fla' úfcandyq uy;d-  B.Sc. (Eng), MSc, AMAI (SL)
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wOHlaI ckrd,a;=udf.a mKsúvh 
 
 

YS% ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh fuu l¾udka; fCIa;%hg úYsIaG fiajdjla ie,iSu 

u.ska fï jkúg fCIa;%fha m%uqL;u fiajd imhkakd jYfhka ckm%sh;ajhg m;aj ;sfnk w;r 

wdh;kh fufyhùfï ld¾hfha m%uqLia:dkh oerSug ,eíu ud ,o f.!rjhla jYfhka i,lñ'  

fuu l¾udka;fhys mj;sk wNsfhda.hkag id¾:lj uqyqKfoñka wdh;kh id¾:l ;;ajhg 

m;alsrSu uf.a n,j;a j.lSu jYfhka jeäukla jYfhka uu ms<s.ksñ'  l¾udka;h m<sn| 

mqyqKq lsrSï" m¾fhaIK" WmfoaYk iy ;dCIKsl fiajdjka iemhSfï m%Odk;u wdh;kh 

jYfhka Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh úYsIaG;ajhg m;aj isà'  úhou iy 

m%ñ;sh hk jpk fï jkúg fj<|mf,ys /õfoñka mj;sk w;r f.da,Sh fj<|m, ;=, 

j¾Okhjk oeä ;rÕldrS;ajh l¾udka;fha m%jk;djh njg m;aù ;sfnk w;r l¾udka;h 

i|yd m%Odk fiajdjka imhkafkl= jYfhka wdh;kh fCIa;%h ;=, lS¾;skduh ,ndf.k ;sfí'  

tneúka fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï fCIa;%fha fiajdjka imhk mqfrda.dó wdh;kh jYfhka" 

fj<|mf,ys /õfok úhou iy m%ñ;sh hk lreKq ms<sn|j fiajd úYsIaG;ajh ,nd.ekSu 

i|yd wm W;aiql ù we;' 

 

;u wdodhï j¾Okh úoydmdñka wdh;kh ish wd¾:sl wNsjDoaêh fmkakqï lrhs'  Bg 

wu;rj" l¾udka;fha wjYH;djhkag .e,fmk kj mdGud,djka yªkajdfoñka mqyqKq lsrSï 

kj werUqula f.k ;sfnk w;ru jHdmdr m%j¾Okh i|yd l¾udka;lrejkaf.a b,a,Sïj,g 

wkqj WmfoaYk fiajdjka o imhkq ,efí'  M,odhl;aj m%j¾Ok jevigyk iy iq¿ iy 

uOH mrsudK l¾udka;lrejkaf.a mqyqKq jevigyk o Tjqkaf.a M,odhS;djh iy ksmqK;djh 

m%j¾Okh lr.ekSug bjy,a ù ;sfnk njg ms<s.ekSug ,laj mj;S' 

 

2018 jir i|yd jQ wdh;kfha uQ,H ld¾hidOkh i,ld ne,SfïoS miq.sh jirg jvd hym;a 

wdodhï j¾Okhla fmkakqïlr ;sîu iqNjdoS m%jk;djhla jk w;r Bg n,mE fiajl lemùu 

iy ld¾hCIu;djh o by<ska w.h lrñkau th t<fUk jif¾ oS id¾:l m%j¾Okhla 

,nk njg jQ ia:sridr fmrksñ;a;la jYfhka o i,lñ'  wh wdh;kfha wkd.; oshqKqjg 

mdoljk úúOdldr jQ m%jk;d ;sfnk nj olsk w;f¾u Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï 

wdh;kfha wNsjDoaêh i|yd ,ndfok úYsIaG iyfhda.h fjkqfjka .re wud;H rsIdâ 

noshqoaoska uy;dg;a ta i|yd olajk lemùfuka hq;= Wkkaÿj fjkqfjka wm wdh;kfha 

iNdm;s;=ud" md,kdêldrSfha idudcslhkag;a tfiau wmf.a iyDo fiajdkshqla;hkag uf.a 

yDohdx.u w.hlsrSu fuys oS mqorkq leue;af;ñ' 

 

ish¨ ld¾hhkays oS wm wdh;kh iEu w;skau oshqKqjg m;afõjdhs Y=NdisxYkh lrñ' 

ia;+;shs' 

 
bxcsfkare ta frdnÜ ù mSrsia 
wOHCI ckrd,a 
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iNdm;s;=udf.a mKsúvh 
 
 
YS% ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï jHdmdr f,dalfhys fuu 

l¾udka;h i|yd mqfrda.dó fiajd imhkafkl= m%uqLia:dkhl miqjk w;r wfkl=;a fiajdjka 

w;=rska jd¾Islj 4"000l muK YsIH m%cdjlg mqyqKqj ,ndoSu lemSfmfkk lreKla fjhs'  

iy;slm;% iy m%cdjlg mqyqKqj ,ndoSu lemSfmfkk lreKla fjhs'  iy;slm;% iy 

ämAf,daud uágï olajd úúO jQ mdGud,djka i|yd l¾udka; fCIa;%fha by< b,a¨ula ;sfnk 

w;r tu mdGud,d yeoErE ish¨u YsIHhka by< m%;s,dN iys; Wiia ;;ajfha /lshdjkays 

ksr;jk nj fuys oS wdvïnrfhka hq;=j m%ldY lruq' 

 

mqyqKq lsrSï ys B<Õ woshrg <Õdùu wrNhd" bkaoshdfõ úYaj úoHd,hl iïnkaëlrKhlska 

f;drj 2020 jir jkúg ;uka úiskau ms<s.ekSu iys; Wmdê msrskeóug wdh;kh fï 

jkúg ie,iqï lrñka isà'  Tmaáfglaia jeks kùk uDÿldx. fukau bf,lafg%dksl iy 

hdka;%sl-bf,lafg%dksl jeks kùk;u fuj,ï wdosfhka ikakoaOj kj;u b.ekaùï 

l%fudamdhhka iu.ska fCIa;%fha wjYH;djhka imqrd,Sug yelsjk whqrska ;jÿrg;a úIh 

ud,djka wkj¾;j jeäoshqKq flfrñka ;sfí'  Wmdê m%odkh lrk wdh;khla jYfhka 

wkd.; wfmaCIdjka iys;j wmf.a udkj iïm; m%j¾Okh lsrSfï wruqKska fï i|yd wmf.a 

wdpd¾h uKav,hg wjia:dj i,idfokq ,efí'  wdh;khla jYfhka l%shd;aulùug wu;rj 

kfjda;amdok iólrK ld¾hhka i|yd o werUqula jYfhka flfi,a fl|s Ndú;h i|yd jk 

yelshdj ms<sn|j w.h l<hq;= jHdhduhl ksr;j isà'  frosms<s ksIamdokh i|yd oekg 

Ndú;d fkdjk flfi,a fl|s u.ska frosms<s ksIamdokh lsrSu;a tu.ska flfi,a j.dlrk 

m%cdjkag ie,lshhq;= m%;s,dNhka w;alroSu;a fuu wfmaCIs; jHdmD;sh rgg M,odhl jkq 

we;' 

 

l¾udka;h ;=, b,a¨ula mj;sk mrSCIKhka i|yd jeäoshqKq lrk ,o myiqlï iys; jQ" 

ISO 17025 ;;aj iy;slh iys; m¾fhaIKd.drh u.ska jvd;a w;sf¾l jYfhka Yla;su;a jQ 

wdh;kh iï yd mdjyka l¾udka;fhys b,a¨ula ;sfnk mrSCIKhka isÿlsrSu i|yd tu 

m¾fhaIKd.drfhys myiqlï jHdma;lr ;sfí'  mqyqKq lsrSï" mrSCIK iy WmfoaYk fiajdjka 

Tiafia wmkhk l¾udka;hg úYd, odhl;ajhla ,ndoS ;sîu;a tfiau ;u fufyhqï ld¾hhka 

u.ska uQ,h wxYfhka iajhxfmdaIs; ;;ajhg m;aùu;a fuys,d igyka lsrSug yelsùu 

wdvïnrhla jYfhka i,lñ'   

 

tï'ta' ;dcqãka 

iNdm;s 
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wOHCI ckrd,a;=udf.a j.lSu ms<n| m%ldYh 
 

wdh;kfha uq,H m%ldYk flfrys jQ wOHCI ckrd,ajrhdf.a j.lSu ú.Kljrekaf.a 

j.lSfuka fjkia fõ' 

 

iEu uq,H j¾Ihla wjidkfhaoS uq,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsrSfïoS uq,H j¾Ifha fufyhqï lghq;= 

j,ska ,efnk m%;sM,h iud.ï mk;g wkqj i;H jQ;a idOdrK jQ;a f;dr;=re mokï lrf.k 

ms<sfh, l,hq;= njg wOHCI ckrd,ajrhd úiska i|yka lr we;' 

 

fuu uq,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsrSfïoS kshñ; .sKqï m%;sm;a;s wkqj i;H jQ;a idOdrK jQ;a 

úksYaphla ,ndoSu i|yd wod, lr.; hq;= .sKqï m%ñ;Ska wkq.ukh lr we;s nj wOHCI 

ckrd,ajrhdf.a úYajdihhs' 

 

wdh;kfha fufyhqï lghq;= wLKavj mj;ajdf.k hdug;a fuu uq,H m%ldYk ms<sfh, lsrSug 

m%udKj;a iïm;a wdh;kh i;=j we;s njg;a wOHCI ckrd,a;=udf.a úYajdihhs. iud.ï 

mk;g wkql+,j m%udKj;a .sKqï jd¾;djka mj;ajdf.k hk nj;a i;H iy idOdrK;ajfhka 

uq,H m%ldYk bosrsm;a lr we;s njg;a wOHCI ckrd,a;=udf.a iy;sl fõ' 

 

tfukau wdh;kh i;= j;alï wdrCId lr .ekSu i|yd wod, idOdrK mshjr .ekSu iy 

wfkl=;a wl%ñl;d yd jxpd je<elaùu i|yd wdh;khg fhda.Hjk mrsos wNHka;r md,l 

moaO;shla we;s lsrSuo wOHCI ckrd,ajrhd i;= j.lSu fõ' 

 

fuu m%ldYfha i|yka ;u j.lSï uekúka bgq lr we;s njg wOHCI ckrd,ajrhd úYajdih 

m< lrhs. ;jo wOHCI ckrd,ajrhd ;u oekqu wkqj fYaIm;% oskg wdh;kfha ish,q 

jHjia:dms; f.ùï i|yd wod,jk uq,H m%;smdok i,id we;s nj;a ;yjqre lrhs' 
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.sKqï m%;sm;a;s 
 

uq,H jd¾;d ms<sfh, lsrSfïoS wod, lr .kakd ,o m%Odk .sKqï m%;sm;a;s my; i|yka mrsos 

fõ' 

 

1'  ms<sfh, lsrSfï moku 

 

 (i)  uQ,H m%ldYK ms<sfh, lsrSfïoS YS% ,xld fmdÿ .KldêlrK uQ,O¾u ^SLPSAS& 

  wod,  lrf.k we;s w;r WmÉ; moku u; .sKqï jd¾;d ms<sfh, lr we;s 

  w;r wod,  ld, mrsÉfPaoh mqrdu uQ,sl .sKqï m%;sm;a;s wod, lrf.k we;' 

(ii) le,ekav¾ jir wdh;kfha uq,H jir fõ' 

(iii) wdh;kfha .sKqï iy uq,H md,kh i|yd 1971 wxl 38 orK uq,H  

  mK; wod, lr.kq ,efí'  

 

.sKqï m%;sm;a;s 

 

1'  foam< msrsh; iy WmlrK 

  

bvï yer ish,qu há;, myiqlï" foam< msrsh; iy WmlrK fft;sydisl 

msrsjeh$.Kkh l, ñf,ka iuqÉÑ; CIh wvq lr olajd we;' 

 

j;alï msrsjeh .Kkh lsrSfïoS j;alfï wfmaCIs; Ndú;h i|yd iqÿiq ;;ajhg f.k 

tau fjkqfjka orK ,o ish,qu úhoï msrsjehg tl;= lr we;'  j;alfï m%fhdackhg 

.;yels cSú; ld,h oS¾> lsrSu iy kej; mshjd .; yels j;alfï jákdlu jeä 

l< yels y÷kd.;a m%;sixialrKhka m%d.aOks; lr we;' w¿;ajeähd" kv;a;= iy iq¿ 

w¿;a lsrSï wdodhug yr lr we;' 

 

bj;a lrkq ^wmyrKh& ,nk ish,qu há;, myiqlï" foam<" msrsh; yd WmlrK j, 

msrsjeh iy tajdg wod, iuqÉÑ; CIh m%udKhka fYaIm;%fhka bj;a lrkq ,efí' 

 

ia:djr j;alï bj;a lsrSfïos tajdfha OdrK w.h u.ska ksYaph lr .;a ,dNh fyda 

mdvqj fufyhqï ,dNh ksYaph lsrSfïoS .Kkh flf¾' 
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2' CIh lsrSu 

 iEu foam< msrsh; iy WmlrKhlu msrsjeh ,shd yerSu i|yd weia;fïka;= l, 

m%fhdackhg .kakd cSú; ld,h ;=, ta yd iudk WmlrKhka i|yd ir, ud¾. 

l%uhg my; i|yka mrsos CIh fjkalsrSu .Kkh lr we;'   

 

 CIHùï i|yd my; i|yka m%;sY; wod, lrf.k we;'     

  f.dvkeÕs,s    2'5%  

  msrsh; iy hkaf;%damlrK  10%  

  ,S nvq iúlsrSï iy WmlrK  10% 

  wdmkYd,d WmlrK   10%    

  fudag¾ r:jdyk   10%  

  mrs.Kl iy uDÿldx.  20% 

  fmd;a iy iÕrd   10%  

  ridhkd.dr WmlrK   10% 

  ùäfhda jevigyka   25% 

  l¾udka;Yd,d uyk ueIska  10% 

 

j¾Ifha m<uq w¾Ofha ñ,oS .kakd j;alï i|yd iïmQ¾K CIhùï .Kkh lrk 

w;r j¾Ifha fojeks w¾Ofha ñ,oS .kakd j;alï i|yd 50] l CIhùï .Kkh 

lrkq ,efí' 

 

3' f;d. 

wdh;kh fiajd iemhSfïoS m%fhdackhg .kakd ,o msrsjeh wvqu iy Wm,íê jákdlu 

wkqj olajd we;s f;d. fuhska ye|skafõ'  f;d. msrsjeh ksYaph lr we;af;a m%:ufhka 

,eîï m%:ufhka ksl=;a lsrSfï l%uhg fõ' ^t*a'whs't*a'´'&  

  

4'  fj<| ,eíh hq;= 

bkafjdhsisj, uq,amsgm;aj, jákdlu wkqj ish¨u ,eìh hq;= oE .Kkh lr we;' 

 

5'  uqo,a iy uqo,g iudk oE 

uqo,a m%jdy m%ldYfha wjYH;djh wkqj tys wvx.= jk uqo,a iy uqo,g iudk oE hkq 

w; b;srs uqo,a, ;ekam;= iy udi 3 la fyda Bg wvq ld,hla we;=,; l,a msfrk 

fláld,Sk by< øjYS,;djhlska hq;a tajdhs' 
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6'  fjka lsrSï 

w;S; isoaëka j, m%;sM,hla f,i j¾;udkfha we;sjkakd jQ ffk;sl fyda 

f.dvkefÕkakd jQ ne|shdjka ksrjq,a lsrSu i|yd iïm;a msg;g weoS hdula we;sfõ 

hehs ksYaph lr idOdrK jákdlula weia;fïka;= lsrSu fjka lsrSï f,i y÷kd .; 

yel' 

 

7'  úfoaY úksuh .Kqfokq 

úfoaY úksuh .Kqfokq isÿ lrk oskfhaoS mj;sk úksuh wkqmd;h wkqj .sKqï.; 

lrkq ,nk w;r .Kqfokqj mshjk wjia:dfõos fï u.ska ,efnk ,dNh fyda  mdvqj 

y÷kdf.k wdodhï m%ldYkfha olajd we;' 

 

8' úY%du jegqm 

1983 wxl 12 orK mdrsf;daIsl mk; iy .sKqïlrK m%ñ;s 19 hgf;a" uQ,sl jegqm 

cSjk úhoï oSukdj iy wfkl=;a úfYaI cSjk oSukd wod, lrf.k wdh;kfha 

jirl fiajd ld,hla iïmQ¾K l< iEu fiajfhl=gu fiajh wjika lsrSfï m%;s,dN 

.Kkh lr we;' 

 

9' ksYaÑ; odhl;aj ie,iqu 

wdh;kfha iEu fiajlfhl=u fiajl w¾:idOl wruqof,a iy fiajd kshqla;shkaf.a 

Ndrldr wruqof,a idudcslhka jk w;r ta i|yd wdh;kfha odhl;ajh uQ,sl jegqm 

iuÕ cSjk úhoï oSukdj iy wfkl=;a úfYaI cSjk oSukdj,ska ms<sfj,ska 12] la iy 

3] la fõ' 

 

10' wdodhï y÷kd .ekSu 

wdh;kfha wdodhu y÷kdf.k we;af;a WmÑ; moku hgf;a fiajdjka fjkqfjka 

,efnk uqo,ska jákdlu tl;= lsrSfï noao" cd;sh f.dvkeÕSfï noao iy jÜgï bj;a 

lsrSfuks' 

 

11'  úhoï 

úhoï y÷kdf.k we;af;a WmÑ; moku hgf;ah'  wdh;kh mj;ajdf.k hdu iy 

foam< msrsh; iy WmlrK kv;a;= lsrSu i|yd orK kv;a;= úhoï we;=,q ish,qu 

úhoï wdodhug yr lr wod< ld, mrsÉfþofha ,dNh .Kkh lr we;' 

 

12'  uq,H m%jdyh 

jl% l%uh mokï lrf.k uq,H m%jdy m%ldYkh ms<sfh, lr we;'  
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13' rcfha m%odk 

rcfha m%odk j;alïj,g iïnkaO jk úg iy uqo,a m%odk .sKqï.; lrkqfha  kj 

m%ñ;sj,g wod,jh' ^LKAS20& g wkqj m%odk" úhoï yd iïnkaO jkúg" th 

wdodhula f,io wod, ld,h ;=, l%udkql+, l%uhg tys msrsjeh lmd yrskq ,efí'  

m%odk j;alï yd iïnkaO jkúg th ú,ïì; wdodhula f,i yªkd.efka' 

wdh;khg uQ,H fkdjk m%odk ,enqkúg th j;alï yd m%odkhkaf.a kdñl w.hg 

jd¾;dlrk w;r wdodhï m%ldYkfhys wod, ld,h mqrd iudk jd¾Isl  jdrslj,ska 

fmkakqï flf¾' 
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fmdÿ fy<sorõ lsrSï 
 

1'  SLPSAS-1 iy SLPSAS-11 oS we;s Wmfoia wkqj uQ,H jd¾;d ms,sfh, lr we;' 

 

2' NdKavd.dr ì,am;a" ia:sr ;ekam;=" fláld,Sk ;ekam;=j, wdfhdackh lsrSu 

 fláld,Sk ;ekamk;=j, lrk ,o wdfhdack msrsjeh ñ,g .sKqï .;lr we;' 

 NdKavd.dr ì,am;a iy ia:sr ;ekam;=j, lrk ,o wdfhdack iuqÉÑ; msrsjeh 

 jákdlug .sKqïj, olajd we;' 

  

3' fnd,a Kh fjkalsrSï 

 fnd,a Kh fjkalsrSï fj<| ,eìh hq;= oE hgf;a wvqlr  olajd we;' 

 YS% ,xld .sKqïlrK m%ñ;Ska wkqj Kh.e;shka úúO whqrska j¾. lr we;s w;r Tjqka 

 f.ùfï ms<sfj, wkqj Kh.e;shka fjkalsrSï my; i|yka mrsos fõ' 

  

 Kh.e;s     fjkalsrSï m%;sY;h 

 osk 90 g wvq    0% 

 osk 90 isg 180 olajd  2% 

 osk 180 isg 360 olajd  3% 

 osk 360 isg 720 olajd  4% 

 osk 720 isg 1080 olajd  5% 

 osk 1080 g jeä   100% 

  

4' f;d. 

 wdh;kh fiajd iemhSfïoS m%fhdackhg .kakd ,o msrsjeh wvqu Wm,ìê jÜkdlu 

 wkqj olajd we;s f;d. fuhska ye|skafõ'  f;d. msrsjeh ksYaph lr we;af;a m%:ufhka 

 ,eîï m%:ufhka ksl=;a lsrSfï l%uhg fõ'  ^t*awhst*a´&  

 

5' mdrsf;daIsl fjkalsrSï 

 mdrsf;daIsl fjkalsrSï uq¿ uqo, 2014 jif¾ isg ia:sr ;ekam;=j, wdfhdackh lr 

 we;s w;r mdrsf;daIsl m%;s,dN hgf;a olajd we;' 

 

6' rcfha m%odk 

 rcfha m%Odkhka u.ska lrk ,o m%d.aOk ñ,oS .ekSï i|yd jk CIhùï 

 m%udKh ú,ïì; wdodhula f,i .sKqï .;lr we;'  rcfha m%odkhkag wod, 

 j;alïj, CIh m%udKho ú,ïì;  wdodhug we;=,;a fõ' 

 

7' j;alï m%;Hd.Kkh 
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 rcfha ;lafiare fomd¾;fïka;=j u.ska m%;dHd.Kkh lrk ,o j;alïj, iïmQ¾K 

 jd¾;dj fuf;la ,eî fkdue;' 

 

8' ;Fj jeâ oshqKqlsrSfï jHdmD;sh 

 ;;aj jeäoshqKslsrSfï jHdmD;sh i|yd jeäfhka ,enqK uqo, wfkl=;a WmfoaYk 

 wdodhfï we;=,;a ù we;' 

 

9' wmyrKh lrk ,o j;alï 

 fuu jif¾ j;alï wmyrKh lsrSu iy ish¨u .e,mSï wjika lr we;' 

  

10' ld¾h uKav, ixj¾Ok wruqo, i|yd fjkalsrSï 

 wdh;kfha mk;g wkqj fuu jif¾ mshjd.ekSïj,ska 0'5% la .Kkh lr ld¾h 

 uKav, ixj¾Ok wruqo, i|yd uqo,a fjkalrk ,oS' 

 

11' m¾fhaIK iy ixj¾Ok jHdmD;sh 

 flfi,a fl|s jHdmD;sh m¾fhaIK iy ixj¾Ok jHdmD;sh hgf;a ia,sgd wdh;kh 

 u.ska isÿlrk w;r fï i|yd úhou wud;HdxYfhka m%;smQ¾Kh lrkq ,efí' 

 

12' m%d.aOk ,eîï 

 my; i|yka jHdmD;s i|yd uqo,a wud;HdxYfhka  ,eî we;' 

 f.dvke.s,s 

 ;;aj jeäoshqKq lsrSfï jHdmD;sh 

 iq¿ yd uOH mrsudK jHdmD;s jevigyk 

 fi!LH yd wdrCIK jHdmD;sh 

 mdjyka wxYfha mqyqKq lsrSï 

 flfi,a fl|s kQ,a ixj¾Ok jHdmD;sh 

 fmaIl¾u ksuyï l¾udka; yrs;lrK jevigyk 

 mqyqKq wjYH;d úYaf,aIKh 

 frosms<s mqia;ld,h 

 

13' md,uqfka j¾K.ekaùfï uOHia:dkh 

 ia,sgd wdh;kh u.ska mj;ajdf.k hk md,uqfka j¾K .ekaùfï uOHia:dkfha l%shdldrS 

 ,dNh$w,dNh fjku .Kkh lr we;' 

 

14' f.dvke.s,s boslsrSu i|yd w;a;sldrï f.ùï 



 
 

14 
 

 f.dvke.s,s boslsrSu i|yd jif¾ m%d.aOk wkque;sh re'ñ,shk 75 ls'  md¾,sfïka;= 

 leìkÜ m;%sldjla u.ska NdKavd.drh úiska fuu fjkalsrSu isÿlr we;'           

 re' 3"850"912 la tu f.dvke.s,a, i|yd w;a;sldrï f.jd we;' 

 

15' jHdmD;s 

 ia,sgd wdh;kfha uqo,ska fuu jir ;=, jHdmD;s lsysmhlau wjika lr we;'  ta 

 i|yd jir wjidkfhaoS l¾udka; yd jdKsc lghq;= wud;HdxYfhka ,eìh hq;= uqo, 

 re' 38"078"766'19 ls' 
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Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh 
 

2018 foieïn¾ 31 osfkka wjika jir i|yd uQ,H ;;a;ajh ms<sn| jd¾;dj 
 
 

 igyka 
wxl 

2018 2017 
re' re' 

j;alï 
 

   

cx.u j;alï    
uqo,a yd uqo,g iudk oE 
,eìh hq;= 
f;d. 

1 
2 
3 

258"032"421 
62"642"741 
2"744"173 

196"684"602 
92"730"546 
3"006"954 

bosrshg f.ùï 
m%d.aOk jev i|yd w;a;sldrï f.ùï 

4 
5 

1"231"713 
3"850"912 

1"447"685 
36"805"755 

wfkl=;a cx.u j;alï 6 8"910"825 9"803"464 

cx.u j;alï tl;=j  337"412"785 340"479"007 

    
    
cx.u fkdjk j;alï    
há;, myiqlï" msrsh; iy WmlrK ^Y=oaO& 7 104"208"652 104"132"958 
bvï iy f.dvkeÕs,s ^Y=oaO& 8 50"696"779 49"167"918 

  154"905"431 153"300"876 

j;alï tl;=j  492"318"216 493"779"883 

    
j.lSï    
cx.u j.lSï    
f.úh hq;= 9 10"611"842 11"318"721 
fláld,Sk fjkalsrSï 10 2"148"627 2"247"802 

  12"760"469 13"566"523 

cx.u fkdjk j.lSï    
úY%du mdrsf;daIslh 11 38"005"998 38"548"057 

  38"005"998 38"548"057 

j.lSï tl;=j  50"766"467 52"114"580 

Y=oaO j;alï  441"551"748 441"665"303 

 
 

   

Y=oaO j;alï$iyNd.H    
rcfha m%odk iy úfoaY wdOdr  12 162"061"321 182"257"166 
wfkl=;a jHdmD;s 13 18"919"541 23"129"956 
iuqÉÑ; w;srsla;h$^W!K;djh& 14 260"570"886 236"278"182 

Y=oaO j;alï$iyNd.H tl;=j  441"551"748 441"665"303 

    
 

fuu uQ,H jd¾;d ms,sfh, lsrSu iy bosrsm;a lsrSu md,l uKav,fha j.lSuls'  fuu uQ,H 
jd¾;d i|yd md,l uKav,h úiska 2019'02'26 oskoS wkque;sh ,ndoS we;' 
 

 
 

w;aika lf<a :   jhs ta mS cS hdmd  tï'ta' ;dcqãka  wOHCI uKav,fha 
     .Kldêldrs   iNdm;s   idudcsl 
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Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh 

2018 foieïn¾ 31 osfkka wjika jir i|yd wdodhï m%ldYk jd¾;dj 

igyka 
wxl 

2018 
re' 

2017 
re' 

wdodhu 

.dia;= iy wfkl=;a 15 177"510"267 202"882"320 

fufyhqï wdodhu tl;=j 177"510"267 202"882"320 

úhoï 

mqoa., mäkä ^jegqma" fõ;k iy fiajl ysólï& 16 92"400"532 87"371"113 

.uka úhoï 

iemhSï iy mrsfNdack 

w¿;ajeähd iy kv;a;= 

.súi.;a fiajd 

CIhùï iy ,shdyerSfï úhoï 

wfkl=;a úhoï 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

515"325 

11"264"143 

8"024"248 

20"150"913 

23"945"918 

20"175"295 

745"075 

9"724"897 

5"063"229 

18"711"819 

21"456"927 

24"490"637 

uQ,H msrsjeh 23 203"288 156"506 

176"679"662 167"720"204 

fufyhqï ls%hdldrs;ajfhka jQ 

w;srsla;h$^W!K;djh& 830"605 35"162"116 

wfkl=;a wdodhï 

ú,ïì; wdodhu 24 23"828"239 19"373"429 

wfkl=;a wdodhï tl;=j 23"828"239 19"373"429 

wod, ld, mrsÉfPaoh i|yd   

w;srsla;h $ ^W!K;djh& tl;=j 

24"658"844 54"535"545 

fuu uQ,H jd¾;d ms,sfh, lsrSu iy bosrsm;a lsrSu md,l uKav,fha j.lSuls'  fuu uQ,H 
jd¾;d i|yd md,l uKav,h úiska 2019'02'26 oskoS wkque;sh ,ndoS we;' 

w;aika lf<a :  jhs ta mS cS hdmd tï'ta' ;dcqãka wOHCI uKav,fha 
  .Kldêldrs iNdm;s  idudcsl 
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Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh 
2018 foieïn¾ 31 osfkka wjika jir i|yd uqo,a m%jdy m%ldYKh 

 
 igyka 2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 

wod, ld, mrsÉfPaoh i|yd  
w;srsla;h $ ^W!K;djh& 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
24"658"844 

 
54"535"545 

   

.e,mSï   

ú,ïì; wdodhu ,shdyerSu ^23"828"239& ^19"373"429& 

CIhùï 23"945"918 21"456"927 

ldrl m%d.aOkh fjkiaùug fmr  
fufyhqï w;srsla;h$^W!K;djh&  

24"776"523 56"619"044 

foam," msrsh; iy WmlrK .e,mSï  - 

mdrsf;daIsl fjkalsrSu jeäùu 3"588"649 3"033"726 

f;d. jeäùu $^wvqùu& 
bosrshg f.ùï jeäùu $^wvqùu& 
wfkl=;a cx.u j;alï jeäùu $^wvqùu& 

262"781 
215"972 
892"639 

803"251 
560"833 

^2"960"971& 

CIhùï .e,mSï  - 

fj<| yd fjk;a ,eìh hq;= oE jeäùu$^wvqùu& 30"087"806 ^51"358"404& 

fmr jif¾ W!K;djh wvqùu ^366"139& ^1"116"520& 

fj<| yd fjk;a f.úh hq;= oE jeäùu ^706"879& ^748"334& 

fjkalsrSï jeäùu ^99"175& 1"190"802 

mdrsf;daIsl f.ùï ^4"130"708& ^3"782"716& 

fufyhqï l%shdldrs;ajfhka jQ Y=oaO uqo,a m%jdyh 54"521"469 2"240"710 

   

wdfhdack ls%hdldrlïj,ska jQ uqo,a m%jdyh   

j;alï wmyrKh 
msrsh; iy WmlrK ñ,oS .ekSï 

29"539 
^25"580"013& 

 
^39"165"727& 

m%d.aOk úhoï i|yd w;a;sldrï f.ùï 32"954"843 ^35"757"554& 

wdfhdack l%shdldrlïj,ska jQ Y=oaO uqo,a m%jdyh 7"404"369 ^74"923"281& 

   

   

uQ,H l%shdldrlïj,ska jQ uqo,a m%jdyh 
m%d.aOk m%odk ^uqo,a& 

 
12"543"000 

 
25"000"000 

wfkl=;a m%odk fjkiaùu ^24"667"999& - 

m%d.aOk m%odk ^j;alï&  15"757"393 49"076"423 
wfkl=;a jHdmD;s fjkiaùï  ^4"210"415& 957"881 

uQ,H l%shdldrlï p,k jQ Y=oaO uqo,a m%jdyh  ^578"021& 75"034"304 

uqo,a iy uqo,g iudk oEj, Y=oaO 
jeäùu$^wvqùu& 
ld,mrsÉfcaoh wdrïNfha jQ uqo,a iy uqo,g 
iudk oE  

 61"347"817 
 

196"684"603 

2"351"733 
 

194"332"870 

ld,mrsÉfcaoh wjidkfha jQ uqo,a iy uqo,g 
iudk oE 

^1& 258"032"421 196"684"603 
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 igyka 2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 

 
    

   

igyk wxl 2   

uqo,a iy uqo,g iudk oE 
nexl=fõ uqo,a 
,xld nexl=j - r;au,dk ^.s'wxl 9521019& 
,xld nexl=j - r;au,dk ^úfoaY úksuh&  
                  ^.s'wxl 7011691& 
fláld,Sk wdfhdack 

 
 

3"940"984 
1"159"681 

 
 

3"481"534 
485"572 

 
 

ia:djr ;ekam;= - r;au,dk 
NdKavd.dr ì,am;a ^mdrsf;daIsl wruqo,& 
fláld,Sk ;ekam;= ^mdrsf;daIsl wruqo, wvx.=& 

3"931"740 
14"448"159 

234"551"558 

3"559"746 
13"400"235 
175"757"516 

 
 
 

258"032"421 196"684"603 
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Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh 

2018 foieïn¾ 31 osfkka wjika jir i|yd Y=oaO j;alï fjkiaùfï m%ldYKh 

igyka 
wxl 

m%ldYs; 
m%d.aOkh 

re' 

wfkl=;a 
ixÑ; 
re' 

ixÑ; 
udrelsrSï 

re' 

iuqÉÑ; 
w;srsla;h$ 
W!K;djh 

re' 

tl;=j 
re' 

2017'12'31 oskg fYaIh 1 205"387"121 - - 236"278"182 441"665"303 

.sKqï m%;sm;a;s fjkiaùï 

jif¾ fjkiaùï 2 ^24"406"260& - - ^366"139& ^24"772"399& 
foam, m%;Hd.Ks; ,dN 

wdfhdack m%;Hd.Ks; w,dN 

úfoaY úksuh yqjudre w,dN 

yªkd.;a Y=oaO wdodhu   

jif¾ w;srsla;h$^W!K;djh&  
wod, ld,h ;=, yªkd.;a Y=oaO 
wdodhu 

- 

- 

- 

^24"406"260& 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

^366"139& 

24"658"844 

- 

- 

- 

- 

^24"772"399& 

24"658"844 

- 

2018 foieïn¾ 31 oskg fYaIh 180"980"861 ^0& - 260"570"887 441"551"748 

iyNd.H fjkiaùu igyka re' 

igyka wxl 1 

m%d.aOk odhl;ajh 

rcfha m%odk iy úfoaY wdOdr 2017'12'31 oskg fYaIh 149"726"247 

2017'12'31 oskg wfkl=;a jHdmD;sj, b;srs tl;=j 55"660"874 

205"387"121 

igyka wxl 2 

jif¾ fjkiaùï 

jif¾ m%d.aOk m%odk 3"632"394 

jir ;=, j;alï ,shdyerSï ^23"828"239& 

jir ;=, wfkl=;a jHdmD;sj, fjkiaùï ^4"210"415& 

24"406"260 
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2018 
re' 

2017 
re' 

uQ,Huh jd¾;d igyka 

1 uqo,a yd uqo,g iudk oE 

nexl=fõ we;s uqo,a 

,xld nexl=j r;au,dk .s'wxl 9521019 3"940"984 3"481"534 

,xld nexl=j r;au,dk ú'úks'.s'wxl 7011691 1"159"681 485"572 

flÜld,Sk wdfhdack ^fy,sorõ lsrSï wxl 2& 252"931"756 192"717"497 

258"032"421 196"684"603 

1'1 fy,sorõ lsrSï wxl 2 

flÜld,Sk wdfhdack 

ia:sr ;ekam;= 3"931"740 3"559"746 

NdKavd.dr ì,am;a 14"448"159 13"400"235 

flÜld,Sk ;ekam;= 234"551"857 175"757"516 

252"931"756 192"717"497 

2 ,eìh hq;= 

fj<| ,eìh hq;= ^fy,sorõ lsrSï wxl 3& 

mrSCIK Kh.e;sfhda 2"671"379 4"738"250 

mqyqKq - wNHka;r Kh.e;sfhda 3"486"649 8"719"292 

mqyqKq - ndysr Kh.e;sfhda 161"600 251"600 

WmfoaYk fiajd Kh.e;sfhda 83"558 83"559 

mdrsfNda.sl$;dlaIK fiajd Kh.e;sfhda 32"680 70"800 

wfkl=;a fj<| Kh.e;sfhda 345"130 489"561 

6"780"996 14"353"062 

wvql<d - fnd,a Kh fjkalsrSï ^4"157"433& ^3"800"665& 

2"623"563 10"552"397 

úúO Kh.e;sfhda 60"019"177 82"178"149 

62"642"740 92"730"546 

3 f;d. 

,sms¯jH 912"160 1"024"991 

mqyqKq wuq¯jH iy mdrsfNdack ¯jH 1"220"250 1"271"778 

wu;r fldgia iy Wmdx. 414"905 513"327 

j¾K iy kQ,a 196"857 196"857 

2"744"172 3"006"953 
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  2018 
re' 

2017 
re' 

 uQ,Huh jd¾;d igyka   
4 bosrshg f.ùï   
 rCIK - ffjoH 232"161 227"157 
 rCIK - fudag¾ r: 391"682 376"167 
 rCIK - .sks iy wfkl=;a 99"137 107"042 
 rCIK - uqo,a m%jdyKh - 6"332 

 fiajd .súiqï - mrs.Kl 44"734 44"609 
 fiajd .súiqï - ,S nvq WmlrK 135"187 116"850 
 jdyk n,m;% - 39"540 
 ;;aj m¾fhaIKd.dr úhoï 328"811 529"988 
 k.r iNdj - - 

  1"231"713 1"447"685 

    
5 m%d.aOk jev i|yd w;a;sldrï f.ùï   
 f.dvkeÕs,s b|slsrSï 3"850"912 36"805"755 
    

  3"850"912 36"805"755 

    
6 wfkl=;a cx.u j;alï   
 fiajl Kh ^6'1& 8"504"825 9"181"464 
 ;ekam;= ^6'2& 406"000 622"000 

  8"910"825 9"803"464 

    
6'1 fiajl Kh   
 wdmod Kh 8"499"825 9"168"964 
 W;aij w;a;sldrï 5"000 12"500 

  8"504"825 9"181"464 

    
6'2 ;ekam;= 

f.j,a l=,S ;ekam;= 

 

- 

 

240"000 
 úÿ,sn, uKav,h 250"000 250"000 
 wd¾ t,a m%kdkaÿ - bkaOk 100"000 100"000 
 Tlaiscka iy weisáisá is,skav¾ 36"000 12"000 
 vhf,d.a fg,sfldï frdañka myiqlï 20"000 20"000 

  406"000 622"000 
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Y%S ,xld fmaIl¾u iy weÕ¨ï wdh;kh 

uQ,Huh jd¾;d igyka 

m%udKh 2018 
re' 

7'1  há;, myiqlï" msrsh; iy WmlrK 
foam, msrsh; iy WmlrK tl;=lsrSï 

msrsh; iy hkaf;%damlrK 

w;ahka;% ueIsu 

jdhqiólrK ^mekfidksla& 

01 

05 

50"000 

881"134 

931"134 

,Snvq" iúlsrSï iy WmlrK 

j;=r fmrkh 2 37"645 

úÿ,s fla;, 1 9"775 

iSiSáù leurd 4 33"150 

ld¾hd, leìfkÜgqj iy m¾,a ufyda.kS mqgq 1 11"498 

f,aä vó 1 20"950 

fckaÜ vó 

phs,aâ vó 

1 

1 

20"950 

10"950 

phs,aâ vó 

msgqmi my; mqgq 

iïnkaO;djh iuÕ ÿrl:k 

1 

1 

1 

11"950 

13"207 

6"000 

úÿ,s c.a 

jdfka leìfkÜgq 

wuq;a;ka mqgq 

/yeka rys; ÿrl:k 

l¿ mqgq

fm%dfclaÜ ial%Ska

ì;a;s úÿ,s mxld

nd¾ iagQ,a

mqia;ld,dêm;s mqgq

mqia;ld,dêm;s fïi

mrs.Kl fïi

nd¾ iagQ,a l¿

fros ld¾hd, mqgq

ìf.dalshq,¾ uhsfl%diafldama

igyka .Kl hka;% mdrsfNda.sl m%o¾Yk

1 

8 

15 

1 

2 

1 

3 

13 

1 

1 

2 

15 

2 

1 

1 

3"740 

150"930 

100"165 

5"560 

23"588 

7"250 

14"850 

101"684 

10"686 

19"794 

26"428 

116"520 

14"285 

1"300"000 

134"375 

2"205"910 
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 m%udKh 2018 
re' 

 

m¾fhaIKd.dr  WmlrK    

    

ñleksl,a fIal¾ 

yd*a tca fgiag¾ 

lkaäIka leìkÜ 

w,ag%d yhs m¾f*daukaia ,slaúä fl%dfudafgd.%e*s 

yef,d lef.daä ,Eïma 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

343"000 

2"463"347 

1"712"000 

9"389"521 

1"396"687 

 

  15"304"555  

mrs.Kl 

fm%da,skala 700 - ùÿ,s .nvdlsrSfï WmlrK 

lekka j¾K uq¯K hka;%h 

 

4 

3 

 

17"150 

102"925 

 

HP mrs.Kl fudksg¾ 10 1"370"000  

,emafgdma mrs.Kl - Asus 2 273"400  

HP j¾K f,ai¾ uq¯K 1 111"800  

  1"875"279  

 
fmd;a iy iÕrd 

   

frda,a hdka fgkaIka bka ùúka 1 8"489  

nfhdafm%dfiiska T*a fglaiaghs,a 1 9"434  

fid,shqIka gq fm%dí,ïia bka fglaiaghs,a wekaâ  
.dukaÜ bkaviaá% 

1 8"489  

m%vlaÜ fia*aá wekaâ friaà%lagâ iíiagEkaiia bka 
wemr,a 

1 5"339  

j¾la fld,sà uefkacaukaÜ bka o fglaiaghs,a  
bkaviaà% 

1 5"339  

bkag%vlaIka gq fglaiaghs,a *hsn¾ia  1 7"229  

fglaiaghs,a vhsia 1 8"489  

bkaviaà%h,a m%elaáia bka ùùka m%smf¾grs 1 7"229  

*kavfukag,aia wekaâ m%elaáia bka l,f¾Ika T*a 
fglaiaghs,aaia 

1 11"639  

fÜ%kska wekaâ äjf,dmaukaÜ T*a fglaksl,a iagd*a 
bka o fglaiaghs,a bkaviaá% 

1 9"434  

*kavfukag,aia wekaâ weâjdkaia bka ksÜka 
fglafkdf,dcs 

1 7"859  

w m%elaál,a .hsâ gq fglaiaghs,a fgiaàka 1 6"284  

m¾f*daukaia T*a fydaï fglaiaghs,aia 1 5"654  

m,shqIka lkafg%da,a bka fglaiaghs,a bkaviaà% 1 9"843  

kka jQjka fm%dfiia iag%lap¾ fm%dmàia wekaâ 
wema,sflaIka 

1 10"379  

*hsn¾ iag%lap¾ 1 7"229  

yEkaâ nqla Tka *eìrsla uekq*elaprSka 1 11"009  

tiageí,sIaukaÜ fldaâ 1 ^isxy,& 1 950  

tiageí,sIaukaÜ fldaâ 11 ^isxy,& 1 140  

tiageí,sIaukaÜ fldaâ 11 ^bx.%Sis& 1 56  
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  2018 
re' 

 

*ekEkaI,a fr.=f,aIka ^bx.%Sis& 1 368  

weâjdkaia bka rsi¾Ñ wekaâ wema,sflaIka 1 46"990  

Bis T*a ,¾kska bka.a,sIa .%eu¾ wekaâ 
fldïfmdisIka 

1 950  

tiageí,sIaukaÜ fldaâ 1 ^geñ,a& 1 550  

tiageí,sIaukaÜ fldaâ 11 ^geñ,a& 1 140  

*skEkaI,a fr.=f,aIka ^geñ,a& 1 560  

fm%dlshqukaÜ .hsâ,hska ^isxy,& 1 125  

taIshd *jqkafâIka 115 558"509  

bf,lafg%dksla fglaiaghs,aia iaudÜ *eírslaia wekaâ  

fjhdrn,a fglafkdf,dcs 

1 34"000  

*kalaIk,a *sksIia f*d fglaiaghs,aia - bïm%Dúka 

fldïf*da¾Ü m¾f*daukaia wekaâ fm%dfglaIka 

1 30"300  

yEkaânqla T*a *h¾ frisiagkaÜ fglaiaghs,aia 1 40"500  

yEkaânqla T*a kepqr,a *hsn¾ia - fjd,shqï 11 -  

fm%dfiiska wekaâ wema,sflaIkaia 

1 33"000  

fydaï *sksIska 1 9"300  

fuäl,a fglaiaghs,a ueàrsh,aia 1 21"000  

m¾f*daukaia fgiaáka T*a fglaiaghs,aia - fu;âia 

fglafkdf,dcs wekaâ wema,sflaIkaia 

1 25"000  

fglaiaghs,aia f*d iafmda¾Üiafjhd¾ 1 38"500  

wkav¾iagEkaäka wekaâ bïm%Dúka o ähqrì,sá T*a 

fglaiaghs,aia 

1 26"000  

welaÜfùgâ ldnka *hsn¾ wekaâ fglaiaghs,aia 1 31"960  

weâjdkaiia bka fglaksl,a kkajQjkaia 1 40"800  

wekaáuhsfl%daìh,a fglaiaghs,aia 1 38"760  

fí%hsäka fglafkdf,dcs f*d fglaiaghs,aia 1 27"200  

fl%hsIska fglafkdf,dcs f*d fmd,sfhiag¾ *hsn¾ia 1 27"200  

fvksï - uekq*elap¾" *sksIska wekaâ wema,sflaIkaia 1 39"440  

bf,lafg%daiamka kefkda*hsn¾ia 1 44"880  

csfhdafglaiaghs,aia f*%dï äihska gq wema,sflaIkaia 1 47"600  

yEkaânqla T*a kepqr,a *hsn¾ia ghsmaia fm%dm¾àia 

wekaâ *elag¾ia wef*laáka 

1 43"520  

yEkaânqla T*a fglaksl,a fglaiaghs,aia fjd,shqï 2 1 34"000  

yEkaânqla T*a fglaksl,a fglaiaghs,aia fjd,shqï 1 1 31"960  

bkala fcÜ fglaiaghs,a m%skaáka 1 29"240  

kefkda*sksIska T*a fglaiaghs,a ueàrsh,aia 1 34"000  

m%skaism,aia T*a fglaiaghs,a *sksIska *iÜ täIka 1 34"000 
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  2018 
re' 

 

 

fm%dfiia lkafg%da,a bka fglaiaghs,a uekq*elaprSka - 

*iaÜ täIka 

iaudÜ fglaiaghs,aia wekaâ fohd¾ wema,sflaIkaia 

iiafÜk¾n,a *hsn¾ia wekaâ fglaiaghs,aia - *iaÜ 

täIka 

iiafÜk¾n,a wemr,a  - *iaÜ täIka 

fglaiaghs,ais wekaâ *eIka ueàrsh,aia" äihska 

wekaâ fglafkdf,dcs 

fjdag¾mDD*a wekaâ fjdag¾ frm,kaÜ fglaiaghs,aia 

wekaâ laf,daoska 

iiafÜkaì,sá bka fvksï - *iaÜ täIka 

 

1 

 

1 

1 

 

1 

1 

 

1 

 

1 

 

36"720 

 

43"435 

29"920 

 

31"960 

10"200 

 

31"960 

 

29"920 

 

  1"724"985  
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8' 2018'12'31 oskg bvï iy f.dvke.s,s 
 bvï 

rems 
f.dvke.s,s 

rems 
tl;=j 
rems 

msrsjeh    
2018'01'01 oskg msrsjeh 5"018"434 77"321"399 82"339"833 
tl;=lsrSï - igyk 8'1    
j;alï .e,mSï  3"538"154 3"538"154 
2018'12'31 oskg msrsjeh 5"018"434 80"859"553 85"877"987 
    
iuqÉÑ; CIhùï    
2018'01'01 oskg iuqÉÑ; CIh  33"171"915 33"171"915 
jir i|yd CIhùï     
iuqÉÑ; CIh i|yd .e,mSï  2"009"293 2"009"293 
2018'12'31 oskg iuqÉÑ; CIh  35"181"208 35"181"208 
2018'12'31 oskg Y=oaO fmd;a w.h 5"018"434 45"678"345 50"696"779 
 
 
8'1 bvï iy f.dvke.s,s 
 wdmkYd,dj ms<silr lsrSu 1"759"857   
 wudfkda merfnd,sl l=áh 745"713   
 merKs wdmkYd,dfõ jy,h ms<silr lsrSu 1"032"584 
  3"538"154 
     
   2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 
9 f.úh hq;= oE 

 
   

 fjf<| Khysñfhda 9'1 1"001"840 776"076 
 WmÑ; úhoï 9'2 5"116"716 6"059"733 
 úúO Khysñfhda 9'3 4"135"448 4"231"273 
 f.úh hq;= cx.u nÿ 9'4 357"838 251"639 
   10"611"842 11"318"721 
     

9'1 fjf<| Khysñfhda  
w;a;sldrï jYfhka ,enqKq uqo,a 

   

 YsIHhkaf.ka mdGud,d .dia;= i|yd    

 ,enqKq w;a;sldrï uqo,a  1"001"840 776"076 

   1"001"840 776"076 

9'2 WmÑ; úhoï    

 mqyqKq uÕfmkaùfï jevigyk 
;djld,sl mqyqKq yd jegqma oSukd 

 8"108 
36"469 

- 
- 

 i;swka; oSukd  - 939"959 

 m%jdyK  312"368 211"998 

 ÿrl:k oSukd  - 1"800 

 iïnkaëlrK .dia;=  179"928 112722 

 uqoaor nÿ  - 12"100 

 fudag¾ r: w¿;ajeähd 
msrsh; iy hkaf;%damlrK w¿;ajeähd 
f.dvke.s,s w¿;ajeähd 
flfi,a fl|s ixj¾Ok jHdmD;sh 
wd¾:sl fiajd .dia;= 

 25"880 
4"000 

- 
87"974 
188"032 

125"025 
- 

17"009 
37"187 

241"806 
 fiajl w¾:idOl wruqo, 

fiajl Ndrldr wruqo, 
YsIH myiqlï jeä oshqKqlsrSu 
mrs.Kl w¿;ajeähd 

 1"017"233 
138"714 
283"756 
15"000 

1"037"482 
141"475 
283"756 

- 
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   2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 
  

w;sld, oSukd 

.uka úhoï 

Wmfhda.S fiajd ^c,& 

úÿ,sh 

wdrCIl .dia;= 

ikaksfõok fiajd 

jdyk iy fckf¾g¾ i|yd bkaOk 

mejrSfï iy iy;sl m;% .dia;= 

fiajl iqNidOl ffjoH fhdackd l%uh 

  

318"243 

52"925 

18"252 

217"339 

98"246 

88"572 

14"000 

12"736 

115"335 

 

452"846 

73"750 

22"015 

832"411 

166"675 

100"479 

55"253 

- 

83"589 

 ikSmdrCIl fiajd  - 275"630 

 f.daia mrSCIK úhoï  21"400 21"600 

 ld¾hd, f.j,al=,S  - 80"000 

 mdrsfNdack ñ,oS.ekSï  300 - 

 idudcsl .dia;= w¿;alsrSï  11"733 4"347 

 iqNidOl ix.uh  200"000 - 

 wdrCIl ks,weªï mrSCId úhoï  1"467 1"233 

 l;sldpd¾h .dia;= ^wdrdê;& 

ABC jHdmD;s úhoï 

wdydrmdk i|yd úhoï 

nexl= .dia;= 

ukakdrï YdLdj  

 97"350 

- 

540 

29 

- 

297"044 

112"805 

- 

- 

11"577 

 w;ahka;% j¾K.ekaùfï jHdmD;sh  169"100 107"071 

 ;;aj jeäoshqKq lsrSfï jHdmD;sh  156"886 112"992 

 mqyqKq mdGud,d úhoï  - 6"095 

 i;swka; oSukd  1"174"801 - 

 wfkl=;a fiajd .dia;=  50"000 - 

 Wmdê msrskeóu fjkqfjka úhoï  - 80"000 

  
 

 5"116"716 6"059"733 

9'3 úúO Khysñfhda    

 úúO Khysñfhda 
uyd NdKavd.drh 

 
 

- 
3"871"448 

153"950 
3"871"448 

 WmfoaYk w;a;sldrï  - 20"000 

 wdmkYd,d fgkav¾ ;ekam;=  25"000 15"000 

 ìâ wdrCIK  31"500 25"500 

 wdmiq f.jk fgkav¾ ;ekam;=  7"500 45"375 

 wdmiq f.jk ;ekam;=  200"000 100"000 

  
 

 4"135"448 4"231"273 

9'4 f.úh hq;= cx.u nÿ    

     

 f.úh hq;= cd;sh f.dvke.Sfï nÿ  157"127 251"639 

 uqoaor .dia;=  8"750 - 

 f.úh hq;= w.h tl;=lsrSfï noao  163"272 - 

 f.úh hq;= r|jd.ekSfï .dia;=  28"689 - 

   357"838 251"639 
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   2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 

 
10 
 
 

 
fláld,Sk fjkalsrSï 
fiajl ixj¾Ok wruqo, 
ú.Kk .dia;= fjkalsrSï 

 

 
 

625"075 
1"523"552 

 
 

790"802 
1"457"000 

   2"148"627 2"247"802 
11 úY%du jegqm 

mdrsf;daIssl fjkalsrSï  
^fy,sorõ lsrSï wxl 6& 

 
  

 jir uq, fYaIh  38"548"057 39"297"047 
 wvql<d - jif¾ f.ùï  4"130"708 ^3"782"716& 
   34"417"349 35"514"331 
 jir i|yd fjkalsrSï  3"588"649 3"033"726 
 jir wjidkfha fYaIh  38"005"998 38"548"057 

 
12 

 
rcfha m%odk iy úfoaY wdOdr 
^fy,sorõ lsrSï wxl 7& 

 
  

 2018'01'01 oskg fYaIh  182"257"166 121"834"349 
 tl;=l<d - jif¾ m%odk  3"632"394 79"796"245 
  

fmr jif¾ jeäfhka i|yka l, 
ú,ïì; wdodhu 

 
185"889"560 201"630"594 

 wvql<d - jif¾ ,shdyerSï  23"828"239 ^19"373"429& 
 jir wjidk fYaIh  162"061"321 182"257"165 
 
13 

 
wfkl=;a jHdmD;s 

 
  

 ;;aj jeäoshqKq lsrSfï jHdmD;sh 
fi!LH yd wdrCIK jHdmD;sh 
kj flfi,a fl|s kQ,a ixj¾Ok jevigyk 

 
1"675"387 
1"406"663 
10"991"339 

- 
1"406"663 
10"061"506 

 w;ahka;% jeäoshqKq lsrSfï jHdmD;sh  - 140"235 
 iq¿ mrsudK weÕ¨ï .=rejre mqyqKqlsrSfï 

jHdmD;sh  
- 688"515 

 w;ahka;% jeäoshqKq lsrSfï jHdmD;sh -
urouqfkhs  

2"243"450 2"243"450 

 jdKsc yd l¾udka; wud;HdxYh YsIH;aj 
wruqo,  

236"867 236"867 

 YsIH myiqlï jeäoshqKq lsrSu  - 135"083 
 mdjyka ixj¾Ok jevigyk  30"405 30"405 
 uyk ueIska kv;a;= jevigyk 

fmaIl¾udka; ksuyï yrs;lrK jevigyk 

.DydYs; weÕ¿ï l¾udka; jevigyk 
 

1"047"344 
420"537 
867"549 

1"047"344 
420"537 
6"719"351 

   18"919"541 23"129"956 
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   2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 

     
14 iuqÉÑ; w;srsla;h$^W!K;djh&    
 bosrshg f.k wd ,dNh  236"278"182 182"859"156 

 
 
 

 
  

 
fYaIm;% oskg miqj we;s jQ fmr jif¾ 
.e,mSï 

 
  

 

 
2017 ia:djr ;ekam;= fmd,S 
ia:djr ;ekam;= fmd,S .e,mSu 
iq¿ mrsudk weÕ¿ï .=rejre mqyqKq  
md,uqfka j¾K.ekaùfï uOHia:dkh 
mdGud,d .dia;= wdmiq f.ùu 

 
 
 
 

 
60"485 

- 
- 
- 

^132"750& 

 
- 

13"550 
^72"000& 

^1"058"070& 
- 

 fjkial, úhoï   2"897 - 
 f.jQ w.h tl;= lsrSfï nÿ .e,mSu  290"441 + 
 wvqfjka oelajQ ia:djr ;ekam;= fmd<S   ^6"330& - 

   235"912"043 181"742"636 
 jif¾ w;srsla;h  24"658"844 54"535"545 

   260"570"887 236"278"181 

     
15 fufyhqï wdodhï    

 mrSCIK  48"652"142 48"645"837 

 mqyqKqlsrSï  84"353"742 113"797"288 

 WmfoaYl fiajd  7"400"000 5"248"320 

 mdrsfNda.sl$;dlaIKsl fiajd iy wfkl=;a  
úl=Kqï 

 11"446"516 13"296"105 

 iïuka;%K  259"593 - 

 wfkl=;a wdodhï  26"257"311 24"506"443 

 tia'tï'B' jHdmD;sfhka jeämqr ,enQ uqo,a  ^2"693& 3"771 

 
j;alï úlsKSfuka jeämqr ,enQ uqo, 
md,uqfka j¾K .ekaùfï uOHia:dkfha kQ,a 
úlsKSfuka ,dN 

 
257"360 

^1"113"704& 
26"100 

^2"641"544& 

  
  177"510"267 202"882"320 
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16 mqoa., mäkä^jegqma"fõ;k iyfiajl ysñlï& 
 

 2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 

 

jegqma yd fõ;k ^wka;¾ oSukd we;=,;a& 

cSjk úhoï oSukdj 

fiajl w¾:idOl wruqo, 

fiajl Ndrldr wruqo, 

jevne,Sfï wNHka;r ú.Kk .dia;= 
iNdm;s oSukd 

;djld,sl jegqma$mqyqKq oSukd 

w;sld, oSukd 

i;swka; oSukd 

we.hSfï oSukd 

md,l uKav, f,aLl .dia;= 

i;swka; mdi,a oSukd 

m%jdyk oSukdj 

iïnkaëlrK .dia;= 

m¾fhaIKd.dr fiajl oSukd 

mdrsf;daIsl 

.e,mSï oSukdj 

2011-2014 - f.úh hq;= ysÕ jegqma 

ÿrl:k oSukd 

jD;a;Suh oSukd 

iNdm;s rshÿre oSukd 

fiajl w'w' fia'Nd'w' ysÕ f.ùu 

 
 

41"892"645 

7"750"600 

6"118"412 

1"520"575 

21"080 

450"000 

1"096"695 

4"045"922 

12"393"517 

1"407"375 

60"000 

408"000 

4"575"000 

2"277"879 

513"675 

3"588"649 

1"260"233 

- 

336"000 

2"538"583 

54"322 

91"368 

37"186"028 

7"996"061 

5"972"007 

1"439"212 

- 

450"000 

1"250"655 

5"354"591 

11"663"204 

1"429"500 

60"000 

408"000 

4"302"050 

912"540 

423"000 

3"033"726 

4"473"211 

16"328 

344"000 

657"000 

- 

- 

   92"400"532 87"371"113 

     
17 .uka úhoï    

 foaYSh  515"325 745"075 
   515"325 745"075 
     
18 iemhSï yd mrsfNdack úhoï    

 ,sms¯jH yd ld¾hd, wjYH;d 18'1 3"147"183 2"489"566 
 wfkl=;a mrsfNdack ¯jH 18'2 1"524"891 1"018"673 
 mejrSfï yd iy;sl lsrSfï .dia;=  2"656"652 2"318"320 
 jdyk iy úÿ,s W;amdol hka;% i|yd bkaOk  3"935"417 3"898"338 
   11"264"143 9"724"897 
     
18'1 ,sms¯jH yd ld¾hd, wjYH;d    

 j¾Ifha wdrïNl f;d.h  1"024"991 834"015 
 tl;=l<d - j¾Ih ;=< .eKqï  3"034"353 2"680"542 

   4"059"344 3"514"557 

 wvql<d - j¾I wjidk f;d.h  ^912"160& ^1"024"991& 

   3"147"183 2"489"566 

18'2 mqyqKqlsrSfï wuq¯jH" wfkl=;a mrsfNdack"  
;;aj md,k m¾fhaIKd.dr wuq¯jH 

   

 j¾Ifha wdrïNl f;d.h  1"271"778 189"887 

 tl;= l<d - j¾Ih ;=< .eKqï  1"473"362 2"100"564 

   2"745"140 2"290"451 

 wvql<d - j¾I wjidk f;d.h  ^1"220"250& ^1"271"778& 

  
  

1"524"891 
 

 
1"018"673 
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2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 

19 w¿;ajeähd yd kv;a;= úhoï 

bvï yd f.dvkeÕs,s 2"279"973 566"708 
fudag¾ r:jdyk 1"889"537 2"371"545 
,Snvq iúlsrSï iy WmlrK 112"858 443"122 
m¾fhaIKd.dr WmlrK 1"363"917 639"249 
msrsh; yd hkaf;%damlrK 19'1 853"551 379"581 
mrs.Kl 469"432 427"390 
úÿ,s W;amdol hka;% 54"980 235"634 

8"024"248 5"063"229 

19'1 hkaf;%damlrK kv;a;= lsrSï 
j¾I wdrïNl f;d. 196"857 196"857 
j¾Ih ;=< wu;r fldgia ñ,oS .eKqï 15"000 - 
w¿;ajeähd yd kv;a;= 838"551 379"581 

wvql<d - j¾I wjidk f;d. 
1"050"408 
196"857 

576"438 
196"857 

hkaf;%damlrK kv;a;= lsrSïj,g udre l<d 853"551 379"581 

20 .súiqï.; fiajd 
ld¾hd, l=,S  400"303 560"532 

rCIK 162"046 149"162 

wdrCIl .dia;= 1"872"995 1"745"999 

ikSmdrCIl fiajd 3"123"792 3"238"623 

úÿ,s úhoï 8"084"944 7"813"409 

c,h ^Wmfhda.S fiajd& 829"927 510"434 

ikaksfõok fiajd 940"004 1"025"876 

;eme,a .dia;= 246"639 164"002 

oekaùï .dia;= 763"100 849"276 

m%jdyk .dia;= 3"727"164 2"654"506 

20"150"913 18"711"819 

21 CIhùï 
f.dvkeÕs,s 2"009"292 1"895"187 
mrs.Kl 2"747"386 2"436"010 
,Snvq" iúlsrSï iy WmlrK 4"694"501 4"354"905 
fudg¾ r:jdyk 1"366"898 2"048"892 
msrsh; iy hkaf;%damlrK 2"034"319 1"962"796 
ld¾ñl uyk hkaf;%damlrK 8"833"124 1"267"139 
m¾fhaIKd.dr WmlrK 2"048"892 6"936"062 
ùäfhda jevigyka 208"381 52"500 
fmd;a iy iÕrd 3"125 164"388 
wu;r fldgia iy Wmdx. - 339"048 

23"945"918 21"456"927 
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igyk 22 2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 
wfkl=;a úhoï 

Wmdê m%odk ;;ajh ,nd.ekSfï úhoï 1"131"735 791"647 
osúhg Wodk jevigyk - 115"016 
wd¾:sl fiajd .dia;= 752"046 658"985 
ndysr foaYK .dia;= 2"584"032 2"907"175 
ú.Kk .dia;= fjkalsrSï 500"000 400"000 
mqyqKq mdGud,d úhoï 4"323"075 5"710"492 
wfkl=;a úhoï 22'1 534"298 416"228 
ukakdrï YdLdfõ úhoï 22'2 30"914 108"889 

udkj iïm;a j¾Okh - foaYSh 1"139"605 1"295"115 

udkj iïm;a j¾Okh - úfoaYSh 1"372"388 1"207"065 

fiajl iqNidOl - f;a úhoï 1"234"908 939"447 

fiajl ffjoH iqNidOl fhdackd l%uh 1"523"067 1"523"246 

iqNidOl ix.uh 275"000 1"700"000 

md,l uKav, oSukd 642"600 460"000 

m%o¾Yk úhoï 369"023 538"817 

uqoaor .dia;= 35"275 63"220 

jD;a;sh uÕfmkaùfï jevigyk 206"620 233"723 

fnd,aKh fjkalsrSï 356"768 230"828 

m¾fhaIK iy ixj¾Ok wxY úhoï - 9"000 

idudcsl .dia;= w¿;alsrSu 125"774 - 

f.daia mrSCId lsrSfï úhoï 309"000 282"900 

mdi,a ks< weªï mrSCId lsrSfï úhoï 20"644 18"652 

r|jd .ekSfï nÿ 569"038 2"056"596 

cd;sh f.dvke.Sfï nÿ 2% 34"985 19"564 

à'B'iS' iy tï'î'à' idudcsl oSukd - 163"000 

kS;s .dia;= 8"000 32"700 

ú.Kk iy l<ukdlrK lñgq oSukd 120"000 136"654 

jD;Sh idudcsl .dia;= - 145"403 

jd¾Isl w¿;alsrSfï .dia;= 3"291 21"286 

wdydrmdk i|yd úhoï 400"709 184"145 

iy;slm;a m%odk W;aijh 56"596 25"565 

m%ldYk iy iÕrd 781"746 1"094"830 

w.h tl;=lsrSfï noao 1"408 209"646 

fiajl ixj¾Ok wruqo, 732"750 790"802 

20"175"295 24"490"637 

22'1 úúO úhoï 

mqj;am;a ì,am;a 37"700 39"690 
lïlre .dia;= 14"500 4"135 
f.!rj oSukd .dia;= 129"000 65"000 
mrsj¾;k .dia;= - jd¾Isl jd¾;d iy 
wfkl=;a 

95"510 30"205 

jdyk .d,a lsrSfï .dia;= ^î'´'whs'& 950 4"049 
fnfy;a$isiqka i|yd ffjoH m%:udOdr 10"085 6"776 



33 

2018 ^re'& 2017 ^re'& 
fmd;a iy jd¾;d ne|Su 

fmd,a leãfï úhoï 

ùid PdhdrEm 

fgkav¾ ,shú,s 

lEu îu úhoï 

we.hSfï ;Hd. 

w¿;a wjqreÿ iqNme;=ï 

fmaIl¾u wdh;kh 

ì;a;s Trf,daiqj 

ud¿ gexlsh 

msrs;a W;aijh úhoï 

k;a;,a W;aij úhoï 

fjila ieris,s 

l=Kqli, bj;alsrSfï úhoï 

yeªkqïm;a ld¾h uKav, 

mrs;Hd. kdgH 

wOHdmk iy;sl mrSCId lsrSu 

weªï msrsisÿ lsrSfï .dia;= 

rshÿre n,m;% oSukd 

7710 

- 

- 

- 

- 

5"090 

52"000 

- 

- 

2"950 

56"338 

7"300 

43"190 

26"974 

6"500 

5"000 

6"300 

5"395 

3"000 

2"014 

1"600 

2"300 

2"000 

16"371 

6"910 

57"575 

15"000 

3"320 

3"200 

35"000 

- 

67"874 

25"199 

- 

- 

- 

1"000 

2"700 

iïuqL mrSCIK uKav, .dia;= 6"000 8"000 

wfkl=;a úhoï 12"807 16"310 

534"298 416"228 

22'2 ukakdrï YdLdj úhoï 
f;d. .Kka .ekSu 9"620 18"351 

jegqma 
w;sld," .ukaúhoï" i;swka; oSukd 
úÿ,sh 

c, úhoï 

- 

21"294 

- 

- 

42000 

25"850 

11"820 

10"868 

30"914 108"889 

23 uQ,H msrsjeh 

úfoaY úksuh mdvq - 598 

nexl= .dia;= 203"288 155"908 

203"288 156"506 

24 ú,ïì; wdodhu 

rcfha m%odkhkaf.ka ñ,oS .kakd ,o 

ia:djr j;alïj, CIhùï 

23"828"239 19"373"429 

23"828"239 19"373"429 
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] 

jir 
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ls%hdldrlï oelafjk o¾Yl 
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mrSCIK, 

26% 

mqyqKqlsrSï, 

 48% 

WmfoaYl 
fiajd, 
4% 

;dlaIK 
fiajd 
 7% 

fjk;a 
15% 

ls%hdldrs wdodhu 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 
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 83.58 

 43.90  44.80 
 48.64  48.65 

re' ñ,shk 

jir 

mrSCIK wdodhu 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 

 169.5 
 139.0 

170.0 

 202.0 
 178.0 

re'ñ,shk 

jir 

wdodhu 

uq,H m%ldYk jd¾;dj 

wdodhu 

iudf,daÑ;  j¾Ih  i|yd wdh;kh 

jd¾;d l, uq¿ jd¾Isl  

wdodhu re' ñ,shk 177 ls'   

fuh 2017  j¾Ih  iu.  

iei|SfïoS 12] l wvqùula jk w;r 

YsIH ixLHdj wvqùu fuhg m%Odk 

fya;=j ù we;'  

ls%hdldrs wdodhu

fufyhqï wdodhfuka 85] la ;Fj 

mrSCIK" mqyqKq lsrSï iy WmfoaYk 

fiajd u.ska jk w;r fmd<S wdodhu 

^ia:djr ;ekam;=" NdKavd.dr ì,am;a 

iy fláld,Sk ;ekam;= fmd<S& 

m%jdyk wdodhu iy wfkl=;a wdodhï 

u.ska 15] la ,enQ w;r ;dCIK

fiajd u.ska ,enqKq wdodhu 7] ls'  

flfia kuq;a mqyqKqlsrSïj,ska ,enQ 

wdodhu fuu jif¾oS m%Odk wdodhï 

ud¾.h 

úh'  

mrSCIK wdodhu 

fuu jir ;=,oS wdh;kh úiska 

msrsú;r 7502 lska mrSCIK 47"478 

u.ska re' ñ,shk 48'65 l wdodhula

,eîh' fuh miq.sh jir iuÕ 

iei|SfïoS idOdrK jeäùula isÿù 

fkdue;' 
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rcfha yuqod 
22% 

iud.ï 
fiajdodhlhka  

78% 

fiajdodhl úYaf,aIKh 

0 
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56.27 

71.4 

90.8 

113.8 

84.35 

re' 
ñ,shk 

jir 

mqyqKq wdodhu 

mqyqKq lsrSï iy WmfoaYl fiajd 

2018 jif¾oS mqyqKqlsrSï" wdh;kfha uQ,sl 

fiajdj jQ w;r wdh;kfha jd¾;d wkqj 

mqyqKq mdGud,d 137 la mqyqKqjkakka 3"751 

lf.a iyNd.s;ajfhka mj;ajd we;'  mqyqKq 

mdGud,d u.ska ,EnQ wdodhu re' ñ,shk 

84'35 la jQ w;r th 2017 jif¾oS re' 

ñ,shk 113'8 ls'  th 2017 jir iuÕ 

ieioSfïoS 26] l wvqùuls'   

wfkl=;a ls%hdldrlï u.ska ,enQ wdodhu 

wfkl=;a wdodhfuys m%Odk;u wdodhï ud¾.h jQfha ia:sr ;ekam;=" NdKavd.dr ì,am;a iy 

fláld,Sk ;ekam;= wdfhdack u.ska ,enQ fmd<S wdodhu jk w;r m%jdyk wdodhu iy wdmod 

Kh fmd<S wdodhuo Bg we;=,;a fõ' wfkl=;a úúO l%shdldrlï j,ska tkï ksheos j¾K 

.ekaúu" wmkYd,d l=,sh" fgkav¾ ;ekam;= .dia;=" Pdhd msgm;a .dia;= j,sks' 
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úhoï 

        2018  2017 

        re'ñ,shk re'ñ,shk 

 

 fufyhqï wdodhu     177'51  202'88   

 wvq l<d 

 uq¿ fufyhqï úhou     176'68  167'72   

 fufyhqï ,dN$mdvq     0'831  35'16   

 ú,ïî; wdodhu     23'83  19'37   

 wod, ld,h i|yd Y=oaO w;srsla;h$^W!K;djh& 24'66  54'53    

 

fuu jir i|yd uq¿ mqkrdj¾;k úhou re' ñ,shk 176'68 lajQ w;r th miq.sh jif¾oS 

re' ñ,shk 167'72 ls'  miq.sh jir yd iei|SfïoS fuh 5] l jeäùuls'   

 

mqkrdj¾;k úhofuys mrsmd,k iemhqï yd mrsfNdack" fldka;%d;a fiajd" kv;a;= úhoï" 

CIhùï" mdrsf;daIsl fjkalsrSï yd wfkl=;a úhoï wvx.= fõ'  

 

 

uq,H jHqyh 

 

foam< msrsh; iy WmlrK j, Y=oaO w.h re' ñ,shk 154'90 ls'  fuu jir ;=, re' 

ñ,shk 25'5 la wdfhdackh lr we;'  NdKavd.drfha m%;smdok u.ska m%d.aOk m%odk jYfhka 

re' ñ,shk 25 la ,enqKq w;r th f.dvke.s,s boslsrSï i|yd w;a;sldrï jYfhka re' ñ,shk 

5 la o wfkl=;a m%d.aOk j;alï i|yd re' ñ,shk 20 la o jYfhka ,eî ;snqKs'   

 

 wdh;kfha iEu wxYhlskau fuu jif¾ wdodhu 12] lska re' ñ,shk 202 isg 177 olajd 

wvq ù we;' 

 uq¿ úhou 5] lska re' ñ,shk 168 isg 177 olajd jeä ù we;' 

 uq¿ fufyhqï wdodhu re' ñ,shk 35'16 isg re' ñ,shk 0'83 olajd wvq ù we;' 
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2018 jif¾ ls%hdldrlï 

m%Odk wjia:d 

 

ia,sgd ys iïudk,dNS isiqka iï yd mdjyka m%o¾YkfhaoS  
 

 
 

fldaÜfÜ ch,shd l=vd weÕ¨ï wdh;kh újD; lsrSfï W;aijh 
 

  

 
ia,sgd iqNidOl ix.ufha l%slÜ ;rÕdj,sh 
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ia,sgd ji;air wjqreÿ W;aijh 

whsfilaia m%o¾Ykh - nKavdrkdhl wkqiaurK cd;Hka;r iïuka;%K Yd,dj 
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iy;slm;a m%odkh lsrSfï W;aijh 

wOHdmk" jD;a;Sh yd jD;a;S ud¾f.damfoaYk m%o¾Ykh - l=,shdmsáh 
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ämaf,daud iy;sl m%Odfkda;aijh - fk¿ï fmdl=K 

 

 

 

mdjyka ksIamdok ;dlaIKh ms<sn| ld¾h uKav, ixj¾Ok jevigyk 
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iy;slm;a m%odkh lsrSfï W;aijh 

 

 

 

 

ia,sgd ys m¾fhaIK yd ixj¾Ok wxYh weªï i|yd flfi,a ;ka;= kQ,a ksmojd 

gdca iuq¯d ys meje;ajQ ú,dis;d oelafïoS m%o¾Ykh lrk ,o wdldrh   
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2019 jir i|yd wkd.; ie,iqï 

1' wOHhk wruqKq i|yd bf.kqï l<ukdlrK moaO;shla ^LMS& yªkajdoSu'

2' wOHhk wruqKq i|yd B-mqia;ld, myiqlï yªkajdoSu' 

3' flfi,a fl|s" frosms<s kQ,a i|yd irs,k mrsos jdKsc fj<|fmd,g yªkajdoSu' 

4' nx.,dfoaY ú,dis;d wdh;kh iuÕ ämaf,daud iy Wmdê uÜgfï mdGud,d 

i|yd iyfhda.S ls%hdldrlï wdrïN lsrSu' 

5' Wmdê mdGud,d msrskeóu i|yd Wiia wOHdmk wud;HdxYfha wkque;sh ,nd.ekSu' 

6' ämaf,daud mdGud,d i|yd NVQ ;;ajh ,nd.ekSu'

7' bvmyiqlï iys; f.dvke.s,s myiqlï boslsrSu' 

8' ld¾h uKav,h wdpd¾h ;;ajhg f.ktaug Wkkaÿ lsrSu' 

9' <ud weªï i|yd fi!LH yd wdrCIK iy;sl ,ndoSu ls%hd;aul lsrSu' 

10' c,h" wdydr" rn¾ mokï jQ ksIamdok hkdoS wfkl=;a wxY i|yd mrSCIK myiqlï 

mq¿,a lsrSu' 

11' kj ;dlaIK oekqu ,nd.ekSu i|yd foaYSh yd úfoaYSh m¾fhaIK wdh;k iuÕ 

wka;¾cd, myiqlï ia:dms; lsrSu'  



44 



45 



46 



47 



48 



49 



50 



51 



52 



53 





 

“Gilit> Mil kw;Wk; Njhy; nghUl;fspd;

njhopw;WiwfSf;fhd gupNrhjidapy;> Muha;r;rpapYk; 

mgptpUj;jpapYk; kw;Wk; Gj;JUthf;fj;jpy; jdpegH 

NjHr;rpia tpUj;jp nra;tjw;Fk; kw;Wk; MNyhrid 

toq;Ftjw;Fk; cyfshtpauPjpapy; ,dq;fhzg;gl;l 

epiyakhf tpsq;Fjy;.”  

“Gilit> Njhy; nghUl;fs; kw;Wk; Mil> mj;Jld; epiyahd

mgptpUj;jpia ehLfpd;w ,ize;j njhopw;Wiwfspd; cw;gj;jpj;jpwDs;s 

nghUl;fspd;> Nritfspd; juj;ij kw;Wk; $l;bize;j kjpg;gpid 

mjpfupg;gjw;F Njh;r;rpAs;s> rpwg;ghf gapw;Wtpf;fg;gl;l kdpj 

%yjdj;ij> ek;gj;jF epGzj;Jtj;ij kw;Wk; Gj;JUthf;fkhd 

jPHTfis toq;Fjy;”

njhiy Nehf;F 
vkJ 

 

nraw;gzp 
vkJ 

  





vkJ 
Nritf

s; 

gapw;rpasp
j;jy; 

gupNrhji
d 

njhopy;E
Zf;f 

Nritfs; 

MNyhri
d 

toq;Fjy; 





epWtfk; gw;wpa jfty;fs; 

epWtfj;jpd; ngaH : ,yq;if Gilitfs;> kw;Wk; Milfs; epWtfk; 

Kftup : fe;jnty Njhl;lk;> ,y.02 

n[dwy; NrH N[hd; nfhj;jyhty khtj;ij> 

,uj;kyhid.  

gjpT : 2009 Mk; Mz;bd; 12 Mk; ,yf;fr; rl;lk; 

rl;luPjpahd mikg;G : epajpr;rl;lr; rig 

tupir mikr;R : ifj;njhopy; kw;Wk; thzpgk; 

gzpg;ghsHfs; rig  :  jpU. vk;. V. jh[{Bd; (jiyth;)

 jpU. nuha; [arpq;` - rig MNyhrfH

 jpU. Nf. vr;. ge;Jy ngHdhe;J

 lhf;lH. ]P. vd;. N`uj;

 lhf;lH. A+. [P. v];. tpN[ghy

 jpU. ,. V. vd;. v];. ngNuuh

 jpU. V. vy;. vk;. ]ypk;

 jpU. lgps;A. b. A. rpy;th

 jpU. gPypf;]; ngu;dhe;J

 jpUkjp. MH. vk;. [ae;jp
 jpU. [ghh; rj;jhh;

 jpU. `u;~ tpN[tu;jd

fzf;fha;thsH : fzf;fha;thsH mjpgjp jpizf;fsk; 

njhiyNgrp ,y. : 2632406/2636336/2636337 

njhiyefy; ,y. : 2636337 

kpd;dQ;ry; : director@textile-clothing.lk 





nghUslf;fk; 

gf;fk; 

    epWtfk; gw;wpaNjhH fz;Nzhl;lk;  54-56

    nrayhw;Wif gw;wpa ntspg;gLj;jy;fs;  57-58

    gzpg;ghsH mjpgjpapd; nra;jp 59 

    jtprhsupd; nra;jp 60 

    gzpg;ghsupd; nghWg;Gfs; gw;wpa $w;W 61 

    fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffs; 62-64

    nghJthd ntspg;ghLfs; 65-67

    epjp epiyikf; $w;Wf;fs;  68 

    epjpr; nrayhw;Wiff; $w;W  69 

    gz Xl;lf; $w;W 70 

    epfu nrhj;Jf;fspy; / gq;Ffspy; khw;wq;fs; gw;wpa $w;W 71 

    epjpf; $w;Wf;fspd; Fwpg;Gfs; 72-82

    nrayhw;Wifr; Rl;bfs; 83-84

    epjpf; $w;Wf;fs; njhlHghd mwpf;if 85-88

2018 Mk; Mz;L nraw;ghLfs;  89-93

2019 Mk; Mz;L vjpu;fhyj; jpl;lq;fs; 94 

   fzf;fha;thsu; ehafj;jpd; mwpf;if 95-100
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epWtfk; gw;wpaNjhH fz;Nzhl;lk; 

mwpKfk ; 

,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfkhdJ> Gilit kw;Wk; Milj; njhopw;Wiwapd; 
cyfshtpa tHj;jfj;jpy; Kd;dzpapypUg;gJld;> ,e;epWtfk; mtHfsJ ntw;wpf;Fg; 
gq;fspg;Gr; nra;Js;sikahy; njhopw;Wiwapypuf;fpd;w jahupg;ghsh;fshy; ,e;epWtfj;jpd; 
,Ug;G Vw;Wf;nfhs;sg;gLfpd;wJ. vkJ epWtfk;> tzpfj;jpy; mth;fsJ nrhe;jr; nraw;ghL 
fspy; njhopw;Wiw mD$q;fisg; gpd;njhluf;$ba tifapy; gupNrhjid> gapw;rpaspj;jy; 
kw;Wk; MNyhrid Nritfspy; njhopw;Wiwf;F Nghl;bapLk; jd;ikf;fhd jFjpia 
toq;Ffpd;wJ. ,jd; tpisthf> njhopw;WiwahsHfs;> cau;jukhd nghUl;fspdhy; 
caHe;jstpy; gzk; <l;lf;$ba me;j];jpid miltjw;fhd mtHfspd; ,aYikapd; 
cr;rj;jpw;F tpUj;jpaila Kbe;Js;sJ. ,e;jg; Nghf;F> vkJ epWtfj;jpd; gq;fspg;Gld; 
epiyj;jpUe;J> njhlHr;rpahf ePbj;Jr; nry;tJld;> mwptpidj; J}z;Lfpd;w rf;jpahf ehk;> 
etPd njhopw;Wiwapd; Nfs;tpfs; kw;Wk; Njitg;ghLfSld; NrHe;J tsHtjw;F 
vz;zpAs;Nshk;. 

Gilit kw;Wk; Milj; njhopw;Wiwapd; cyf fsj;jpy;> cw;gj;jpj; jsj;jpy; Gjpa 
njhopy;EZf;fj;jpd; tpUj;jpfSld;> Nghf;Ffs; rf;jpkpf;fitahfTk; Gul;rpfukhdit 
ahfTk; ,Ug;gJld;> gad;gLj;JgtHfs;> jkJ jpUg;jpf;Nfw;g rupahd cw;gj;jpg; nghUis 
njupT nra;tjpy; Kd;ndg;NghJkpy;yhjthW Gj;jprhJupakhdtHfshf ,Uf;fpd;wdH. mjd; 
tpisthf> jahupg;ghsHfs; jw;NghJ> gad;gLj;JgtHfspd; ehbj; Jbg;gpw;Fg;  nghUe;Jk; 
tifapy; re;ijf;Fr; nry;fpd;w jkJ jahupg;Gfs; gw;wp tpsf;fkhf ,Uf;fpd;wdH. jw;NghJ> 
re;ijapy; rpwe;j> gytPdkw;w nghUl;fis thbf;ifahsHfs; ghHf;fpd;wikahy;> nghUl; 
fSf;Fk; gad;gLj;Jgth;fspd; kdepiyf;Fkpilapy; Nghl;bj; jd;iknahd;W epyTfpd;wJ. 

,r;nrad;Kiwapy;> gapw;rpaspf;fpd;w epWtdnkhd;whf ,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtf 
khdJ> ,j;njhopw;Wiwf;F njhiyNehf;Fs;s jiytHfis cUthf;Ffpd;w epWtd 
nkhd;whf tUfpd;wJ. ,J njhlHgpy; gpugy;akhd Gilit> Mil cyfpw;F toq;F 
tjw;F mjd; Kf;fpakhd Nritfshd gupNrhjid> gapw;rpaspj;jy; kw;Wk; MNyhrid 
Nritfis mJ toq;Ftjdhy;> ,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfj;jpd; tfpghfk; kpfTk; 
Kf;fpakhdjhFk;. cyf re;ijj; jsj;jpy; fpilf;fg;ngwhj tha;g;Gfspy; ftdQ;nrYj;Jk; 
Nehf;fpy;> ,e;epWtfkhdJ> jw;NghJ ghlrhiyapypUe;J tpyfpath;fs; kw;Wk; gy;NtW 
epiyfspYKs;s njhopw;Wiw Ml;fs; Mfpa ,UtiuAk; gapw;Wtpg;gjw;F 
Cf;Ftpf;fpd;wJ.  

fle;j Mz;Lfspy;> epWtfk;> gapw;rpaspf;fpd;w nraw;ghLfspD}lhf tUkhdj;jpd; ngwf; 
;$ba gq;fpidg; ngw;Ws;sJld;> gupNrhjidapy; tUkhdk; ruhrupahfNt ngwg;gl;Ls;sJ. 
cz;ikapy;> khztHfs;; tpiuthf mjpfupj;J Mapuf;fzf;fpid miltJld;>  vjpH 
tUfpd;w Mz;Lfspy; cs;nsLg;Gfis mjpfupg;gjw;F NkYk; trjpfs; jpl;lkplg;gLfpd;wd. 
NkYk;> cw;gj;jpj;jpwd; vd;w vz;zf;fU mbj;jsq;fisg; ngw;Wf;nfhz;bUf;fpd;wikahy;> 
cs;ehl;L kw;Wk; ntspehl;Lr; re;ijfspy; Nghl;bapLk;; Nehf;fpy; cw;gj;jpj;jpwdpy; 
nrk;ikg;gLj;jy;fisj; Njitg;gLfpd;w me;j njhopw;WiwahsHfSf;F rpwg;Gkpf;f gapw;rp 
epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs; toq;fg;gLfpd;wd. ,jw;F rkhe;jukhf> trjpfs; Fiwe;j khtl;lq; 
fspYs;s r%fq;fSf;F mwptpid toq;Ftjw;fhf Fbirf; ifj;njhopiy mbg;gil 
ahff; nfhz;l gapw;rpg; ghlnewpfs; epWtfj;jpd; Nritfspd; ika epiyia vLf;fpd;wJ. 
mjdhy;> r%fq;fs; epiyahd tho;thjhuj;jpD}lhf mtHfspd; tho;f;ifj; juj;ij 
caHj;j Kbfpd;wJ.  
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MSeHfs; rig 

epWtfj;jpd; nfhs;if kw;Wk; rl;lthf;fj;jpd; kPJ jPHkhdnkLg;gjw;fhd mjpfhuk; MSeh;fs; 

rigf;F cupj;jspf;fg;gLtJld;> gzpg;ghsH mjpgjp rigapd; jPHkhdq;fis 

epiwNtw;Wfpd;whh;. rigf; $l;lq;fs; xt;nthU khjKk; elj;jg;gLtJld;> mq;fj;jtHfs; 

epWtfj;jpd; Kd;Ndw;wk;> nraw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; njhopw;ghLfSf;fhd topfhl;ly; 

njhFg;gpidAk; kPsha;fpd;wdh;. 

2018.12.31 ,Ys;sthwhd rig 

1 jpU.vk;.V.jh[{Bd; jtprhsH   ifj;njhopy; kw;Wk; thzpg 
mikr;R 

2 NguhrpupaH.rp.vd;.N`uj; mq;fj;jtH jpwe;j gy;fiyf;fofk; 

3 NguhrpupaH (jpUtjp) 
A.[p.v];.tp[aghy

mq;fj;jtH nkhwl;Ltg; gy;fiyf;fofk; 

4 jpU.lgps;A.jdQ;ra A rpy;th mq;fj;jtH Gilit cw;gj;pahsu; xd;wpak; 

5 jpU.Nf.vr;.ge;Jy ngHdhe;J mq;fj;jtH Mil Vw;Wkjpahsu; xd;wpa 
rkh[k;  

6 jpU.gPypf;]; ngHdhe;J mq;fj;jtH ,yq;if Mil Vw;Wkjpahsu; 
xd;wpak; 

7 jpU.[thu; rjhH mq;fj;jtH ,yq;if Mil Vw;Wkjpahsu; 
xd;wpak

8 jpUkjp.MH.vk;.[ae;jp mq;fj;jtH epjp> jpl;lkply; mikr;R 

9 jpU.`H\ tp[atHjd mq;fj;jtH ifj;njhopy; kw;Wk; thzpg 
mikr;R 

10 jpU.,.V.vd;.v];. ngNuuh mtjhdpg;ghsu; 

11 jpU.V.vy;.vk;.ryPk; mq;fj;jtH mgptpUj;jp cghaq;fs; kw;Wk; 
rHtNjr njhopy; mikr;R

12 jpU.N[ha; [arpq;f MNyhrfh; ifj;njhopy; kw;Wk; thzpg 
mikr;R mgptpUj;jp  
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2018.12.31 ,y; cs;s gjtpapdH 
 

nkhj;jg; gjtpapdH – 110 
 
 
     tifg;ghL 

 

Kfhikj;JtKk; 
njhopw;ghLk 

 njhopy;El;gk;/ 
njhopw;ghL 

epjp;      nghJ / 
   epUthfk; 

gzpahsHfs;         05        48      05            34 

gapYeH         -        8       -              - 

xg;gil         -        10       -             - 

 
jpU.V.NwhNgl; gPup];  -      gzpg;ghsh; mjpgjp  
     B.Sc (Eng.) Hons,PG Dip IE,MA Dev.studies & Public Policy 
                    MCPM(SL) 
    
jpU.v];.,sq;Nfhtd; -      gzpg;ghsh; (gapw;rp kw;Wk; njhopy;EZf;fk;)  

                           B.Sc. (Eng.) (Text),MBA,AMIE(SL) 

 
jpU.gP.tp.v];.tp[auj;d  -      gzpg;ghsH (njhopw;ghLfs;) 

       M.Sc.(MIT),M.Sc(Mgt.),B.Tech(Eng.)Hons 

                                                                            AMIE(SL),LLB(UG) 

 
jpU.vk;.gP.fd;dq;fu   -      epUthf KfhikahsH>MBA(P.I.M.) 
                                                            B.Sc.(Col.),PG.Dip in International   Re.(BCIS) 

     Dip.in American Professional Qualification-HRM 

                 LLB (UG),Diploma in Legal Studies. 

 
jpUkjp.it.V.gP.[p.ahgh -     fzf;fhsH, B.Com. (Special) , CBA 

 
jpU.vk;.v];.vk;.,y;`hk; - mff; fzf;fha;thsH 
     HNDA,ACPM 
       

 
rpNu\;l gjtpapdH (njhopy;El;;gk;) 

 
jpU.[p.Nf.Nf.v];.Fkhu    - rpNu\;l njhopy;El;gtpayH  
     B.Sc.(Eng.) (Text),MBA,AMIE(SL) 
 

jpU.gp.vy;.v];.gP.ep\he;j  - njhopy;El;g gapw;rp mYtyH> B.Sc. (Hons.),M.Sc.(Text.) 
 

jpU.N[.gP.rkuNfhd;          - njhopy;El;g gapw;rp mYtyH> NDT (Mech) 
 

jpUkjp.Nf.V.MH.tp.mgatHjd - njhopy;El;g gapw;rp mYtyH> NDT (Text. Tech.) 
 

jpU.Nf.n[fjPrd; - rpNu\;l njhopy;El;gtpayH  
   B.Sc.(Eng.)(Text),M.Sc.(Text),AMIE(SL) 

jpU.lgps;A.vk;.v];.Nf.tp[aghF - rpNu\;l njhopy;El;gtpayH,  
    B.Sc. (Eng.),M.Sc,AMIE(SL) 
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gzpg;ghsH mjpgjpapd; nra;jp 

,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfk; njhopw;Wiwf;F jdJ jpwikahd Nrit toq;fYld; 

njhopw;Wiwf;F Kd;dzp Nrit toq;Feuhf jw;NghJ gpugy;akile;Js;sJ. ,e;j 

epWtfj;ij ,af;Ftjw;F jiyik tfpg;gij ehd; ngUikahf fUJfpd;Nwd;. NkYk;> 

njhopw;WiwapYs;s rthy;fSld; mjd; ntw;wpf;F epWtdj;ij ,l;Lr; nry;tJ vdJ 

jiyaha flik vd;W ehd; ek;Gfpd;Nwd;. ,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfk;> gapw;rp 

aspj;jy;> gupNrhjid> MNyhrid kw;Wk; njhopy;El;g  Nritfs; vd;w epajpfspy; 

njhopw;Wiwf;F jdJ Kf;fpa gzpfis toq;Ftjw;Fupa Kjd;ikahd epWtfk; vd;w 

rpwg;igg; ngw;Wf;nfhz;Ls;sJ. jw;NghJ> re;ijapy;> nryT> juk; kw;Wk; njhopw;WiwapYs;s 

Nghf;Ffs; Mfpa %d;Wk; kpfTk; Nghl;bj;jd;ikahd cyfr; re;ijf; fl;likg;gpid tpUj;jp 

nra;fpd;w gjq;fshFk; vd;gJld;> Nrit toq;Feupd; Kf;fpa gq;fpid tfpg;gtuhf 

epWtffj;jpd; gq;fspg;G> njhopw;Wiwapy; mjdJ Kf;fpa ,lj;ij <l;bas;sJ. MfNt> 

Glit kw;Wk; Mil fsj;jpd Nritfspy; Kd;Ndhb jhgdkhf ehk;> re;ijapy; fhz;fpd;w 

juk; kw;Wk; nryTfs; vd;w gjq;ffspd; Kd;dpiyapy; Nritapd; rpwg;Gj; juj;ijg; ngw;Wf; 

nfhs;tjw;F Kaw;rpj;jy; Ntz;Lk;. 

,e;epWtfk;> mjdJ tUthapy; mjpfupg;gpidf; fhl;b> mjd; epjpr; nrayhw;Wifapy; 

tsHr;rpiaf; fhl;Lfpd;wJ. NkYk;> gapw;rpaspj;jyhdJ njhopw;Wiwfspd;  Nfs;tpfSf;Fg;  

nghUe;Jk; tifapy; Gjpa fw;ifnewpfis mwpKfg;gLj;Jtjpy; Gjpa Muk;gj;ij vLj;Js;s 

mNjrkak; vjpHfhy njhopyjpgHfSf;F mtHfsJ thzpgj;ijr; nrk;ikg;gLj;Jtjw;F 

mtHfspd; Ntz;LNfhspd;Ngupy; MNyhridr; NritfSk; fpilf;fg;ngwr;nra;ag;gl;ld. 

mNjNghd;W> cw;gj;jpj;jpwidr; nrk;ikg;gLj;Jk; epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lk;> kw;Wk; rpwpa> eLj;ju 

mstpyhd njhopy;Kaw;rpfs; gapw;rp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; njhopyjpgHfspd; cw;gj;jpj;jpwid 

tYg;gLj;Jtjpy; kw;Wk; njhopw;wpwid Nkk;gLj;Jtjpy; jkJ nrhe;j jFjpfisf; nfhz;L 

nry;fpd;wd.  

2018 Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd epjpr; nraw;ghLfs; gw;wpa gjpTfs;> gzpahsHfspd; <Lghl;Lf;F 

vLj;jpak;gpAs;s  ntspg;gilahd ngWngWfshf> fle;j fhy nrayhw;Wifia tpl …… 
mjpfupg;nghd;Wld;> MNuhf;fpakhd  Nghf;fpidf; fhl;Lfpd;w mNjNtisapy;> ,e;epWtfk; 

mjd; thzpgj;jpy; vjpHtUk; Mz;Lfspy; epr;rakhd ghijnahd;wpy; ntw;wpfukhf gazpj;Jf; 

nfhz;bUf;fpd;wJ. vjpHfhyj;jpy; ehk; Kd;Ndwpr; nry;tjw;Fupa epiwthd topia> vkJ 

epWtdk; nropg;giltjw;F njhlHGila gy;ypd tha;g;Gfisg; ghh;f;fpd;Nwhk; vd;gJld;> 

nfsut mikr;rH wp\hl; gjpAjPd; mtu;fshy; toq;fg;gl;l jlq;fyw;w xj;Jiog;gpidAk;> 

jtprhsuhy;> MSeHfs; rigahy; kw;Wk; rf gzpahsh;fshy; fhl;lg;gl;l  Mu;tj;ijAk; 

ehd; cz;ikapy; ghuhl;Lfpd;Nwd;. 

epWtdk; mjd; xt;nthU Kaw;rpapYk; ntw;wpaila Ntz;Lnkd;W ehd; tho;j;Jfpd;Nwd;. 

ed;wp. 

NwhNgl;.tp.gPup];>nghwpapayhsH 
gzpg;ghsH mjpgjp  
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jtprhsupd; nra;jp 

 
,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfk;> ,j;njhopw;Wiwf;F Kd;Ndhb Nrit toq;Feuhf Glit 

kw;Wk; Milj;Jiw tHj;jf cyfpy; Kd;dzp tfpg;gJld;> tUlhe;jk; RkhH 4000 

khztHfSld;  epWtfj;jhy; toq;fg;gLfpd;w Vida NritfSf;Fs;> gapw;rpaspj;jy; 

Kf;fpa ,lj;ij tfpf;fpd;wJ. toq;fg;gl;l fw;if newpfs;> rhd;wpjo; vd;gjpypUe;J 

bg;GNshkh kl;lk; tiu NtWgl;L njhopw;WiwapypUe;J mjpfstpy; Ntz;lg;gLtJld;> 

midj;J khztHfSk; gzk; <l;lf;$ba> tskhd njhopy;tha;g;Gfspy; <LgLfpd;wdH vd;W 

$wpf;nfhs;tjpy; ehk; ngUikailfpd;Nwhk;. 

gapw;rpaspg;gjpy; mLj;j fl;lj;ij milAk; Nehf;fpy;> ,e;epWtfk;> ,e;jpa gy;fiyf;fof 

nkhd;wpd; xUq;fpizg;Gld; vd;gjw;fg;ghy;> 2020 Mk; Mz;lstpy; nrhe;jkhf rhd;wspf;Fk; 

gl;lnkhd;iw toq;Ftjw;fhfj; jpl;lkpLtJld;> fw;ifnewpapd; ghltpjhdk; ‘xg;upnuf;];’, 
,yj;jpudpay; ,ae;jpu kpd;dZtpay; rpWEl;gf;fUtpfs; Nghd;w mj;jifa etPd nkd; 

nghUSld; $ba njhopw;Wiwapd; vjph;ghh;g;Gfis epiwNtw;Wtjw;fhf Gjpa fw;gpj;jy; 

njhopy;El;gq;fSld; njhlHr;rpahf ehsJtiug;gl;Lf; nfhz;bUf;fpd;wJ. ,J> fw;gpj;jy; 

gPlj;jpw;F toq;fg;gl;l tha;g;Gfspdhy;  epiwNtw;wg;gLfpd;wJ> Mifahy;> kdpjtsq;fs; 

vjpHfhyj; Njitfis epiwNtw;Wtjw;F juKaHj;jg;gl;Ls;sdH. ,J> epWtdnkhd;whf 

,aq;Fifapy;> ehk; jw;NghJ> Muha;r;rpr; nraw;ghLfspy; Gj;JUthf;f  tha;g;Gfis 

mjpfupj;Js;sJld;> thio E}y; gpupj;njLj;jy; fUj;jpl;lk; kPJ ghuhl;lj;jF Kaw;rp 

jPtpug;gLj; jg;gLfpd;wJ. cj;Njrpf;fg;gl;l fUj;jpl;lk; Gilitj; njhopw;Wiwf;Fk; kw;Wk; 

kWtifapy; ngupastpy; ed;ikailfpd;w thioj; Njhl;l fkf;fhuH r%fj;jpw;Fk; gpd;jq;fpa 

xUq;fpizg;Gr; nraw;ghnlhd;whf ghupastpy; ehl;bw;Fr; Nritahw;Wfpd;wJ.  

,e;epWtfk;> mjd; ISO 17025 rhd;Wg;gLj;jpa Ma;T$lj;jpd; ,aYikia> njhopw;Wiwapy; 

Ntz;lg;gLfpd;w mjpfstpyhd gupNrhjidf;F juKaHj;jg;gl;l trjpfisf; nfhz;L NkYk; 

gyg;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ. jw;NghJ> Njhy; kw;Wk; ghjzp Nrhjidfis Mw;Wtjw;F> mNj 

Nghd;W njhopw;WiwapypUe;J Ntz;lg;gl;ltw;wpw;Fk; trjpfs; tpupthf;fg;gl;Ls;sd. gapw;rp 

aspj;jy;> gupNrhjid kw;Wk; MNyhridr; Nritfspy; Vw;Wkjpia Mw;Wg;gLj;jpa njhopw; 

Wiwf;Fg; ghupastpy; gq;fspg;Gr; nra;Js;sJ vd;gijAk;> mjidj; njhlHe;J epWtfk; 

jdJ njhopw;ghl;L nraw;ghLfspD}lhf epjp epiyikapy; jd;dpiwtpid mile;Js;sJ 

vd;gijAk; $Wtjpy; ehk; ngUikg;gLfpd;Nwhk;. 

 

vk;.V.jh[{Bd; 
jtprhsH 
,yq;if Gilit>Mil epWtfk; 
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gzpg;ghsH mjpgjpapd; nghWg;Gf;fs; gw;wpa $w;W 

epWtfj;jpd; epjprhh; $w;Wf;fs; njhlHghd gzpg;ghsupd; nghWg;Gf;fs; 

fzf;fha;thsupd; nghWg;GfspypUe;J NtWgLfpd;wd. 

epjpr; rl;lj;jpd; Vw;ghLfSf;F mikthf> epjpapay; Mz;bd; ,Wjpapy; epWtf mYty;fspd; 

epiy kw;Wk; epjpapay; Mz;Lf;fhd mjd; njhopw;ghl;bd; tpisTfs; njhlHgpy; 

cz;ikahd> NeHikahd Njhw;wj;ijj; jUfpd;w xt;nthU epjpapay; Mz;Lf;fhd epjpapay; 

$w;Wf;fisj; jahupg;gjw;F gzpg;ghsH Njitg;gLj;jg;gLfpd;whH. 

,e;j epjpapay; $w;Wf;fisj; jahupg;gjpy; nghUj;jkhd fzf;fpay; nfhs;iffs; njupT 

nra;ag;gl;L> ,irthd Kiwapy; mit gpuNahfpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJld;> epahakhdJk;> kjpEl;g 

Ks;s jPh;g;G kw;Wk; gpuNahfpf;ff;$baJld; njhlHGgl;lthwhd midj;J fzf;fpay; 

epakq;fSk; gpd;gw;wg;gl;Ls;sd vd;W gzpg;ghsh; fUJfpd;whH. 

njhopw;ghl;bidj; njhlHtjw;F epWtfk; NghjpasT tsq;fisf; nfhz;Ls;sJ vd;gJld;> 

,e;j epakq;fisj; jahupg;gjpy; eilKiwapYs;s mf;fiwapd; mbg;gil gpuNahfpf;fg; 

gl;Ls;sJ vd;gjpYk; gzpg;ghsH ek;gpf;if nfhz;bUf;fpd;whH. NkYk;> gzpg;ghsH> epahakhd 

rPuhd jd;ik> epWtfj;jpd; epjpapay; epiyikia ntspg;gLj;Jtjw;F NgjpasT fzf;fpay; 

gjpTfis epWtdk; guhkupf;fpd;wJ vd;gij cWjpg;gLj;Jjy; kw;Wk; rkHg;gpf;fg; gl;l epjpapy; 

$w;Wf;fs; epjpr; rl;lj;Jld; ,zq;Ffpd;wd vd;gij cWjpg;gLj;Jjy; Mfpa 

nghWg;Gf;fisAk; nfhz;Ls;shH. 

gzpg;ghsH> epWtfj;jpd; nrhj;Jf;fisg; ghJfhg;gjw;fhf epahakhd eltbf;iffis 

vLg;gjw;Fk;> ,J njhlHghd Nkhrbfs; kw;Wk; xOq;fPdq;fisj; jLg;gjw;Fk;> Njhw;fbg; 

gjw;Fk; nghUj;jkhd mff; fl;Lg;ghl;L Kiwikiaj; jhgpg;gjpy; cupa ftdj;ij nrYj;J 

tjw;fhd nghWg;gpidAk; nfhz;Ls;shH. 

gzpg;ghsh; ,r;nra;jpapy; jug;gl;Ls;sthW mtUila nghWg;Gf;fis epiwNtw;wpAs;shH 

vd;gjpy; ek;gpf;if nfhs;fpd;whH. gzpg;ghsH> Ie;njhifapYs;sthW epWtdj;jpdhy; 

nfhLg;gdT nra;ag;gl;l jpfjp my;yJ ,iaghdtplj;J> toq;fg;gl;lthwhd midj;J 

epajpr;rl;l nfhLg;gdTfis mtuJ mwpTf;F vl;batiuapy; cWjpg;gLj;Jfpd;whH. 
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fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffs; 

,e;j epjprhh; $w;Wf;fisj; jahupg;gjpy; iff;nfhs;sg;gl;l Kf;fpa fzf;fPl;Lf; 
nfhs;ifs;  fPNo jug;gl;Ls;sd: 

1. jahupg;gpd; mbg;gilfs;

(i) epjpapay; $w;Wf;fs;>  ,yq;if mur Jiw fzf;fPl;L epakq;fSf;fik
thfTk; jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. epjprhH $w;Wf;fs; eilKiwapypUf;fpd;w
mbg;gilapd; kPJ jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJld;> fzf;fPl;Lf;nfhs;if ,f;fhyg;gFjp
KOtJk; njhlHr;rpahf gad;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ.

(i) fyz;lH Mz;L epWtfj;jpd; epjp Mz;lhFk;.

(iii) 1971 Mk; Mz;bd; 38 Mk; ,yf;f epjpr; rl;lk; epWtfj;jpd; epjpf;
fl;Lg;ghLfs; kw;Wk; fzf;Ffs; njhlHgpy; gpuNahfpf;fg;glw;ghyJ.

fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffs; 

1. nrhj;J> nghwpj; njhFjp kw;Wk; cgfuzk;

epyk; jtpHe;j midj;Jr; nrhj;Jf;fs;> nghwpj; njhFjp kw;Wk; cgfuzk; vd;gd
jpul;ba Nja;khdj;ijf; fopj;J tuyhw;Wr; nryT/kjpg;gPl;by; njuptpf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

nryT vd;gJ> Mjdnkhd;wpid mjd; gad;ghl;bw;fhf njhopw;gLk; epiyikf;Ff;
nfhz;L tUtjw;F Neubahf Rkj;jf;$ba midj;Jr; nryTfisAk; cs;slf;fpa
jhFk;. Mjdnkhd;wpd; tho;f;iff; fhyj;ij cz;ikapy; gad;gLj;jf;$ba
tho;f;iff; fhykhf kjpg;gpl;ljpYk; ghHf;f mtw;wpid ePbj;jhy; my;yJ mwtplf;
$ba ngWkjpia mjpfupj;jhy; Kf;fpakhd GJg;gpj;jy;fs; KjyPlhf;fg;gLk;. guhkupg;G>
jpUj;jq;fs; kw;Wk; rpwpauf GJg;gpj;jy;fs; cwg;gl;ljhf tUkhdkhf
mwtplg;gLfpd;wd.

cl;fl;likg;G> nghwpj;njhFjpAk; cgfuzj;jpw;Fkhd nrythdJ> njuptpf;fg;gLfpd;w
jpul;ba Nja;khdj;Jld; Ie;njhifapypUe;J ePf;fg;gLfpd;wJ. ngWiffs; kw;Wk;
el;lq;fs; vd;gd mit nfhz;Ls;s njhif njhlHgpdhy; jPHkhdpf;fg;gLtJld;>
njhopw;gL ,yhgj;ijj; jPHkhdpg;gjpy; ftdj;jpnyLf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

2. 2. Nja;khdk;

Nja;khdj;jpw;fhd Vw;ghL> xj;j jtizf;fl;lzq;fspy; kjpg;gplg;gl;l
gpd;tUfpd;w gaDs;s gad;ghl;L fhyk; kPjhd njhiffis gjptopg;Gr;
nra;Ak; Nehf;fpy; Mjdk;> nghwpj;njhFjp kw;Wk; cgfuzk; njhlHghd
nrytpd; kPJ Neub Kiwik iag; gad;gLj;jp fzpf;fg;gLfpd;wJ.

gpd;tUfpd;w tPjq;fs; Nja;khdj;jpw;fhfg; gpuNahfpf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

fl;llk;   2.5% 2.5%
nghwpj;njhFjpAk; cgfuzKk;; 10% 
jsghlq;fSk; nghUj;Jf;fSk;> cgfuzq;fSk;; 10% 10%
cztf cgfuzq;fs; 10% 
Nkhl;lhH thfdq;fs; 10% 

fzdpfs; &  nkd;nghUl;fs; 20% 

Gj;jfq;fSk; gUt ntspaPLfSk; 10% 
Ma;T$l cgfuzq;fs; 10% 
fl;Gy epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 25% 

njhopy;rhH ijay; ,ae;jpuk; 10% 
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KOj; Nja;khdkhdJ Kjy; miu Mz;by; ngwg;gl;l Mjdq;fSf;fhf 
mwtplg;gLtJld;> 50% Nja;khdk; Mz;bd; ,uz;lhtJ miuahz;bd;NghJ 
ngwg;gLtjw;fhf mwtplg;gLfpd;wJ. 

3. nghUl;gl;bay; 

nghUl;gl;bay; midj;Jk; epWtfj;jpd; Nritfis toq;Ftjpy; epWtfj;jpdhy; 
gad;gLj;Jtjw;nfd itf;fg;gLfpd;wd. nghUl;gl;bayhdJ> Mff; Fiwe;j nrytPdk; 
kw;Wk; epfu cz;ikg; ngWkjpiaf; fhl;Lfpd;wd. nrythdJ Kjypy; te;jJ Kjypy; 

NghtJ vd;w Kiwapy;; (FIFO) jPh;khdpf;fg;gLfpd;wJ. 

4. tHj;jf ngWiffs;

tHj;jf ngWiffs;> cz;ikahd tpiyg;gl;bay; njhiffisf; nfhz;L 
nra;ag;gLfpd;wd. 

5. gzKk; gzj;jpw;F rkkhditAk;

gz Xl;lf; $w;wpd; Nehf;fj;jpw;fhf> ifapYs;s gzk; kw;Wk; gzj;jpw;F
ngWkjpahdtw;iw cs;slf;fpapUf;fpd;w kw;Wk; %d;W khjq;fs; my;yJ mjw;Ff;
Fiwe;j cz;ikahd KjpHr;rpiaAila Vida FWfpa fhyj;jpy; $ba jputj;
jd;ikahd KjyPLfs; vd;gitahFk;.

6. Vw;ghLfs;

Vw;ghLfshdit> epWtdk; fle;j fhy epfo;Tfspd; tpisthf jw;Nghija rl;lk;
my;yJ mikg;Gtop flg;ghLfisf; nfhz;bUf;fpd;w NghJ mq;fPfupf;fg;gLfpd;wd.
mJ cz;ikapy;> tsq;fs; Nkyjpfkhd flg;ghLfisj; jPHg;gjw;F Njitg;
gLj;jg;gLk; vd;gJld; flg;ghl;bd; ek;gpf;ifahd kjpg;gPl;Lj; njhifnahd;iwAk;
nra;a KbAk;.

7. ntspehl;L ehza khw;wy;fs;

ntspehl;L ehza khw;wy;fs;> khw;wy; jpfjpfspy; ,Ue;j khw;wy; tPjj;jpy;
fzf;fplg;gLfpd;wd. mj;jifa  khw;wy;fspd; nfhLg;gdTfspypUe;jhd ngWiffs;
kw;Wk; ,og;Gf;fs; tuTf; $w;wpy; mq;fPfupf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

8 taJ KjpHT Xa;T

Nrit KbT eyd;fshdit> 1983 Mk; Mz;L 12 Mk; ,yf;f gzpf; nfhilr;

rl;lj;jpd; kw;Wk; LKAS 19 ,d; fPo; epWtfj;jpy; xU tUl Nritia G+Hj;jpnra;Js;s
gzpahsHfSf;F toq;fg;gLfpd;wd. mbg;gil Ntjdk;> tho;f;ifr; nryTg;gb kw;Wk;
tpNrl tho;f;ifg; gbapidAk; cs;slf;Ffpd;wJ.

9. tiuaWf;fg;gl;l cjTnjhifj; jpl;lk;

epWtdj;jpd; midj;J gzpahsh;fSk;> tho;f;ifr; nryTg; gb> tpNrl tho;f;ifg; gb

vd;gtw;Wld; mj;jifa gzpahsHfspd; mbg;gil Ntjdj;jpy; KiwNa 12%, 3%
nfhLg;gdtpid epWtfk; nra;fpd;w CopaH Nrkyhg epjpak; kw;Wk; CopaH
ek;gpf;ifg; nghWg;G epjpak; Mfpatw;wpd; mq;fj;jtHfshthHfs;.
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10. tUthia ,dq;fhZjy; 
 

tUthahdJ> Njwpa ngWkjp NrHf;fg;gl;l tup> Njrj;ijf; fl;bnaOg;Gk; tup kw;Wk; 
fopg;gdTfspd;; Njwpa tpw;gid NritfSf;fhd tpiyg;gl;bayplg;gl;l ngWkjp  kPJ 
NrHjy; mbg;gilapy;  ,dq;fhzg;gLfpd;wJ. 

 
11. nrytPdk; 
 

nrytPdkhdJ> njhif Vw;w mbg;gilapy; mq;fPfupf;fg;gLfpd;wJ. epWtdj;ij 
,af;Ftjpy; gaDWjptha;e;j Kiwapy; nrhj;Jf;fs;> nghwpj;njhFjpiaAk; 
cgfuzq;fisAk; guhkupj;jy; vd;gtw;wpw;fhf cwg;gl;l midj;Jr; nryTfSk; 
fhyg;gFjpapy; tuNtz;ba tUkhdj;jpy; mwtplg;gLfpd;wd. 

 
12. gz Xl;lk; 

 
Neubaw;w Kiwikiag; gad;gLj;jp gz Xl;lf; $w;whdJ jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

 
13.     murhq;f khdpak; 
  

nrhj;Jf;fSld; njhlHGgl;l murhq;f khdpak; kw;Wk; gzkw;w khdpaq;fs; Gjpa 
epakq;fSf;fikthf (LKAS20)  fzpf;fg;gl;Ls;sd. khdpaq;fs; ngw;Wf;nfhs;sg;gLk; 
vd;w epahakhd cWjpg;gLj;jy; ,Uf;Fkplj;J khdpaq;fs; mq;fPfupf;fg;gLtJld;> 
mjDld; ,izfpd;w epge;jidfs; midj;JlDk; ,zq;fg;gLk;. nrytPd tplak; 
njhlHghd khdpak;> el;l<l;bw;fhf cj;Njrpf;fg;gl;l nryTfspd; Kiwahd 
mbg;gilnahd;wpd; kPjhd khdpaj;Jld; nghUe;Jtjw;Fj; Njitahd fhyg; 
gFjpf;fhd tUkhdkhf ,dq;fhzg;gLfpd;wJ. khdpak; nrhj;Jf;fSld; njhlHG 
gLfpd;wtplj;J> mJ gpw;Nghlg;gl;l tUkhdkhff; fhl;lg;gLfpd;wJ. epWtfk; 
gzky;yhj khdpaq;fisg; ngWfpd;wtplj;J> nrhj;Jf;fs; kw;Wk; me;j khdpaq;fs; 
ngausT njhiffshf gjpag;gLtJld;> rkkhd tUlhe;j jtizfspdhy; cupa 
nrhj;Jf;fspd; vjpHghHf;fg;gl;l gad;ghl;Lf; fhyj;jpd; kPJ tUkhdf; $w;Wf;F 
tpLtpf;fg;gLfpd;wJ. 
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nghJthd ntspg;gLj;jy;fs; 

1. epjpf; $w;Wfs;> SLPSAS-1 kw;Wk; SLPSAS -11 ,y; jug;gl;Ls;s topfhl;ly;fspd;gb  
jahupf;fg;gl;Ls;sd.

2. jpiwNrup cz;bay;fspy;> epiyahd itg;Gfspy; kw;Wk; miog;G itg;Gfspy;
KjyPLfs;

miog;G itg;Gf;fspypUf;fpd;w KjyPLfs; fzf;fpy; nrytpy; fhl;lg;gl;Ls;sd.

jpiwNrup cz;bay;fspYs;s> epiyahd itg;GfspypUf;fpd;w KjyPLfs;> fzf;fpy;
jpul;ba ngWkjpapy; fhl;lg;gl;Ls;sd.

3 mwtplKbahj fld;ngWeHfSf;fhd Vw;ghL

mwtplKbahj fld;ngWeH Vw;ghL tHj;jf ngWiffspd; fopg;gdtpd; fPo;
fhl;lg;gLfpd;wJ.

SLFRS cld; ,zq;Fk; tifapy;> fld;gLeHfs; ntt;NtW tifg;ghLfspy;
FOkq;fshf tifg;gLj;jg;gl;Ls;sJld;> mtHfspd; nfhLg;gdTfspd; Kiwf;Nfw;g
gpd;tUfpd;w jpUk;gg; ngwKbahj fld;gLeHfs; Vw;ghLfs; gpuNahfpf;fg;gLfpd;wd.

fhyg; gpupT                          Vw;ghl;L tPjk;

<90 ehl;fs; 0% 

90 Kjy; 180 ehl;fs;         2% 

 180 Kjy; 360 ehl;fs;   3% 

 360 Kjy; 720 ehl;fs;     4% 

 720 Kjy; 1080 ehl;fs;   5% 

>1080 ehl;fs;   100%

4. nghUl;gl;bay;

nghUl;gl;bay; midj;Jk; epWtfj;jpd; Nritfis toq;Ftjpy; epWtfj;jpdhy; 
gad;gLj;Jtjw;nfd itf;fg;gLfpd;wd. nghUl;gl;bayhdJ> Mff; Fiwe;j nrytPdk; 
kw;Wk; epfu cz;ikg; ngWkjpiaf; fhl;Lfpd;wd. nrythdJ Kjypy; te;jJ Kjypy; 

NghtJ vd;w Kiwapy;; (FIFO) jPh;khdpf;fg;gLfpd;wJ. 

5. gzpf;nfhil Vw;ghL

gzpf;nfhil Vw;ghl;bd; nkhj;jj; njhif 2014 Mk; Mz;bypUe;J epiyahd itg;gpy;
KjyPL nra;ag;gl;bUe;jJld;> taJ Kjph;T Xa;T+jpak; vd;w jiyg;gpd; fPo;
njuptpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

6. murhq;f khdpak;

khdpaq;fspypUe;jhd %yjdf; nfhs;tdTfspd; Nja;khdg; gFjp gpw;Nghlg;gl;l
tUkhdkhf fzpf;;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.

7. kPs;kjpg;gPL
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murhq;f kjpg;gPl;Lj; jpizf;fsj;jpdhy; kPs;kjpg;gPl;L mwpf;if epiwTnra;J ,e;j 
Mz;L rkHg;gpf;fg;gltpy;iy. 

 
 
8.   cw;gj;jpj;jpwid Nkk;gLj;Jk; epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 
   
 PIP epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fspdhy; epWtdk; ngw;w Nkyjpf njhiffs; Vida crhTif 

tUkhdj;jpd; fPo; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. 
  
 
9.       nrhj;Jf;fis mfw;Wjy; 
             

mfw;Wk; nrad;Kiw kw;Wk; rPuhf;fy;fs; midj;Jk;  ,e;j Mz;bWjpapy; epiwT 
nra;ag;gl;bUe;jJ.  

 
10.      gjtpapdH mgptpUj;jp epjpaj;Jf;fhd Vw;ghL  
 

gjtpapdH mgptpUj;jpf;fhd Vw;ghL> rl;lj;jpw;fikthf ,e;j mz;Lf;F 0.5%  
mwptpLtjd;Ngupy; fzpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

 
11. Mua;r;rp kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jpf; fUj;jpl;lk;  
  

,e;epWtfk;> thio E}y; fUj;jpl;lj;ij Muha;r;rp kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jpf; fUj;jpl;lj;jpd; 
fPo; eilKiwg;gLj;JtJld;> mikr;rpdhy; epjpaplg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

 
 
12. %yjd khdpak;   

,jd; fPo;> gpd;tUfpd;w fUj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhf ,e;j mikr;rpdhy; epjp toq;fg; 
gl;bUe;jJ. 
 

o fl;llq;fs; 

o cw;gj;jpj;jpwid Nkk;gLj;Jk; epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 

o rpwpa eLj;ju njhopy;Kaw;rp  

o Rfhjhuk; kw;Wk; ghJfhg;G epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 

o ghjzp gapw;rp 

o thio E}iy tpUj;jp nra;jy; 

o cyHj;Jk; nrad;Jiw epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 

o gapw;rp Njitg;gLk; gFg;ghuha;T 

o nerTj;Jzp  E}yfk; 
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13. ghyKid rhakpLk; epiyak ;

,e;epWtfk;> ghyKid rhakpLk; epiyaj;jpy; mYty;fis Mw;WtJld;> ,e;j

epiyaj;jpd; njhopw;ghl;L ,yhgk; / el;lk; gpwpjhf fzpf;fg;gl;bUe;jJ.

14. fl;ll epUkhzk; kPjhd Kw;gzf; nfhLg;gdT

,e;j Mz;Lf;fhd fl;lz epUkhzj;jpw;fhd %yjd xJf;fk; 75 kpy;ypad;

&ghthFk;. ,J> ghuhSkd;wj;jpdhy; epiwNtw;wg;gl;l mikr;ruitg; gj;jpuj;jpd;

mbg;gilapy; jpiwNrupapdhy; xJf;fg;gl;bUe;jJ. fl;ll Kw;gzkhf> 3,850,912 &gh
nrYj;jg;gl;bUe;jJ.

15. fUj;jpl;lq;fs;

,e;j Mz;by; gy fUj;jpl;lq;fs; epiwTnra;ag;gl;bUe;jJld;> nryTfs; epWtfj;

jpdhy; cwg;gl;bUe;jJ. Mz;bWjpapy; tHj;jf kw;Wk; thzpg mikr;rplk;

38,078,766.19  &gh njhif epYitahf ,Ue;jJ.
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2018 2017
&gh &gh

nrhj ;Jf ;fs;

eilKiwr;nrhj;Jf;fs ; 

gzKk;> gzj;jpw;F rkdhditAk; 1 258,032,421                  196,684,604                        

ngWiffs; 2 62,642,741                     92,730,546                           

nghUl;gl;bay; 3 2,744,173                       3,006,954                             

Kw;  nfhLg;gdTfs; 4 1,231,713                       1,447,685                             

%yjd NtiyfSf;fhd Kw;gzf; nfhLg;gdT 5 3,850,912                       36,805,755                           

Vida eilKiwr; nrhj;Jf;fs; 6 8,910,825                       9,803,464                             

nkhj;j eilKiwr; nrhj;Jf;fs ; 337,412,784              340,479,008                    

eilKiwr;nrhj;Jf;fs ; my;yhjit 

cl;fl;likg;G>nghwpj; njhFjpAk; cgfuzKk;(epfuk;) 7 104,208,652                  104,132,958                        

fhzpAk; fl;llq;fSk; (epfuk;) 8 50,696,779                     49,167,918                           

154,905,432              153,300,876                    

nkhj;jr; nrhj;Jf;fs ; 492,318,216              493,779,884                    

nghWg;Gfs;

eilKiwg; nghWg;Gfs;

nfhLg;gdTfs; 9 10,611,842                     11,318,721                           

FWfpa fhy Vw;ghLfs; 10 2,148,627                       2,247,802                             

12,760,469                     13,566,523                           

eilKiwg; nghWg;Gfs; my;yhjit

Xa;T+jpaj;jpl;lk; 11 38,005,998                     38,548,057                           

38,005,998                     38,548,057                           

Njwpa nghWg;Gfs; 50,766,467                 52,114,580                       

Njwpa nrhj;Jf;fs ; 441,551,748              441,665,303                    

Njwpa nrhj;Jfs;/ epfu kjpg ;G

murhq;f gq;fspg;Gk; ntspehl;L cjtpAk; 12 162,061,321                  182,257,166                        

Vida fUj;jpl;lq;fs; 13 18,919,541                     23,129,956                           

jpul;ba kpif (Fiw) 14 260,570,887                  236,278,182                        

nkhj;j Njwpa nrhj;Jfs;/ epfu kjpg ;G 441,551,748              441,665,303                    

rigg; gzpg;ghsHfs;; ,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fisj; jahupg;gjw;Fk;> rkh;g;gpg;gjw;Fk; nghWg;ghdtHfs;.

,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; gzpg;ghsu;fs; rigapdhy; 2019.02.26 Mk; jpfjp mDkjpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJld;> 

mtu;fs; rhu;ghf ifnahg;gkplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

Fwpg ;G 
,y.

,yq;if Gilit>Mil epWtfk;

2018.12.31 ,y; epjp epiyf; $w;W
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2018.12.31 ,y; KbTw;w fhyg;gFjpf;fhd epjpr ; nrayhw;Wiff; $w;;W

2018 2017
&gh &gh

tUkhdk ;

fl;lzq;fSk; VidaitAk; 15 177,510,267       202,882,320          

nkhj;jj; njhopw ;gL tUkhdk ;
177,510,267       202,882,320          

nrytPdq;fs ;

jdpg;gl;l Ntjdhjpfs; (rk;gsq;fs;> Ntjdq;fs;> gzpahsupd; ed;ikfs;)
16 92,400,532              87,371,113 

Nghf;Ftuj;J
17 515,325 745,075 

tpepNahfKk;> Efuf;$baitAk;
18 11,264,143              9,724,897 

gOJghu;j;jYk; guhkupj;jYk;
19 8,024,248 5,063,229 

xg;ge;j Nritfs;
20 20,150,913              18,711,819 

ngWkhdj;Nja;Tk;> gpw;Nghlg;gl;l nrytPdq;fSk;
21 23,945,918              21,456,927 

Vida nrytPdq;fs;
22 20,175,295              24,490,637 

epjpr; nryT
23 203,288 156,506 

176,679,662       167,720,204          

njhopw ;ghl ;L nrytPdq;fspypUe;jhd kpif / (Fiw) 830,605 35,162,116             

Vida tUkhdq;fs ;

gpw;Nghlg;gl;l tUkhdk;
24 23,828,239              19,373,429 

Vida  nkhj;j tUkhdk;
23,828,239          19,373,429             

fhyg;gFjpf;fhd nkhj;j k pif /(Fiw) 24,658,844          54,535,545             

rigg; gzpg;ghsHfs;; ,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fisj; jahupg;gjw;Fk;> rkHg;pg;gjw;Fk; nghWg;ghdtHfs;.

,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; gzpg;ghsu;fs; rigapdhy; 2019.02.26 Mk; jpfjp mDkjpf;fg;gl;Ls;sJld;> 

mtu;fs; rhu;ghf ifnahg;gkplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

Fwpg ;G 
,y.

,yq;if Gilit>Mil epWtfk;
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ml;ltiz 2018 2017
,y &gh &gh

fhyg;gFjpf;fhd kpif/(Fiw) 24,658,844        54,535,545 

rPuhf;fy;fs;

 jtiz Kiw gpw;Nghlg;gl;l tUkhdk; (23,828,239)       (19,373,429)          

 Nja;khdk; 23,945,918        21,456,927 

njhopw;gL %yjd khw;wq;fSf;F Kd;duhd njhopw;ghl;L 

kpif/(FiwT) 24,776,523        56,619,044 

Mjdk;>nghwpj; njhFjpAk; cgfuzj;jpw;fhd rPuhf;fy;fs;
3,588,649 3,033,726 

nghUl;gl;baypy; mjpfupg;G/(FiwT)
262,781 803,251 

nfhLg;gdTfspy; mjpfupg;G/(FiwT) 215,972 560,833 

Vida eilKiwr; nrhj;Jf;fspy; mjpfupg;G/(FiwT) 892,639 (2,960,971) 

njhopy;>Vida ngWiffspy; mjpfupg;G/(FiwT) 30,087,806        (51,358,404)          
Kd;ida Mz;L Fiwfspy; mjpfupg;G/(FiwT)

(366,139) (1,116,520) 
njhopy;>Vida ngWiffspy; mjpfupg;G (706,879) (748,334) 
Vw;ghLfspy; mjpfupg;G (99,175) 1,190,802 

nra;ag;gl;l gzpf;nfhilf; nfhLg;gdTfs; (4,130,708)         (3,782,716) 

;njhopw ;gL eltbf;iffspypUe;jhd epfu gz Xl;lk ; 54,521,469        2,240,710             

KjyPl ;L eltbf;iffspypUe;jhd  gz Xl;lk ;

nghwpj;njhFjp>cgfuzq;fspd; ngWif (25,580,013)       (39,165,727)          

%yjdr; nrytpdj;jpw;fhd Kw; nfhLg;gdT 32,954,843        (35,757,554)          

nrhj;Jf;fis mfw;Wjy; 29,539 - 
kdpj ,aYikia tsHj;jy; - - 
KjyPl ;L eltbf;iffspypUe;jhd epfu gz Xl;lk ; 7,404,369          (74,923,281)          

epjpa pay; eltbf;iffspypUe;jhd epfu gz Xl;lk ;

%yjd khdpaq;fs; (gzk;) 12,543,000        25,000,000 
%yjd khdpaq;fs; (nrhj;Jf;fs) 15,757,393        49,076,423 
Vida fUj;jpl;lq;fspy; khw;wq;fs; (24,667,999)       

Vida fUj;jpl;lq;fspy; khw;wq;fs; (4,210,415)         957,881 

epjpa pay; eltbf;iffspypUe;jhd gz Xl;lk ; (578,021)            75,034,304           

gzk;>gzj;jpw ;Fr; rkdhditfspy; Njwpa  mjpfupg ;G /  

(FiwT)

61,347,818        2,351,733             
Muk;g fhyg;gFjpa py; gzk;>gzj;jpw ;F rkdhdit 196,684,603      194,332,870         
fhyg;gFjpa py; gzk;>gzj;jpw ;Fr; rkdhdit 1 258,032,421      196,684,603         

ml;ltiz ,y.2

gzKk;>gzj;jpw ;F rkdhditAk ;

tq;fpa pypUf;Fk ; gzk;

,yq;if tq;fp - ,uj;kyhid (A/C 9521019) 3,940,984 

,yq;if tq;fp - ,uj;kyhid nttspehl;L ehzak; (A/C7011691) 1,159,681 

FWfpafhy KjyPL

,yq;if tq;fpapy; epiyahd itg;G NRFC A/C No.000008446418 3,931,740 

jpiwNrup Kwpfs; 14,448,159        

miog;G itg;Gfs; 234,551,858      

258,032,421      

,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfk;
2018 jpnrk;gH 31 ,y; KbTw;w Mz;Lf;fhd 

 gz Xl;lf; $w;W
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Fwpg ;G 
,y

gq;fspf ;  fg ;gl ;l 
%yjdk;

Vida 
xJf;fq;fs;

nfhl[f;fy ; 
thq;fy ; 
xJf;fk;

j pul ;ba kpif /  
Fiw

nkhj ;j e p.t /  
e p.k

&gh &gh &gh &gh &gh

2017.01.01 ,y; kPjp 1 205,387,121      - - 236,278,182        441,665,303     

fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;ifapy; khw;wq;fs; - - - - - 

Mz;bw;fhd  epfu kjpg;gpy; khw;wk; 2  (24,406,260) -   (366,139) (24,772,399)      

Mjd kPs; kjpg;gPl;by; ,yhgk; - - - - - 

- 

KjyPl;bd; kPs;kjpg;gPl;by; el;lk; - - - - - 

ntspehl;L ehzakhw;wpy; el;lq;fs; - - - - - 

epfu kjpg;gpy; Neubahf ,dq;fhzg;gl;l Njwpa tUtha; (24,406,260)      - - (366,139) (24,772,399)      

Mz;Lf;fhd kpif / Fiw - - - 24,658,844 24,658,844       

Mz;L fhyg;gFjpf;fhf ,dq;fhzg;gl;l nkhj;j 

tUtha; - 

- 

2018.12 .31 ,y; k Pjp 180,980,861      - - 260,570,887        441,551,748     

ml;ltiz ,y.1  &gh

gq;fspf ;fg;gl;l %yjdk;
2017.12.31,y; murhq;f gq;fspg;Gk; ntspehl;L cjtpAk;

149,726,247      

2017.12.31 ,y; V ida fUj;jpl;lq;fspd; nkhj;j kPjp 55,660,874       

205,387,121      

ml;ltiz ,y.2

Mz;Lfhyg;gFjpapy ; ep .t/ep.khw;;wq ;fs;
Mz;by; %yjd khdpak; 3,632,394 

Mz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; nrhj;Jf;fisr; NrHj;jy; (23,828,239)      

Mz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; fUj;jpl;lq;fspy; khw;wq;fs; (4,210,415)        

(24,406,260)      

,yq;if Gilit> Mil epWtfk;

 2018 jpnrk;gH 31 ,y; KbTw;w Mz;Lf;fhd epfukjpg ;G 

khw;wq;fs; gw;wpa $w;W
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2018 2017
&gh &gh

1 gzKk; gzj;jpw ;Fr; rkkhditAk ;

tq;fpa pYs;s gzk;

,yq;if tq;fp .,uj;kyhid (A/C 9521019) 3,940,984.16       3,481,533.64      

,yq;if tq;fp .,uj;kyhid-ntspehl;L ehzak;(A/C7011691) 1,159,680.82       485,571.68         

FWfpa fhy KjyPLfs; (ntspg;gLj;jy; ,y.2) 1.1 252,931,756.05   192,717,496.75   

258,032,421.03   196,684,602.07

1.1 FWq;fhy KjyPLfs; (ntspg;gLj;jy; 2)

,yq;if tq;fpapy; vd;.MH.vt.rp fzf;fpy; 0000008446418 (gzpf;nfhil epjpak;)epiyahd itg;Gfs;3,931,739.58       3,559,746.11      

jpiwNrup cz;bay;fs; (gzpf;nfhil) 14,448,158.68     13,400,234.72     

miog;G itg;Gfs; (gzpf;nfhil epjpak; cs;slq;fyhf) 234,551,857.79   175,757,515.92   

252,931,756.05   192,717,496.75   
2 ngWiffs; 

tHj;jf ngWiffs; (ntspg;gLj;;jy; 3)

gupNrhjid fld;gLeHfs; 2,671,379.27       4,738,250.42      

gapw;rp - cs;thup fld;gLeHfs; 3,486,648.80       8,719,291.58      

gapw;rp - ntspthup fld;gLeHfs; 161,600.00         251,600.00         

MNyhridr; Nritfs; fld;gLeHfs; 83,558.88           83,558.64           

thbf;ifahsH/ njhopy;El;g Nritfs; fld;gLeHfs; 32,680.00           70,800.39           

Vida njhopy; fld;gLeHfs; 345,129.45         489,561.20         

6,780,996.40       14,353,062.23     

fopf;f - mwtplKbahj fld;gLeHfs; (4,157,433.26)      (3,800,665.49)     

2,623,563.14       10,552,396.74     

rpy;yiw jUkjpahsHfs; 60,019,177.39     82,178,149.66     

62,642,740.53     92,730,546.40     

3 nghUl;gl ;bay; ntspg;gLj;jy; 4)

fhfpjhjpfs; 912,160.22         1,024,990.86      

gapw;rp rhjdq;fs; kw;Wk; Efuf;$bait 1,220,249.62       1,271,778.03      

rhakpLjy; kw;Wk; E}y; 414,905.37         513,327.50         

cjpupg; ghfq;fs; kw;Wk; Jizg;nghUl;fs; 196,857.30         196,857.30         

2,744,172.51       3,006,953.69      

4 Kw; nfhLg;gdTfs;

fhg;GWjp - kUj;Jtk; 232,161.47         227,156.55         

fhg;GWjp - Nkhl;lhH thfdk; 391,681.74         376,167.32         

fhg;GWjp - jP kw;Wk; Vidait 99,137.09           107,042.10         

fhg;GWjp - gz khw;wy; - 6,331.78             

44,734.77           44,609.26           

135,186.68         116,850.11         

thfd cupkk; - 39,539.93           

tpepNahfq;fs;- gupNrhjid Ma;T$; rhd;Wg;gLj;jy; fl;lzk; 328,811.13         529,988.04         

1,231,712.88       1,447,685.09      

5 %yjd NtiyfSf;fhd Kw;gzf; nfhLg;gdT

fl;ll epUkhzk; 3,850,911.98       36,805,755.23     

3,850,911.98       36,805,755.23

6 vida eilKiwr; nrhj;Jf;fs ;

gjtpapdH fld;fs; 6.1 8,504,825.06       9,181,464.17      

itg;Gfs; 6.2 406,000.00         622,000.00         

8,910,825.06       9,803,464.17      

6.1 gjtpa pdH fld;fs ;

,lHfhy fld; 8,499,825.06       9,168,964.17      

gz;bif kw;gzk; 5,000.00             12,500.00           

8,504,825.06       9,181,464.17      

6.2 itg;Gf;fs ;

kpd;rhurig itg;G 250,000.00         250,000.00         

MH.vy;.ngHdhe;J - vupnghUs; itg;G 100,000.00         100,000.00         

xf;rp[d; kw;Wk; mkpy rpypz;lH 36,000.00           12,000.00           

Nghf;Ftuj;J itg;G - 240,000.00         

lanyhf; nuypnfhk; gP.vy.rp Nwhkpq; trjp 20,000.00           20,000.00           

406,000.00         622,000.00         

Nrit xg;ge;jq;fs;- fzpdp

Nrit xg;ge;jq;fs;-jsghlq;fSk; cgfuzq;fSk;

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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7.1 cl;fl;likg;G> nghwpj;njhFjpAk ; cgfuzKk;

nrhj;Jf;fs ;>nghwpj;njhFjpAk ; cgfuzKk; NrHf;iffs;

nghwpj; njhFjpAk ;> ,ae;jpuKk ;

ifj;jwp ,ae;jpuk; 1 50,000.00 

fhw;Wr;rPuhf;fpfs; - gdNrhdpf; 5 881,134.31         

931,134.31         

jsghlq;fs ;> nghUj;Jf;fs ;> NrHf;iffs; kw;Wk ; cgfuzq;fs ;

ePu; cWQ;rp 2 37,645.00 

,yj;jpdupay; Nfw;upy; 1 9,775.00 

CCTV fkwh 4 33,150.00 

mYtyf mYkhupfs; >kuf; fjpiufs; 1 11,497.50 

ngz;fs; lk;kp ];fpd; IC F7 1 20,950.00 

Mz;fs; lk;kp ];fpd; IC M2 1 20,950.00 

rpWtH lk;kp ];fpd; IC C1 1 10,950.00 

rpWtH lk;kp ];fpd; IC C2 1 11,950.00 

Nyh gf; fjpiu 1 13,207.50 

njhiyNgrpAld; njhiyNgrp ,izg;G xw;iw nraw;ghL 1 6,000.00 

Af; 1 3,740.00 

,Uk;G mYkhup 8 150,930.00 

tUifjUgtHfs; fjpiu 15 100,165.28 

taHfs; mw;w njhiyNgrp 1 5,560.00 

gpsf; fjpiu 2 23,587.50 

kDty; GwN[f;uH ];fpwPd; 1 7,250.00 

RtH fhw;whb 3 14,850.00 

Nghf;Ftuj;Jf; fl;lzq;fSld; ghH ];&y; 13 101,664.00 

E}yfj;jpw;Fg;  nghWg;ghdtUf;fhd fjpiu 1 10,686.04 

E}yfj;jpw;Fg;  nghWg;ghdtUf;fhd Nkir 1 19,794.37 

fzpdp Nkir 2 26,427.69 

ghu; ];&y;-gpsf; 15 116,520.00 

mYtyff; fjpiu>E}y;> idNyhd;; Ng];>gpsh];upf; Mk;Ne];w;>ifNwhypf; ifw;2 14,285.00 

gpNdhfpAyH ikf;FNwh];Nfhg; 1 1,300,000.00       

gzk; fzf;fpLk; ,ae;jpuj;Jf;F thbf;ifahsH fhl;rpg;gLj;jy; 1 134,375.00 

2,205,909.88       

Ma;T$l cgfuzk;

nkf;fhdpf;fy; Nrf;fH (Model 05-3000) 1 343,000.00         

$uhd Edp gupNrhjidf; fUtp (Rj;jpfupg;G fl;lzq;fs;) 1 2,463,347.04       

nfhz;brdpq; fgpNdw; (Model : GT-C52) 1 1,712,000.00       

my;w;wh i` NgNthkd;]; ypfpAl; FNwhkw;Nyhfpwgp  (UNPLC) 1 9,389,521.30       

`Nyh fNjhl; yhk;]; 1 1,396,686.81       

15,304,555.15     

fzpzpfs;

UPS PRO 700 (Prolink) 4 17,150.00 

fdd;tHz gpwpd;uH (WTJ14877) 1 102,925.00         

vr;;.gp. Nkhdpw;uH 10 1,370,000.00       

mR]; kzpf; fzpdp 2 273,400.00         

vr;.gp. tHz NyrH gpwpd;uu; 1 111,799.55         

1,875,274.55       

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 



 
 

74 
 

7
.c

l
;f
l
;l
i
k
g
;G
> 
n
g
h
w
pj
; 
n
j
h
F
j
p 
k
w
;W
k
; 
c
g
f
u
z

k
;

n
g
h
w
pj
; 

n
j
h
F
j
pA
k
; 

,
a
e
;j
pu
K
k
;

N
k
h
l
;l
h
H
 
t
h
f
d
q
;f
s
;

n
j
h
o
py
; 
i
j
a
y
; 

,
a
e
;j
pu
k
;

j
s
g
h
l
 
 
 
 

n
g
h
U
j
;J
f
;f
s
;> 

c
g
f
u
z

q
;f
s
;

M
a
;T
$
l
 

c
g
f
u
z

k
;

f
z

pd
pf
s
;

G
j
;j
f
K
k
; 

r
Q
;r
pi

f
f
S

k
;

f
l
;G
y
 

e
pf
o
;r
;r
pj
;j
pl
;l
k
;

c
j
pu
pg
;g
h
f
q
;f
s
; 

J
i
z

g
; 

n
g
h
U
l
;f
s
;

n
k
h
j
;j
k
;

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

&
g
h

n
r
y
T

20
18

/0
1/

01
 
,
y
; 
n
r
y
T

44
,8

85
,5

55
.3

7
  

24
,1

69
,0

59
.3

3
   

47
,5

47
,7

14
.9

4
 

67
,7

62
,1

42
.1

1
  

16
6,

27
9,

48
6.

53
 

39
,7

39
,4

24
.2

8
  

6,
94

9,
40

0.
38

 
58

2,
05

5.
00

   
 

1,
35

6,
19

5.
00

   
39

9,
27

1,
03

2.
94

 

N
r
Hf
;i
f
f
s
; 
- 
F
w
pg
;G
 
7.
1

9
3
1
,1

3
4
.3

1
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
2
,2

0
5
,9

0
9
.8

8
  

 
1
5
,3

0
4
,5

5
5
.1

5
  

 
1
,8

7
5
,2

7
4
.5

5
  

  
1
,7

2
4
,9

8
5
.4

4
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
22

,0
41

,8
59

.3
3

   

m
f
w
;w
y
;

(2
,1

6
2
,3

7
5
.2

0
)

  
 

(1
7
1
,7

2
1
.7

2
)

  
  

 
(1

,8
5
2
,9

8
5
.0

3
)

  
(1

,2
6
6
,2

3
0
.7

7
)

  
 

(5
,4

53
,3

12
.7

2)
   

 

20
18

/1
2/

31
 
,
y
; 
n
r
y
T

43
,6

54
,3

14
.4

8
  

24
,1

69
,0

59
.3

3
   

47
,3

75
,9

93
.2

2
 

68
,1

15
,0

66
.9

6
  

18
1,

58
4,

04
1.

68
 

40
,3

48
,4

68
.0

6
  

8,
67

4,
38

5.
82

 
58

2,
05

5.
00

   
 

1,
35

6,
19

5.
00

   
41

5,
85

9,
57

9.
55

 
 
j
pu
z

;l
 
 
N
j
a
;k
h
d
k
;

20
18

/0
1/

01
 
,
y
; 
 
j
pu
l
;b
a
 
N
j
a
;k
hd

k
;

35
,1

89
,5

62
.0

3
  

15
,2

54
,8

27
.4

7
   

38
,5

15
,4

25
.6

8
 

42
,0

33
,0

84
.8

5
  

12
2,

85
9,

96
3.

75
 

33
,0

91
,6

81
.5

6
  

6,
25

8,
40

4.
22

 
57

8,
93

0.
00

   
 

1,
35

6,
19

5.
00

   
29

5,
13

8,
07

4.
56

 
M
z

;;L
f
;f
hd

 
N
j
a
;k
hd

k
;

2
,0

3
4
,3

1
9
.3

3
  

  
2
,0

4
8
,8

9
1
.6

1
  

  
1
,3

6
6
,8

9
7
.7

3
  

 
4
,6

9
4
,5

0
0
.9

7
  

 
8
,8

3
3
,1

2
3
.8

1
  

  
 

2
,7

4
7
,3

8
5
.8

4
  

  
2
0
8
,3

8
1
.2

7
  

  
3
,1

2
5
.0

0
  

  
  

 
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
21

,9
36

,6
25

.5
6

   
j
pu
l
;b
a
 
N
j
a
;k
hd

k
; 
k
Pj
hd

 
r
Puh
f
;f
y
;f
s
; 

(2
,1

6
2
,3

7
5
.2

0
)

  
 

(1
7
1
,7

2
1
.7

2
)

  
  

 
(1

,8
5
1
,0

4
5
.0

3
)

  
(1

,2
3
8
,6

3
0
.7

7
)

  
 

(5
,4

23
,7

72
.7

2)
   

 
20

18
/1

2/
31
 
,
y
; 
 
j
pu
l
;b
a
 
N
j
a
;k
hd

k
;

35
,0

61
,5

06
.1

6
  

17
,3

03
,7

19
.0

8
   

39
,7

10
,6

01
.6

9
 

44
,8

76
,5

40
.7

9
  

13
1,

69
3,

08
7.

56
 

34
,6

00
,4

36
.6

3
  

6,
46

6,
78

5.
49

 
58

2,
05

5.
00

   
 

1,
35

6,
19

5.
00

   
31

1,
65

0,
92

7.
40

 
20

18
/1

2/
31
 
,
y
; 
 
G
j
;j
f
j
;j
pd
; 
N
j
w
pa
 
t
U
k
hd

k
;

8,
59

2,
80

8.
32

   
 

6,
86

5,
34

0.
25

   
 

7,
66

5,
39

1.
53

   
23

,2
38

,5
26

.1
7

  
49

,8
90

,9
54

.1
2

   
5,

74
8,

03
1.

43
   

 
2,

20
7,

60
0.

33
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

4,
20

8,
65

2.
15

 

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



75 

Gj;jfq;fSk; gUt ntspa PLfSk;

"Nwhy; xt; ahd; nud;rd; bd; Nttpq;' 1 8,489.25 

"gNah GNwrrpq; xt; nuf;;];iuy;" 1 9,434.25 

Gilit kw;Wk; Milj; njhopw;WiwapYs;s gpur;rpidfSf;fhd jPHTfs; 1 8,489.25 

"Gwlf;w; Nrt;w;up mz;l; wp[;upf;Nuwf;uw; rg;uhd;r]; ,d; mg;gpwy;" 1 5,339.25 

Gilitj; njhopw;Wiwapy; Ntiyj; ju Kfhikj;Jtk; 1 5,339.25 

",d;ulf;\d; U nuf;];iuy; itgH];" (kPs; gjpg;G) 1 7,229.25 

"nuf;];iuy; il];" 1 8,489.25 

,z;l];wpay; gpwf;up]; ,d; Nttpq; gpwpNawpw;Nuhwp 1 7,229.25 

"tz;lNkd;uy;;]; mz;l; gpwf;up]; ,d; nfhNyNwrd; xt; nuf;];iuy;];" (2 MtJ gjpg;G)1 11,639.00           

Gilitj; njhopw;Wiwapy; njhopy;El;gtpay; gjtpapdupd; gapw;rp kwWk; mgptpUj;jp1 9,434.25    

"tz;lNkd;uy;]; mz;l; ml;thz;]; ,d; fpidw;upq; nuf;Ndhnyh[p" 1 7,859.25 

Gitit gupNrhjidf;fhd eilKiw topfhl;lnyhd;W 1 6,284.25 

"NgNthkd;]; xt; N`hk; nuf;];iuy;]" 1 5,654.25 

Gilitj; njhopw;Wiwapy; khRgLj;jy; fl;Lg;ghL 1 9,843.75 

" nehz;-Nthtpd;-GNwr];> ];uf;rH>GNwhgl;B]; mz;l; mg;gpspNfrd;" 1 10,379.25 

"itgu; ];uf;;]H" 1 7,229.25 

E}y; cw;gj;jp gw;wp ife;E}y; 1 11,009.25 

jhgdq;fs; Nfhit 1 (rpq;fsk;) 1 950.00 

jhgdq;fs; Nfhit 11 (rpq;fsk;) 1 140.00 

jhgdq;fs; Nfhit 11 (Mq;fpyk;) 1 56.00 

epjp xOq;Ftpjpfs; (Mq;fpyk;) 1 368.00 

 ;ml;thz;]; wpNrr; mz;l; mg;gpspNfrd;' 1 46,990.18 

Mq;fpy ,yf;fzk; kw;Wk; fpufpj;jiy ,yFthff; fw;wy; 1 950.00 

jhgdq;fs; Nfhit 1 (jkpo;) 1 550.00 

jhgdq;fs; Nfhit 11 (jkpo;) 1 140.00 

epjp xOq;Ftpjp (jkpo;) 1 560.00 

GNwhfpAnkd;w;  ifl; iyd; (rpq;fsk;) 1 125.00 

Mrpah gTz;Nlrd; 115 558,509.76 

,yf;Nwhzpf; nuf;];iuy;]; - rpkhHl; itgpwpf;]; mz;l; t[awgps; nuf;Ndhnyh[p1 34,000.00  

gf;\dy; gpdpNrH]; nghH nuf;];iuy;];- bk;GWtpq; nfhk;NgHl;> 

NgHnthkd;]; mz;l; Gnwhnuf;rd; 1 30,300.00 

fhz;l;Gf; xt; itgH nwrp];ud;w; nuf;];iuy;]; 1 40,500.00 

fhz;l;Gf; xt; eRwy; itgH]; - njhFjp 11- GNwhrrpq; mz;l; mg;spNfrd;1 33,000.00 

N`hk; Nghdp]pq; 1 9,300.00 

nkbf;fy; nuf;];iuy; nkw;wPwpay;]; 1 21,000.00 

ngNthkd;];bnu];upq; xt; nuf;];iuy;]; - nkNjl;];> nuf;Ndhnyh[p mz;l; mg;gpspNfrd;];1 25,000.00           

nuf;];iuy; ];NghHl; tpaH 1 38,500.00 

mz;l];uhz;bq; mz;l; ,k;GWtpq; j bAwgpypw;up xt; nuf;];iuy; 1 26,000.00 

mf;upNtw;ul; fhgd; itgH mz;l; nuf;];iuy;]; 1 31,960.00 

ml;thd;]; ,d; nuf;dpfy;]; nehd;Nthtpd;];

mz;thd;]; ,d; nuf;Ndhyp[pfy; 1 38,760.00 

gpNwa;bq; nuf;Ndhnyh[p NghH nuf;];iuy;]; 1 27,200.00 

fpNwrpq; nuf;Ndhnyh[p NghH nghyp];uH itg;wP]; 1 27,200.00 

nldPk; - kDtf;rwpq; gpdprqp; mz;l; mg;gpspNfrd; 1 39,440.00 

,yf;Nuh];G+d; eNdhitgpwP]; 1 44,880.00 

[pNah nuf;];iuy;];: Gwk; bird; U mg;gpspNfrd; 1 47,600.00 

fhz;Gf; xt; eRwy; itgpwp];: iug;];>GNwhgl;lP];> mz;l; tf;Nw]; mtw;wpq;gpwPbq; mz;l; fy;upNtrd;1 43,520.00           

fhz;l;Gf; xt; nuf;dpf;fy; nuf;];iuy; 2, njhFjp 2 1 34,000.00 

fhz;l;Gf; xt; nuf;dpf;fy; nuf;];iuy; 2, njhFjp 1 1 31,960.00 

,d;q; n[l; nuf;];iuy; gpwpd;upq; 1 29,240.00 

eNdh tpdprpq; xt; nuf;];iuy; nkw;wPwpay;]; 1 34,000.00 

gpwpd;rpgy; xt; nuf;];iuy; tpdprpq; - 1MtJ gjpg;G 1 34,000.00 

GNwhr]; nfhd;Nwhy; ,d; nuf;];iuy; kDtf;rwpq; - 1 MtJ gjpg;G 1 36,720.00 

"rpkhHl; nuf;];iuy;]; mz;l; NjaH; mg;gpspNfrd;];" 1 43,435.00 

"r];Nua;dgps; itgpwp]; mz;l; nuf;];iuy;" -  1 MtJ gjpg;G 1 29,920.00 

"r];Nua;dgps; mg;gpwy;" -  1 MtJ gjpg;G 1 31,960.00 

" nuh;];iuy;]; mz;l; g\d;  Nkw;wPupay;];>bird; mz;l; nuf;Nehnyh[p"1 10,200.00 

"Nthl;lHGW}t; mz;l; Nthl;lu; Nwg;;gpsd;w; nuf;];iuy; ma;l; FNshjpq;" 1 31,960.00 

"r];ugpspw;wp ,d; nldpk;" - 1 MtJ gjpg;G 1 29,920.00 

1,684,185.44       

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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8. 2018.12.31 ,y; fhzp kw;Wk; fl;llq;fs;

fhzp fl;llq;fs ; nkhj;jk ;

&gh &gh &gh

nryT

2018.01.01. ,y; nryT 5,018,434.00    77,321,399.31 82,339,833.31     

NrHf;iffs;- Fwpg;G ,y.7.1 - 3,538,153.97        3,538,153.97        

2018.012.31. ,y; nryT 5,018,434.00      80,859,553.28     85,877,987.28     

jpuz;l  Nja ;khdk ;

2018/01/01 ,y;  jpul;ba Nja;khdk;
33,171,915.33     33,171,915.33     

Mz;;Lf;fhd Nja;khdk;
- 2,009,292.46        2,009,292.46        

2018.12.31 ,y; jpul;ba  Nja;khdk;

- 35,181,207.79     35,181,207.79     
2018/12/31 ,y;  Gj;jfj;jpd; Njwpa tUkhdk; 5,018,434.00      45,678,345.49     50,696,779.49     

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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8.1 fhzpAk ; fl;llq;fSk;

cztfj;jpidg; GJg;gpj;jy; 1,759,857.28       

gNwgypf; `l; 745,713.26         

gioa cztfj;jpd; $iuiag; GJg;gpj;jy; 1,032,583.43       

3,538,153.97       

9 nfhLg;;gdTfs;

njhopy; jUkjpahsh;fs; 9.1 1,001,839.98       776,075.98

cwg;gl;l nrytpdk; 9.2 5,116,716.10       6,059,732.68

rpwpa jUkjpahsHfs; 9.3 4,135,448.14       4,231,273.14

nrYj;jNtz;ba jw;Nghija tup 9.4 357,837.95         251,639.51

10,611,842.17     11,318,721.31

9.1 njhopy; jUkjpahsh;fs ;

Kw;gzkhfg; ngwg;gl;l gzk; 1,001,839.98       776,075.98

1,001,839.98       776,075.98

9.2 cwg;gl;l nryTfs;

mika Ntjdq;fs;>gapYehfSf;fhf gbfs; 36,468.75 -

thu ,Wjpf;fhd gjtpapdH nfhLg;gdT - 939,958.75

njhiyNgrp gb - 1,800.00 

xUq;fpizg;Gf; fl;lzk; 179,928.00         112,722.00         

Nghf;Ftuj;J 312,368.04         211,998.00         

Ntjdq;fSk; $ypfSk; - 12,100.00 

fzpdpfspd; jpUj;jKk; guhkupg;G 15,000.00 -

Nkhl;lhH thfdq;fis; gOJghHj;jYk;> guhkupj;jYk; 25,880.00 125,025.05

nghwpj;njhFjpiaAk; ,ae;jpuj;ijAk;  gOJghHj;jYk;>guhkupj;jYk;
4,000.00 

-

fl;llq;fspd; jpUj;jKk; guhkupg;G - 17,008.78

Nkyjpf Neuk; 318,243.26         452,846.02

gpuahzKk; gjpyPLfSk; 52,925.00 73,750.00

ePH 18,252.13 22,014.84

kpd;rhuk; 217,339.42         832,411.03

ghJfhg;gpw;fhd mwtPLfs; 98,246.40 166,675.00

njhiyj;njhlHghly; Nrit 88,572.13 100,478.93         

thfdq;fs;> kpd;gpwg;ghf;fpf;fhd vupnghUs;; 14,000.00 55,253.00

kUj;Jtj; jpl;lk;>njhopy; eyd;Gup 115,334.75         83,588.96

Rj;jpfupg;Gr; Nritfs; - 275,630.00

nky;ypa fl;Lj;Jzp  gupNrhjid kPjhd nrytpdk; 21,400.00 21,600.00

Efuf;$baitapd; nfhs;tdT 300.00 -

gilapdupd; rPUilapd; gupNrhjidf;fhd nrytPLfs; 1,467.31 1,233.00 

tUifjUk; tpupTiuahsh; fl;lzk; 97,350.00 297,044.40

gj;jpupif tpiyg;gl;bay; - -

mYtyf thlif - 80,000.00 

cw;gj;jpj;jpwd; Nkk;gLj;jy; epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; 156,886.41         112,992.32

cWg;Gupikf; fl;lzq;fs; 11,732.57 4,347.00 

thuhe;j nfhLg;gdTfs; 1,174,800.95       -

V.gp.rp. fUj;jpl;lr; nryTfs; - 112,805.52         

gapw;rp ghlnewpr; nryTfs; - 6,095.00

Vida Nritf; fl;lzq;fs; 50,000.00 -

Gjpa thio E}y; mgptpUj;jp 87,973.75 -

kd;dhH fpis - 11,576.95

ifj;jwp rhakpLk; epiyak;-gyhKid 169,100.00         107,071.15         

gl;lk; toq;fy; me;j];J nryTfs; - 80,000.00 

Gjpa thio E}y; mgptpUj;jp - 37,187.50 

<.v];.rp 188,032.00         241,806.53         

C.Nr.ep 1,017,232.61       1,037,482.41      

C.e.ngh.ep 138,713.54         141,474.87         

khztHfspd; trjpia Nkk;gLj;j[jy; 283,755.67         283,755.67         

njhopy; topfhl;ly; epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs; 8,107.85 - 

fspahl;lr; nrryTfs; 540.00 - 

tq;fpf;f fl;lzq;fs; 29.40 - 

eyd;Gupr; rq;fk; 200,000.00         - 

rhd;Wg;gLj;jy; kd;Wk; rhd;wpjo; fl;lzk; 12,736.16 - 

5,116,716.10       6,059,732.68
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9.3 rpy;yiw jUkjpahsh;fs ;

crhTif Kw;gzk; - 20,000.00 

Nghrdrhiy Nfs;tp itg;G 25,000.00 15,000.00

tpiy$wy; gpiz 31,500.00 25,500.00

kPsr; nrYj;Jk; itg;G 200,000.00         100,000.00         

nghJ jpiwNrup (thfd tpw;gid eilKiw) 3,871,448.14       3,871,448.14

rpy;yiw jUkjpahsh;fs; - 153,950.00         

kPsr; nrYj;Jk; Nfs;tp itg;G 7,500.00 45,375.00 

4,135,448.14       4,231,273.14      

9.4 jw;Nghija tupf; nfhLg;gdTfs;

nrYj;jj;jF Kj;jpiu tupf; fzf;F 8,750.00 - 

nrYj;j Ntz;ba ng.Nr.tup 163,271.73         - 

nrYj;jj;jF epWj;jp itj;jy; tupf; fzf;F 28,689.00 - 

nrYj;j Ntz;ba Njr epUkhz tup 157,127.22         251,639.51

357,837.95         251,639.51

10 FWfpa fhy Vw;ghLfs;

fzf;fha;Tf; fl;lzj;jpw;fhd Vw;ghL 625,075.00         1,457,000.00

gjtpapdH mgptpUj;jp epjpaj;jpw;fhd Vw;ghL 1,523,552.00       790,802.00

2,148,627.00       2,247,802.00      

11 %g;Ngha ;T+jpak ;

gzpf;nfhilf;fhd Vw;ghL (ntspg;ghL 6)

Mz;bd; Muk;;gj;jpy; kPjp 38,548,057.00     39,297,047.00     

fopf;f - Mz;Lf;fhd nfhLg;gdT (4,130,708.00)      (3,782,716.00)     

34,417,349.00     35,514,331.00     

Mz;Lf;fhd Vw;ghL 3,588,649.00       3,033,726.00      

Mz;bd; ,Wjpapy; kPjp 38,005,998.00     38,548,057.00     

12 mur gq;fspg ;Gk ; ntspehl;L cjtpfSk; (ntspg;gLj;jy; 7)

Mz;bd; Muk;gj;jpy; cs;sthwhd kPjp 182,257,165.76   121,834,349.29   

NrHf;f - Mz;by; khdpaq;fs; 3,632,393.81       79,796,245.45     

185,889,559.57   201,630,594.74   

fopf;f - Mz;bd; fld; jPHg;gdT (23,828,238.92)    (19,373,428.98)    

Mz;bd; ,Wjpapy; kPjp 162,061,320.65   182,257,165.76   

13 Vida fUj;jpl ;lq;fs ;

ifj;jwp mgptpUj;jp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; - 140,235.20         

ifj;jwp mgptpUj;jp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; - kUjKid 2,243,449.88       2,243,449.88      

ifj;njhopy; kw;Wk; thzpg mikr;rpd; Gyikg;guprpy; epjpak; 236,867.04         236,867.04         

vt;.b.b.I 30,405.42 30,405.02 

khztHfspd; trjpiar; rPuhf;Fjy; - 135,082.66         

rpwpa Mil MrpupaH gapw;rp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; - 688,515.58         

Gjpa thio E}y; mgptpUj;jp - &gh 8.4 kpy;. 10,991,338.97    10,061,505.63     

Rfhjhuk;> ghJfhg;G mstPl;l fUj;jpl;lk; - &gh 15 kpy;. 1,406,663.00      1,406,663.00      

ijay; ,ae;jpu guhkupg;G - &gh 8.290 kpy; 1,047,343.77      1,047,343.77      

<ukhf;Fk; nrad;Kiw &gh 2.5 kpy;. 420,537.04 420,537.04         

cw;gj;jp Nkk;gL;jy; fUj;jpl;lk; 1,675,386.77      - 

Milapid mbg;gilahff; nfhz;l Fbir; ifj;njhopy; 867,549.06         6,719,350.85      

18,919,540.95     23,129,955.67     

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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15 njhopw ;ghl ;L tUkhdk ; 

gupNrhjid 48,652,141.63     48,645,836.62     

gapw;rp 84,353,742.35     113,797,288.34   

crhTif Nrit 7,400,000.00       5,248,319.93      

thbf;ifahsH /  njhopy;El;g Nritfs; kw;Wk; Vida tpw;gidfs;
11,446,515.99     

13,296,105.14     

fUj;juq;Ffs; 259,592.98         -

gy;Kid rhakpLjy; epiyaj;jpy; E}y; tpw;gidapypUe;jhd el;lk; (1,113,703.60)      (2,641,543.92)     

Vida tUkhdk; 26,257,311.03     24,506,443.38     

rpwpa>eLj;ju njhopy;Kaw;rp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpypUe;J ngwg;gl;l 

Nkyjpf njhif
(2,693.39) 

3,770.74 

mfw;wg;gl;l nrhj;Jf;fspypUe;J ngwg;gl;l Nkyjpf njhif 257,360.00         26,100.00 

177,510,266.99   202,882,320.23   

16 ehdhtpj tUkhdk ; (rk ;gsq;fs ;> Ntjdq;fs ;> gzpahsu; mD$yq;fs;)

Ntjdq;fSk; $ypAk; (,ilf;fhyg; gb cs;slq;fyhf) 41,892,645.09     37,186,027.85     

rpuhf;fy; gb 1,260,233.19       4,473,211.20      

tho;f;ifr; nryTg; gb 7,750,600.00       7,996,060.80      

mff; fzf;fha;thsupd; gjpy; flikg; gb 21,080.50 -

C.Nr.ep 6,118,412.30       5,972,006.92      

C.e.ngh.ep 1,520,575.38       1,439,212.06      

jtprhsUf;fhd gb 450,000.00         450,000.00         

mika $yp / gapYeUf;fhd gb 1,096,694.96       1,250,655.20      

Nkyjpf Neuk; 4,045,921.67       5,354,590.87      

thu ,Wjpf; nfhLg;gdT 12,393,517.49     11,663,204.04     

njhopy;rhu; epGzHfs; gb 2,538,583.33         657,000.00         

ntFkjp / ghuhl;Lg; gb 1,407,375.00       1,429,500.00      

rig nrayhsH fl;lzk; 60,000.00 60,000.00 

thu ,Wjp ghlrhiy gjtpapdUf;fhd gb 408,000.00         408,000.00         

njhiyNgrpg; gb 336,000.00         344,000.00         

Nghf;Ftuj;Jg; gb 4,575,000.00       4,302,050.00      

xUq;fpizg;Gf; fl;lzk; 2,277,879.35       912,540.32         

gupNrhjid Ma;T$l gjtpapdH gb 513,675.00         423,000.00         

gzpf;nfhil 3,588,649.00       3,033,726.00      

jtprhsupd; rhujpf;fhd gb 54,321.90 -

C.Nr.ep kw;Wk; C.e.ngh.ep epYitf; nfhLg;gdT 91,367.55 

,izg;gpd; Ngupy; nrYj;jg;gl;l Ntjd epYit 2011-2014 - 16,327.99 

92,400,531.71     87,371,113.25

17 Nghf;Ftuj;J

cs;ehL 515,325.00         745,075.00         

515,325.00         745,075.00         

18 tpepNahfq;fSk; Efuf;$baitAk ;

fhfpjhjpfSk; mYtyfj; Njitg;ghLk; (18.1) 3,147,183.33       2,489,566.57      

Vida Efuf;$bait (18.2) 1,524,890.70       1,018,673.08      

mq;fPfhuk; kw;Wk; rhd;Wg;gLj;jy; fl;lzk; 2,656,652.05       2,318,319.67      

thfdq;fs;> kpd;gpwg;ghf;fpfSf;fhd vupnghUs; 3,935,416.81       3,898,337.83      

11,264,142.89     9,724,897.15      

18.1
Mz;bd; Muk;gj;jpy; ,Ug;G 1,024,990.86       834,015.33         

NrHf;f-Mz;L fhyg; gjpapyhd nfhs;tdT 3,034,352.69       2,680,542.10      

4,059,343.55       3,514,557.43      

fopf;f-Mz;bd; ,WjpapYs;s kPjp (912,160.22)        (1,024,990.86)     

3,147,183.33       2,489,566.57      

fhfpjhjpfs ;> mYtyfj; Njitg;ghLfs;

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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18.2 gapw ;rp rhjdq;fs ; Vida Efuf;$bait /ju Ma;T$l 

rhjdq;fs ; Ehy;> ehu;

Mz;bd; Muk;gj;jpy; ,Ug;G 1,271,778.03       189,887.28         

NrHf;f- Mz;L fhyg; gFjpapyhd nfhs;tdT 1,473,362.29       2,100,563.83      

2,745,140.32       2,290,451.11      

fopf;f-Mz;bd; ,WjpapYs;s epYit (1,220,249.62)      (1,271,778.03)     

1,524,890.70       1,018,673.08      

19 gOJghu;j;jy;fSk; guhkupg ;Gk ;

fhzpfs; kw;Wk; fl;llq;fs; 2,279,972.80       566,707.96         

Nkhl;lhH thfdq;fs; 1,889,537.43       2,371,544.49      

jsghlk;> nghUj;Jf;fSk; cgfuzKk; 1,112,858.17       443,121.94         

Ma;T$l cgfuzk; 1,363,917.23       639,248.75         

nghwpj;njhFjpAk; ,ae;jpuKk; (19.1) 853,550.71         379,581.00         

fzpdpfs; 469,431.61         427,390.35         

kpd;gpwg;ghf;fp 54,980.00 235,634.13         

8,024,247.95       5,063,228.62      

19.1 gOJghHj;jYk ; guhkupg ;Gk ; 

Mz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; cjpupg;ghfq;fspd; nfhs;tdT 196,857.30         196,857.30         

Mz;Lfhyg;gFjpapy; nfhs;tdT nra;ag;gLfpd;w cjpupg;ghfq;fs; 15,000.00 - 

gOJghHj;jYk; guhkupg;gk; 838,550.71         379,581.00         

1,050,408.01       576,438.30         

fopf;f- Mz;bd; ,Wjpapy; ifapUg;G - - 

njhiye;j Jizg;nghUl;fSf;fhf ngwg;gl;l gzk; (196,857.30)        (196,857.30)        

,ae;jpuj;ijg; guhkupg ;gjw;F  khw;wg;gl ;lit 853,550.71         379,581.00         

20 xg;ge;j Nritfs;

fhg;GWjp 162,045.56         149,161.60         

ghJfhg;G mwtPLfs; 1,872,994.58       1,745,998.96      

Rj;jpfupg;Gr; Nritfs; 3,123,792.06       3,238,622.84      

kpd;rhuk; 8,084,943.99       7,813,409.03      

ePH 829,926.91         510,434.51         

njhlHghly; Nritfs; 940,004.15         1,025,875.71      

jghy; 246,639.00         164,002.00         

tpsk;guk; 763,099.50         849,276.39         

mYtyf thlif 400,302.90         560,532.40         

Nghf;Ftuj;Jf;; fl;lzq;fs; 3,727,164.21       2,654,505.49      

20,150,912.86     18,711,818.93     

21 Nja ;khdk ; 

fl;blq;fs; 2,009,292.46       1,895,186.64      

fzdpfs; 2,747,385.84       2,436,009.71      

jsghlk;> nghUj;Jf;fs; kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fs; 4,694,500.97       4,354,905.32      

Nkhl;lhH thfdq;fs; 1,366,897.73       2,048,891.61      

nghwpj;njhFjpAk; ,ae;jpuKk; 2,034,319.33       1,962,796.24      

njhopy; ijay; ,ae;jpuk; 8,833,123.81       1,267,139.29      

Ma;T$l cgfuzq;fs 2,048,891.61       6,936,062.08      

Xspg;gjpT epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fs; 208,381.27         52,500.00 

Gj;jfq;fSk; gUt ntspaPLfSk; 3,125.00 164,388.50         

cjpupg; ghfq;fSk; Jizg;nghUl;fSk; - 339,048.00         

23,945,918.02     21,456,927.39     

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 



81 

22 Vida nrytpdq;fs; 

tUifjUk; tpupTiuahsHfspd; fl;lzk; 2,584,031.71       2,907,175.20      

fzf;fha;Tf; fl;lzk; - Mz;Lf;fhd Vw;ghL 500,000.00         400,000.00         

gapw;rpg; ghlnewpfSf;fhd nrytpdq;fs; 4,323,075.47       5,710,492.09      

ehdhtpj nrytpdk; (22.1) 534,298.36         416,228.45         

kdpjts ,aYikia tsHj;jy; / gjtpapdH gapw;rp - cs;ehL 1,139,605.53       1,295,115.00      

kdpjts ,aYikia tsHj;jy; - ntspehL 1,372,387.67       1,207,065.01      

gjtpapdH eyd;Gup - NjePH nrytpdk; 1,234,908.18       939,446.72         

gjtpapdH kUj;Jtj; jpl;lk; njhopy; eyd;Gup 1,523,067.30       1,523,246.15      

eyd;Gupr; rq;fk; 275,000.00         1,700,000.00      

MSeHfspd; rigf;fhd fl;lzk; 642,600.00         460,000.00         

fz;fhl;rp nrytpdk; 369,022.63         538,817.00         

Kj;jpiuf; fl;lzk; 35,275.00 63,220.00 

njhopy; topfhl;ly; gpupT 206,620.50         233,722.55         

nrYj;jg;glhj fld;gLeHfSf;fhd Vw;ghL 356,767.77         230,828.33         

Muha;r;rp> mgptpUj;jp myF nryTfs; 9,000.00 

nky;ypa fl;Lj;Jzpg; gupNrhjidf;fhd nrytpdk; 309,000.00         282,900.00         

cWg;Gupik fl;lzk; 125,774.21         -

ghlrhiyr; rPUilj; Jzpia gupNrhjpg;gjw;fhd nrytPdk; 20,644.14 18,651.79 

epWj;jp itg;G tup 569,038.36         2,056,596.16      

ngWkjp Nru; tup 1,407.60 209,646.10         

vd;.gp.up - 2% nrytPdq;fs; 34,984.50 19,564.33 

up.,.rp kw;Wk; vk;.up.gp mq;fj;jtHfSf;fhd gb 163,000.00         

fzf;fha;T>Kfhikj;Jt FOf;fhd gb 120,000.00         136,654.00         

njhopy;rhH cWg;Gupikf; fl;lzk;- mYtyHfs;/ epWtfk; 145,403.02         

tUlhe;j re;jhf; fl;lzk; 3,290.79 21,286.38 

fspahl;l nryTfs; 400,708.65         184,145.08         

ISO 9001-2015 eilKiwg;gLj;jy; -

rhd;wpjo; toq;Fk; itgtk; 56,596.00 25,565.00 

kd;dhH epiyak; kPjhd nrytPdk; (22.2) 30,913.73           108,889.34         

gl;lk; toq;fy; epiyf;fhd  nrytPdq;fs; 1,131,735.00       791,647.00         

btpaj cld epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lf; fl;lzq;fs; 115,016.00         

nghUshjhu Nritf; fl;lzq;fs; 752,046.00         658,985.05         

rl;lf; fl;lzq;fs; 8,000.00 32,700.00 

ntspaPLfSk;>rQ;rpiffSk; 781,746.21         1,094,829.69      

gjtpapdH mgptpUj;jp epjpak; 732,750.00         790,802.00         

20,175,295.31     24,490,637.44     

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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22.1 ehdhtpj Nritfs; 

gj;jpupif tpiyg;gl;bay; 37,700.00 39,690.00 

$yp mwtPLfs; 14,500.00 4,135.00 

rhujp mDkjpg;gj;jpuq;fisg; GJg;gpj;jy; 3,000.00 2,700.00 

foptfw;wy; mwtPLfs; 26,973.90 25,199.20 

kjpg;G+jpaf; fl;lzk; 129,000.00         65,000.00 

95,509.50 30,205.00 

thfd jupg;gplf; fl;lzk; (K.r) 950.00 4,049.00 

khztHfSf;fhd> kUe;J kw;Wk; kUj;Jtr; rpfpr;ir 10,085.41 6,776.25 

Gj;jfk; kw;Wk; mwpf;iffisf; fl;Ljy; 7,710.00 2,014.00 

gpupj; itgtk; 56,337.50 35,000.00 

ntrhf; myq;fhuk; kw;Wk GJtUl nfhz;lhl;lj;jpy; gq;fspg;G 43,190.00 67,874.00 

NeHKfg;guPl;irf; Fohj;jpdupd; fl;lzq;fs; 6,000.00 8,000.00 

kPd; njhl;b 2,950.00 3,200.00 

,];jpup NghLjy; 5,395.05 1,000.00 

Vida nrytPdq;fs; 12,807.00 16,310.00 

GJtUl tho;j;J ml;ilfs; 52,000.00 57,575.00 

nuf;];iuy; epWtfk; - 15,000.00 

RtHf;fbfhuk; - 3,320.00 

Njq;fha; gpLq;Fjy; - 1,600.00 

tprh Gifg;glq;fs; - 2,300.00 

Nfs;tp Mtzq;fs; - 2,000.00 

FspHghdq;fs; - 16,371.00 

ghuhl;L md;gspg;Gfs; 5,090.00 6,910.00 

gjtpapdUf;fhd milahs ml;il 6,500.00 

ehlfj;jpw;fhd ed;nfhil 5,000.00 

fy;tprhu; rhd;wpjiog; gFj;jhuha;jy; 6,300.00 

fpwp];k]; ml;ilfs; 7,300.00 

534,298.36         416,228.45         

22.2 kd;dhH epiyak ; k pjhd nrytPdk ;

nrytPdk ;

kd;dhH gjtpapdUf;fhd gbfs; 42,000.00 

Nkyjpf Neuk;> Nghf;Ftuj;J> thu ,Wjpf; nfhLg;gdT 21,293.73 25,850.54 

ngsjPf gFg;gha;T nrytPdq;fs; 9,620.00 18,351.00 

kpd;rhuk; 11,820.30 

ePH 10,867.50 

epWtdj;jhy; cwg;gl ;l nrytPdk ; 30,913.73           108,889.34         

23 epjpr ; nryT

ntspehl;L ehzakhw;W el;lk; 597.97 

tq;fp mwtPL 203,288.24         155,908.18         

203,288.24         156,506.15         
24 xj;jpitf;fg;gl ;l tUkhdk ;

murhq;f khdpa nrhj;Jg; gFjpapd; ngWkhdj; Nja;T 23,828,238.92     19,373,428.98     

gpw;Nghlg;gl;l kPs;kjpg;gPl;L xJf;fk; - -

kdpj ,aYikia tsh;g;gjw;F murhq;fj;jpd; gq;fspg;G - -

23,828,238.92     19,373,428.98     

nkhopngaHg;Gf; fl;lzq;fs; - Mz;lwpf;if kw;Wk; Vidait

epjpf;$w;Wf;fSf;fhd Fwpg;Gfs; 
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epjprhH $w;Wf;fs; njhlHghd mwpf;if 

tUkhdk; 

2017  Mk; Mz;Lld; xg;gpLkplj;J Ma;thz;L  fhyg;gFjpapy;  12%   mjpfupg;Gld; nkhj;j 

tUlhe;j tUkhdkhf &gh 177 kpy;ypaid Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; epWtdk; gjpT 

nra;Js;sJld;> ,J gpujhdkhdkhf khzthfspd; tPo;r;rpapdhy; Vw;gl;bUe;jJ. 

njhopw;ghl;L tUkhdk; 
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tl;b tUkhdk; (epiyahd itg;G> jpiwNrup cz;bay; kw;Wk; miog;G itg;Gfs; tl;b 

tPjk;)> Nghf;Ftuj;J tUkhdk;> rpwpauf nraw;ghLfs; Nghd;w mj;jifa  tsq;fspdhy; 

njhopw;ghl;L tUkhdk; 15%; ,w;F gq;fspg;Gr; nra;jpUf;ifapy;> guprPyid> gapw;rp kw;Wk; 

MNyhrid toq;fy; Nritfspdhy; cUthf;fg;gl;l nkhj;j njhopw;gL tUkhdk; 85% MFk;. 

nkhj;j tUkhdj;jpd; 7%  tUkhdk; njhopy;EZf;f NritfspypUe;J te;jjhFk;. 

vt;thwhapDk;> elg;ghz;by; nkhj;j tUkhdj;jpw;F gq;fspg;Gr; nra;J gapw;rpaspj;jyhdJ>  

gpujhd tUkhd tskhf ,e;j Mz;bypUf;fpd;wJ. 

 
guprPyid tUkhdk;                         

epWtdj;jpdhy; 7,502 khjpupfspypUe;J 47,478 NrhjidfspD}lhf 48.65 kpy;ypad; &gh 

tUkhdk; Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; <l;lg;gl;Ls;sJ. Kd;ida Mz;L fhyg; gFjpAld; 

Xg;gpLifapy; guprPyid tUkhdkhdJ> Fwpg;gplj;jf;f Vw;w ,wf;fj;ijf; nfhz;bUf;f 

tpy;iy.   
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gapw;rp kw;Wk; MNyhrid  

gapw;rpahdJ> epWtfj;jpdhy; toq;fg;gl;l Kf;fpakhd Nritfspnyhd;whFk;. 2018 Mk; 

Mz;by;> gapw;rpahsHfspd; nkhj;j vz;zpf;if 3,751 Mf  gjpag;gl;Ls;sJld;> gapw;rp 

epfo;r;rpj; jpl;lq;fspd; nkhj;j vz;zpf;if 137 MFk;. gapw;rp %ykhd nkhj;j tUkhdk;> 

2017 Mk; Mz;by; ciof;fg;gl;l &gh 113.79 kpy;ypaDld; xg;gpLkplj;J Ma;thz;by; 84.35 

kpy;ypad; &gh cUthf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. ,J. 2017 Mk; Mz;Lld; xg;gpLkplj;J26%,

tPo;r;rpahFk;. 

Vida tsq;fspypUe;jhd tUkhdk; 

Vida tUkhd tsq;fs;> gpujhdkhf epiyahd itg;Gfs; kPjhd tl;b> jpiwNrup 

cz;bay;fs; kw;Wk; miog;G itg;Gf;fs;> KjyPl;L tUkhdk;> Nghf;Ftuj;J 

tUkhdk;, vd;gtw;wpypUe;Jk;> kPjp gq;fspg;ghdJ> khjpup th;zkply;> cztfj;jpd;

thlif> Nfs;tp Mtzf; fl;lzq;fs; kw;Wk; Nghl;Nlhg;gpujp Nghd;w mj;jifa 

ehdhtpj nraw;ghL fspypUe;Jk; Vw;gLj;jg;gl;litahFk;. 
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nrytpdk; 

 

 2018 

 
 
2017 

  kpy;.&gh kpy;.&gh 

     

 
njhopw;ghl;L nrytpdk;      177.51  

    
202.88  

fopf;f:     

nkhj;j njhopw;ghl;L 
nrytpdk 

     
176.679  

      
167.72  

njhopw;ghl;L ,yhgk; /(el;lk;)        0.831        35.16  

      

gpw;Nghlg;gl;l tUkhdk; 

 
       
23,828  

      
 19.27  

      

fhyg;gFjpf;fhd Njwpa kpif 
/(el;lk;) 

       
24,659  

 
54.53  

 

Kd;ida Mz;L 167.72 kpy;ypad; &ghTld; xg;gpLkplj;J ,e;j Ma;thz;L fhyg; gFjpapy; 

cwg;gl;l kPz;nlOk; nrytpdk; 176.679  kpy;ypad; &gh MFk;. ,J> nrytPdj;jpd; 5 %  
mjpfupg;gpidf; Fwpg;gpLfpd;wJ. 

kPz;nlOk; nrytPdkhdJ gpujhdkhf> epUthf kw;Wk; nghJ nrytPdq;fs;;> njhopw;ghl;L> 
guhkupg;G nrytPdk;> Nja;khdk; kw;Wk; gzpf;nfhil Vw;ghL kw;Wk; Vida nrytPdq;fs; 
Nghd;wtw;iw cs;slf;Ffpd;wJ.  

 

Xl;Lnkhj;j epjprhH fl;likg;G   

cl;fl;likg;G  > nghwpj;njhFjp kw;Wk; cgfuzj;jpd; Njwpa ngWkjp 154,905 kpy;ypad; &gh 

MFk;. Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; nkhj;j KjyPL 25.5 kpy;ypad; &ghthFk;.  
 

 ,e;j Mz;by; epWtdj;jpd; xl;Lnkhj;j tUkhdk; 177 kpy;ypadpypUe;J 202 kpy;ypad; 

tiu 12%  ,dhy; mjpfupj;Js;sJ. 
 nkhj;jr; nrytPdk; 168 kpy;ypadpypUe;J 177 kpy;ypad; tiu 5% ,dhy; 

mjpfupj;Js;sJ. 

 nkhj;jj; njhopw;ghl;L tUtha; 35.16  kpy;ypad; &ghtpypUe;J 0.83  &ghthf 

Fiwtile;Js;sJ. 
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2018 Mk; Mz;L  nraw;ghLfs;

Njhy; kw;Wk; ghjzp re;ijapy; tpUJfis ntw;wpnfhz;l ,yq;if Gilit> Mil 
epWtfj;jpd; khztHfs;

‘[a ypa’ Nfhl;ilapy; rpwpa Milj;njhopw;rhiyiaj; jpwe;J itf;Fk; itgtk; 

,yq;if Gilit>Mil epWtfj;jpd; eyd;Gup fpupf;nfl; Nghl;b 
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,yq;if Gilit>Mil epWtfj;jpd; ‘trd;rw’

A 

ISEX fz;fhl;rp - gz;lhuehaf QhgfhHj;j rHtNjr khehl;L kz;lgk;;

rhd;wpjo; toq;Fk; itgtk;



91 

Diploma Award Cermony 

Fspahg;gpl;bapy; fy;tp> tho;f;ifj;njhopy; kw;Wk; njhopy; topfhl;ly; fz;fhl;rp
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jhkiuj; jlhfj;jpy; bg;GNshkh toq;Fk; itgtk; 

gjtpapdH mgptpUj;jp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; : ghjzp cw;gj;jp njhopy;El;gtpay; 
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rhd;wpjo; toq;Fk; itgtk;

,.G.M.epWtfj;jpd; Muha;r;rp kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jpg; gpupT Milf;fhd thio ehH E}ypid 

tpUj;jp nra;jpUe;jJld;> jh[; rKj;jpuh N`hl;lypy; g\d; N\htpy; fhl;rpg;gLj;jg;gl;lik 
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2019 Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd vjpHfhyj; jpl;lq;fs; 

- fy;tp Nehf;fj;jpw;fhf fw;if Kfhikj;Jt Kiwikia> LMS Mfpatw;iw 
mwpKfg;gLj;Jjy;. 

- fy;tp Nehf;fj;jpw;fhf ,-E}yf trjpia mwpKfg;gLj;Jjy;.

- tHj;jfr; re;ijf;F Jzpf;Fg; nghUj;je;jf;f E}yhf thio E}iy mwpKfg;
gLj;Jjy;.

- bg;GNshkh kw;Wk; gl;lf;fy;tp kl;lj;jpyhd epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fis Muk;gpg;gjw;F
gq;fsh Njrj;jpd; g\d; epWtfj;Jld; xj;jpirthd nraw;ghLfis Muk;gpj;jy;.

- gl;lf;fy;tp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fis toq;Ftjw;fhf caH fy;tp mikr;rplkpUe;J
mDkjpiag; ngWjy;.

- Bg;GNshkh epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;F Njrpa njhopy;rhH juj;ijg; ngWjy;.

- ,ltrjpAs;s fl;ll trjpf;fhd epUkhzk;.

- fyhepjp kl;lj;jpyhd fw;iffspy; <lgLtjw;F gjtpapdiu Cf;Ftpj;jy;.

- rpWtHfspd; MilfSf;fhf Rfhjhuk; kw;Wk; MNuhf;fpaj;ij rhd;Wg;gLj;jiy
eilKiwg;gLj;Jjy;.

- ePH mbg;gilapyhd> czT kw;Wk; ,wg;gH mbg;gilapyhd nghUl;fs; Nghd;w
mj;jifa Vida tplag ;gug;GfSf;F  gupNrhjid trjpfis tpupTgLj;Jjy;.

- Gjpa mwpTf;fhf cs;ehl;L kw;Wk; ntspehl;L Muha;r;rp epWtdq;fSld; tiy
aikg;gpidj; jhgpj;jy;
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2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12 Mk; gpuptpd;gb ,yq;if 
Gilit> Mil epWtfj;jpd; 2018 jpnrk;gH 31 ,y; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; 
kw;Wk; Vida rl;l> fz;fhzpg;G Njitg;ghLfs; kPjhd fzf;fha;thsH jiyik mjpgjpapd; 
mwpf;if 

1epjpf; $w;Wf;fs ; 

1.1jFjpAs;s fUj;Jiufs; 

2018 jpnrk;gH 31 ,Ys;sthwhd epjp epiyikf; $w;Wf;fs; cs;slq;fyhf ,yq;if 

Gilit> Mil epWtfj;jpd; 2018 jpnrk;gH 31 ,y; Kbtile;j Mz;bw;fhd epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; 

kw;Wk; epjpr;  nrayhw;Wiff; Fwpg;G> mj;jpfjpapy; Kbtile;j Mz;Lf;fhd cupikj;Jt 

khw;wf; $w;W> mj;jpfjpapy; KbTw;w Mz;Lf;fhd  epjpf; $w;Wf;fSld; njhlHGgl;l epjp 

Xl;lf; $w;Wk; Fwpg;GfSk;> Kf;fpakhd fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;ifapd; nghopg;Gld; 2018 Mk; 

Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; kw;Wk; ,yq;if rdehaf Nrhryprf; 

FbauR murpayikg;gpd; 154 (1) Mk; gpupTld; Nru;j;J thrpf;fg;gLtjhfpa 1971 Mk; Mz;bd; 

38 Mk; ,yf;f epjpapay; rl;lj;jpd; Vw;ghLfspd;gb vdJ gzpg;gpd; fPo; fzf;fha;T 

nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJ. 

vdJ mwpf;ifapy; jFjpAs;s fUj;Jiufs; gpupTf;fhd mbg;gilapy; tpgupf;fg;gl;Ls;s 

tplaq;fspypUe;jhd jhf;fk; jtpHe;j> 2018 bnrk;gH 31 ,Ys;s epjp epiyik kw;Wk; 

,e;epWtfj;jpd; mj;jpfjpapy; KbTw;w Mz;Lf;fhd epjprhh; njhopw;ghLfs; kw;Wk; gz Xl;lk; 

,yq;if mur Jiwapd; fzf;fPl;L epajpfspd;gb cz;ik epiyikiag; gpujpgypf;fpd;wJ 

vd;gJ vdJ mgpg;gpuhakhFk;. 

1.2  jFjpAs;s fUj;JiufSf;fhd mbg;gil 

(m) Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapd; ,Wjpapy; mikr;rpypUe;J “thio fUj;jpl;lk;”
vd;gjw;Fg; ngwg;glj;jf;f njhiff;F 10,250,125/-  &gh Nkyjpfkhf
fzf;fplg;gl;Ls;sJ.

(M) Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; tupir mikr;rhy; toq;fg;gl;l Vw;ghLfspd; fPo;
elj;jg;gl;l %d;W epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fSf;fhf kjpg;gplg;gl;l nryT kPJ

Nkyjpfkhf cwg;gl;l 460,008/-&gh> Mz;bd;  nrytPdkhf fUjhJ rpy;yiw
fld;gLeHfSf;fhf mikr;rplkpUe;J ngwg;gl Ntz;ba njhifnahd;whfj;
jug;gl;Ls;sJ.

(,) rp.rp.up.tp fkwh Kiwikiag; nghUj;Jtjw;fhf tpz;zg;gpf;fg;gl;l 3,108,500/- 
&gh> jpiwNrupapypUe;J ngwg;gLjy; vd;w  rpy;yiwf; fld;gLeHfspd; fPo; 

5,442,000/- &gh njifapy; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ vd;gJld;> epjprhH 

epiyikf; $w;Wf;fspy; ngwg;glTs;s epYitapy Nkyjpkhd 3,108,500/- &gh 
fhl;lg;gl;Ls;sJ. 
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(<) ,yq;if mur Jiw fzf;fPl;L epak ,y.7 ,d;gb Mjdnkhd;wpd; ngWkjp 
kw;Wk; gad;ghl;L fhyk; tUlhe;j mwpf;ifaplypy; xt;nthU fhyg;gFjpapd; 
epiwtpNyDk; kPshag;gLjy; Ntz;Lk; vd;w NghjpYk;> ,e;epWtfk;> 

204,839,496/- &gh tpiyapy; ,ae;jpuk; kw;Wk; cgfuzj;ijg; gad;gLj;jp> 
mit KOtJkhf ngWkhdj; Nja;tile;Js;s  NghjpYk;> me;j 
Mjdq;fspd; kPs; kjpg;gPl;bd; gpd;dH gad;gLj;jj;jf;f fhyj;ij kPshahJ 
mtw;wpd; cz;ikahd ngWkjpiaf; fzf;nfLg;gjw;F  eltbf;iffs; 
vLf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy. 

ehd;> ,yq;if fzf;fha;T epakq;fspd;gb fzf;fha;tpid Nkw;nfhz;Ls;Nsd;. ,e;e 
fzf;fha;T epakq;fspd; fPo; vdJ nghWg;G> ,e;j mwpf;ifapd; epjpf; $w;Wf;fspd; 
fzf;fha;T njhlHghf fzf;fha;thsupd; nghWg;G vd;w gpuptpy; NkYk; tpgupf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

ehd; ngw;Ws;s fzf;fha;T rhd;Wfs; NghJkhdit vd;Wk;> vdJ fzf;fha;Tf; 
fUj;JiufSf;F mbg;gilnahd;iw toq;Ftjw;F nghUj;jkhdJ vd;W ehd; ek;Gfpd;Nwd;. 

epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; njhlHgpy; Kfhikj;Jtj;jpd; kw;Wk; MSk; jug;Gfspd; nghWg;Gf;fs; 

,yq;if mur Jiwapd; gzf;fPl;L epakq;fspd;gb ,e;j fzf;Ff; Fwpg;Gf;fisj; 
jahupg;gjw;fhd mff;fl;Lg;ghl;bidj; jPHkhdpg;gJ> cupa Kiwapy; mtw;iw mDg;GtJld;> 
Nkhrb my;yJ jtWfspdhy; Vw;glf;$ba nghUl;glj;jf;$ba jtWfsw;w epjpf; 
$w;Wf;fisj; jahupg;gjw;F ,ayr;nra;tJ Kfhikj;Jtj;jpd; nghWg;ghFk;.  

epjpf;$w;wf;fisj; jahupf;fpd;wNghJ> epWtfj;jpd; njhlHu;r;rpahd ,Ug;gpw;fhd ,aYikiaj; 
jPHkhdpg;gJ Kfhikj;Jtj;jpd; nghWg;ngd;gJld;> fzf;Ffis Kiwahfg; Ngzp> 
Kfhikj;Jtk; vg;NghJ epWtfj;jpd ;jputj;jd;ikia jPHkhdpg;gJ my;yJ NtW khw;W 
topapy;yhjNghJ epWtfj;jpd; nraw;ghLfis epWj;JtJ vd;git jtpHe;j epWtfj;jpd; 
njhlHr;rpahd ,Ug;Gj; njhlHghd tplaq;fis ntspg;gLj;JjYk; Kfhikj;Jj;jpd; nghWg; 
NgahFk;. 

epWtfj;jpd; epjp mwpf;ifaply; nrad;Kiwapd; nghWg;G mSk; jug;Gf;fshy; cwg;gLfpd;wJ. 

epWtfk;> 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; byf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 16(1) Mk; cl; 
gpuptpd;gb> mjd; tUlhe;j kw;Wk; fhyhe;ju epjpf;$w;Wf;fis jahupg;gjw;F mjd; tUtha;> 
nrhtPdk;> nrhj;Jf;fs; kw;Wk; nghWg;Gf;fs; gw;wpa cupa Gj;jfq;fs; kw;Wk; mwpf;iffisg; 
NgZjy; Ntz;Lk;. 

epjpf;$w;Wf;fis fzf;fha;T nra;tJ njhlHgpy; fzf;fha;thsupd; nghWg;G 

vdJ fzf;fha;tpd; mbg;gilapyike;j ,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; njhlHghd mgpg;gpuhaj;ijj; 
njuptpg;gJ cs;slq;fyhf> ,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fs;;> KOtJkhf> nghUl;gLj;jf;$ba Nkhrb> 
jtWfis nfhz;bUf;ff;$ba nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f gpiofs; mw;wit vd;w epahakhd 
cj;juthjj;ij Kd;itg;gNj vdJ Nehf;fkhFk;. ,e;j epahakhd cj;juthjk; caHe;j 
gl;rkhdjhf ,Uf;fpd;wNghjpYk;> ,yq;iff; fzf;fPl;L epakq;fSf;fikthd fzf;fha;; 
nthd;wpid Nkw;nfhs;fpd;wNghJ nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f jtwhd $w;Wf;fis mJ vg;NghJk; 
ntspg;gLj;Jk; vd;w cj;juthjkhfhJ. nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f jtwhd $w;Wf;fs; vd;gJ> jdpj;j 
my;yJ $l;lhd Nkhrb kw;Wk; jtWfspd; ghjpg;Gfshy; Vw;gLj;jg;gl KbAk; vd;gJld;> 
,jidg; gad;gLj;JgtHfs; ,e;j epjpf;$w;Wf;fspd; mbg;gilapy; epjprhH jPHkhdq;fis 
vLg;gij mJ ghjpf;Fk; vd;W vjpHghHf;fg;gLfpd;wJ. 

ehd;> ,yq;if fzf;fha;T epakq;fSf;fikthf njhopy;rhH jPHg;G kw;Wk; njhopy;rhH 
Iaj;Jld; ,e;jf; fzf;fha;tpid Nkw;nfhz;Ls;Nsd;. NkYk;> 
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 Nkhrbfs; kw;Wk; gpiofs; fhuzkhf epjpf;$w;Wf;fspy; Vw;glf;$ba nghUl;gLj;jj;
jf;f jtwhd $w;Wf;fspd; Mgj;ij ,dq;fhZjy; kw;Wk; kjpg;gpLjypd; NghJ>
epWtdj;jpw;F nghUe;jj;jf;f cupa fzf;fha;T eilKiwfisg; gad;gLj;jp
Nkhrbfs; kw;Wk; gpiofspdhy; Vw;gl;Ls;s Mgj;ijf; Fiwf;Fk; Nehf;fpy; vdJ
fUj;jpw;fhd mbg;gil> NghjpasT> cupa fzf;fha;T rhd;Wfisg; ngWtjhFk;.
nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f $w;nwhd;wpdhy; Vw;gLfpd;w Mgj;jpYk; ghHf;f Nkhrbapd; jhf;fk;
mjpfkhdjhFk; vd;gJld; Nkhrbf;fhd fhuzpfs;> gpioahd $w;Wf;fisj;
jahupj;jy;> Ntz;Lnkd;W jtpHj;jy; my;yJ mff; fl;Lg;ghl;bidj; jtpHj;jy;
vd;gitahFk;.

 epWtdj;jpd; mff; fl;Lg;ghL njhlHghf Gupe;JzHnthd;W ,Ue;jNghjpYk;> epWtdj;
jpw;Fg; nghUe;Jk; tifapy; cupa fzf;fha;T eilKiwfisj; jpl;lkpLtjw;fhf
ngwg;gl;Ls;sik> mJ mff;fl;Lg;ghl;bd; ntw;wp njhlHghd fUj;ij toq;Fk;
cj;Njrj;jpyy;y.

 fzf;fPl;Lf; nfhs;iffs; kw;Wk; fzf;fPl;L kjpg;gPLfspd; epahaj;jd;ik mj;Jld;
Kfhikj;Jtj;jpdhy; nra;ag;gl;l njhlHGgl;l ntspg;gLj;jy;fspd; nghUj;jk;.

 epfo;Tfs; my;yJ fhuzpfs; fhuzkhf epWtfj;jpd; njhlHr;rpahd ,Ug;gpy;
nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f epr;rakpd;ik VNjDKs;sjh vd;W fzf;fha;T rhd;Wfisg;
ngw;Ws;sjd; mbg;gilapy;> fzf;fplYf;fhd mbg;gilahf epWtfj;jpd; njhlHr;rpahd
,Ug;gpidg; gad;gLj;Jtjw;fhd nghUj;jg;ghL jPHkhdpf;fg;gl;lJ. nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f
epr;rakw;wjd;ik ,Uf;fpd;wnjd;W ehd; KbTWj;jpdhy;> mit njhlHghf epjpf;
$w;Wf;fspy; ntspg;gLj;jg;gl;lit njhlHgpy; vdJ mtjhdj;ijr; nrYj;Jjy;
Ntz;Lk; vd;gJld; me;j ntspg;ghLfs; NghJkhditapy;iynad;why;> vdJ
fUj;Jiu jpUj;jpaikf;fg;gLjy; Ntz;Lk;. vt;thwhapDk;> vjpHfhy rk;gtq;fs;
my;yJ fhuzpfs; fhuzkhf njhlHr;rpahd ,Ug;G KbTf;F tUtjw;fhd
rhj;jpakpUf;fpd;wJ

 ntspg;ghLfisf; nfhz;bUf;fpd;w epjpf;$w;Wf;fspd; Kd;itg;G> mjd; fl;likg;G
kw;Wk; cs;slf;fk; ghuhl;lj;jf;fJ vd;gJld;> epjpf; $w;Wf;fspy; cs;slf;fg;
gl;bUg;gtw;wpd; mbg;gilapy;  nfhLf;fy;thq;fy;fs; kw;Wk; epfo;Tfs; cs;sd
vd;gJk; ghuhl;lj;jf;fJ.

MSk; jug;gpdHfSf;F> Kf;fpakhd fzf;fha;T fhz;gpg;Gfs;> gpujhd mff; fl;Lg;ghl;L 
gytPdq;fs; kw;Wk; vdJ fzf;fha;tpy; ,dq;fhzg;gl;l Vida tplaq;fisg; 
Gupe;Jnfhs;sr; nra;ag;gl;lJ. 

2. Vida rl;l kw;Wk; xOq;FgLj;jy; Njitg;ghL

2018 Mk; Mz;bd 19 Mk; ,yf;f Njrpa fzf;fha;T rl;lj;jpy; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s 

gpd;tUfpd;w Njitg;ghLfs; njhlHghd tpNrl Vw;ghLfs; : 

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12 (m) gpuptpy;
cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> vdJ mwpf;ifapd; gFjpahd jFjpAs;s
fUj;JiufSf;F vd;w mbg;gilapy; tpgupf;fg;gl;Ls;s jhf;fq;fs; jtpu;j;J> 
fzf;fha;Tf;Fj; Njitahd midj;Jj; jfty;fisAk; tpguq;fisAk; ehd; 
ngw;Ws;sJld;> vdJ tprhuizapy; ghu;j;jthW epWtfk; cupa gjpTfis 
NgzpAs;sJ. 
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 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 6 (1) (d) (iii) Mk;
gpuptpy; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> epWtdj;jhy; mDg;gg;gl;l
epjpf;$w;Wf;fs; fle;j Mz;Lld; xj;jjhf ,Ue;jJ.

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 6 (1) (d) (iv) Mk;
gpuptpy; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> fle;j Mz;by; vd;dhy; nra;ag;gl;l
gupe;Jiufs; epjpf;$w;Wf;fspy; cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;sd.

eltbf;ifKiwfs; gpd;gw;wg;gl;L> ngwg;gl;l rhd;Wfs; kPJ> mj;Jld; nghUl;gLj;jj;jf;f 
tplaq;fspd; tiuaiwf;Fs; gpd;tUfpd;w $w;Wf;fisj; njuptpg;gjpy; vdJ mtjhdj;ijr; 

nrYj;Jtjw;F vJTkpUe;jpUf;ftpy;iy: 

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12(<) gpuptpy;
cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> epWtfj;jpd; VNjDk; cld;gbf;if
njhlHghf epWtfj;jpd; Kfhikj;Jt rig cWg;gpdH vtuJk; Neubj; njhlHG
my;yJ rhjhuz mYty;fs;; epiyf;F mg;ghy; njhlHgpUf;fpd;wJ.

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12(C) gpuptpy;
cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> epWtfj;jpd; Kfhikj;Jt rigapdhy;
toq;fg;gl;l cupa vOj;JUtpyhd rl;lk; my;yJ gpw NtW fUj;J my;yJ tpNrl
Vw;ghLfSld; ,zq;fhJ gpd;tUfpd;w mtjhdk; nraw;gl;Ls;sJ.

Rl;lq;fs;/Vw;ghLfs; njhlh;ghdit tpguk; 

1994 A+d; 14 Mk; jpfjpa 95 Mk; ,yf;f  cupa mikr;rpd;> nghJj; jpiwNrupapd; kw;Wk; Vida        
nghJ njhopy;Kaw;rpfs; Rw;wwpf;if         cupa epWtdq;fspd; mDkjp ,Ue;jNghjpYk;> 

2018 Mk; Mz;by;> thuhe;j gapw;rp ghlrhiyg; gb>  
fw;ifnewp xUq;fpizg;Gg; gb fl;Lg;ghl;L 
nrayhsUf; fhd gb kw;Wk; fzf;fhsUf;fhd gb 

Nghd;wtw;Wf;fhf 2,961,879/-  &ghtpid Kfikj;jtk; 
nrYj;jpAs;sJ. 

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12(v) gpuptpy; 
cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> gpd;tUfpd;w mtjhdpg;Gf;F epWtfj;jpd; 
jj;Jtq;fs;>flikfs; kw;Wk; mYty;fSld; xj;jpzq;fhJ nraw;gl;Ls;sik. 

Kfhikj;Jtk; FWfpa fhy itg;Gfspy; Nkyjpf epjp 214,925,758/-  &gh 

njhifapid Kjypl;Ls;sJld;> 17,980,982/-  &gh tl;bAk; ngwg;gl;Ls;sJ. 
Mdhy;> epWtfj;jpd; gpujhd Fwpf;Nfhs;fis epwNtw;Wtjw;F epjp gaDs;s 
tifapy; gad;gLj;jg;gltpy;iy. 

 2018 Mk; Mz;bd; 19 Mk; ,yf;f  Njrpa fzf;fha;Tr; rl;lj;jpd; 12(V) gpuptpy;
cs;slf;fg;gl;Ls;s Njitg;ghLfspd;gb> gpd;tUfpd;w mtjhdpg;GfSf;F> epWtfj;jpd;
nrhj;Jf;fisg;;> ngWjy;> Fwpj;j fhy vy;iyf;Fs; gaDWjptha;e;j tifapYk;
tpidj;jpwDlDk;> mj;Jld; epWtdj;jpd; rl;lq;fs; kw;Wk; xOq;Ffspd;gbAk;
gad;gLj;jg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy

(m) cztfj;jpd; cs; tbtikg;gpw;fhf nghwpapay; kjpg;gPL 6,000,000/- &ghthf

,Ue;jpUe;jJld;> 2017 bnrk;gH khjj;jpy; 6,411,515/- &gh jpiwNrupaplkpUe;J
ngwg;gl;lJ. ,uz;L jug;GfSf;Fkpilapyhd xg;ge;jj;jpd;gb ,e;j xg;ge;j
Ntiy 2018> nrg;nuk;gH 09 Mk; jpfjpapypUe;J 60 ehl;fSf;Fs; epiwTnra;a
Ntz;bapUe;j NghjpYk;> MNyhrid Nritfs; kw;Wk; Kw;nfhLg;gdTfSf;fhf

2,101,562/- &gh nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;sikahy; xg;ge;jk; epiwTnra;ag;gltpy;iy.
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(M) khehl;L kz;zlgj;ijg; GJg;gpg;gjw;F 10,000,000/-&gh kjpg;gplg;gl;L> 2018

xf;NlhgH 30 Mk; jpfjp jpiwNrupaplkpUe;J 9,695,000/- &gh ngwg;gl;Ls;sJ.
ngWif eltbf;ifKiw Kiwahf eilKiwg;gLj;jg;glhik fhuzkhf
Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapd; ,Wjpapy; epYitahf ,Ue;Js;sJ.

(,) Gilit E}yfnkhd;iw cUthf;Ftjw;fhf 2018 Mk; Mz;by; ifj;njhopy; 

kw;Wk; thzpg mikr;rpdhy; 3,260,000/- &ghTf;F mDkjpaspf;fg;gl;Ls;sJ.,e;j 

E}yfj;jpw;fhd jsghlk; kw;Wk; cgfuzq;fs; 392,302/- &ghTf;F nfhs;tdT
nra;ag;gl;Ls;sJ. Mdhy;> E}yfj;jpw;fhd epUkhz Ntiy 
Muk;gpf;fg;gltpy;iy. nfhs;tdT nra;ag;gl;l nghUl;fs; epWtfj;jpd; ijay; 
gapw;rpg;gl;liwapy; gadpd;wp ,Uf;fpd;wJ. 

(<) ehd;F khb GJ fl;llj;ij epUkhzpg;gjw;F gioa fl;llj;jpd; xU gFjp 
,bf;fg;gLJy; Ntz;Lkhifahy;> xU tUl thliff;F 2017 A+d; 01 Mk; 

jpfjpapypUe;J mYtyff; flikf;fhf 80,000/- &gh khjhe;j thlif 
mbg;gilapy; fl;llnkhd;W thliff;Fg; ngwg;gl;lJ. epUkhz Ntiy 
Muk;gpf;fg;gltpy;iyahifahy;> gad;ghbd;wp me;jf; fl;llk; g+l;lg;gl;bUg;gJld;> 
rpy gapYeH khztHfs jq;Ftjw;F toq;fg;gl;Ls;sJ. 2018 Vg;gpuy; 16 Mk; 
jpfjpapypUe;J thliff; fl;ll xg;ge;j fhyg;gFjp ,uj;Jr; nra;ag;gl;Ls;s 

NghjpYk;> 960,000/- &gh thlif kw;Wk; 8,353/- &gh kpd;rhuf; fl;lzk; 
nrYj;jg;gl;Ls;sJ. 

(c) ngWif topfhl;ly;fspd; 5.4.8 (m) gpuptpd;gb> ngWif gpizg; nghWg;G
mDg;gg;gLjy; Ntz;Lk; vd;gJld;> 5.4.8 (M) gpuptpd;gb> Ntiy epiwTw;w
jpfjpapypUe;J 28 ehl;fSf;Fs; nrayhw;Wifg; gpizg;nghWg;G tYTf;FtUjy;
Ntz;Lk;. epWtfj;jpd; cztfj;jpd; cs; myq;fhuj;jpw;fhf 2018 xf;NlhgH 14
Mk; jpfjp Njrpa Nghl;b tpiykD NfhUk;  eltbf;ifKiwapd; fPo;

tpiykDf;fs; Nfhug;gl;L> 2017 etk;gH 28 Mk; jpfjp 8,024,885/- &ghTf;F

tpiykD toq;fg;gl;bUe;jJ. 8,024,885/- &ghTf;fhf ngwg;gl;l nrayhw;Wifg;
gpizg;nghWg;G fhyhtjpj; jpfjp 2018 khHr; 07 Mk; jpfjp epiwtile;jpUe;jJ.
nrayhw;Wifg; gpizg;nghWg;G fhyhtjpj; jpfjp kPz;Lk; A+iy 23 ,ypUe;J
bnrk;gH 31 tiu ePbf;fg;gl;bUe;jJ. Kw;nfhLg;gdT gpizg;nghWg;G 
epiwtile;J 01 tUlKk; 03 khjq;fSk; fle;j  NghjpYk;> mjidg; 
GJg;gpg;gjw;F ve;j eltbf;ifAk; vLf;fg;gltpy;iy vd;gJld;> xg;gj;jpd; fPo; 
Ntiy Kbf;fg;gl;lJ njhlHgpy; nghwpapayhsupd; mwpf;ifAk; 
toq;fg;gltpy;iy. 

3. Vida fzf;fha;T mtjhdpg;Gfs;

(m) Gilit kw;Wk; Mil Jiw njhlHghd ghlnewpfisAk; gl;lg;gbg;G glnewpfis
elj;Jtjw;F mbg;gil trjpfSld; toq;Fk; Nehf;fpy; Gjpa ehd;F khbf;
fl;llnkhd;iw epUkhzpg;gjw;F 2015 etk;gH 11 Mk; jpfjp mikr;ruit
mDkjpia toq;fpapUe;jJld;> mj;jpl;lk; 6 khbfisf; fl;Ltjw;fhf khw;wg;
gl;bUe;jJld;> mjw;fhd mikr;ruit mDkjp 2017 bnrk;gH 19 Mk; jpfjp

ngwg;gl;bUe;jJ. fl;llj; jpizf;fsk;> Gjpa fl;llj;jpw;fhd nryT 505,910,000/-
&gh vd;W kjpg;gpl;Ls;sJ. ,e;j Gjpa fl;ll epUkhzj;jpw;fhf jpiwNrup 23
kpy;ypad;> 18 kpy;ypaid 2015 Mk; Mz;by; toq;fpapUe;jJld;> 2017 Mk;
Mz;by; 5 kpy;ypaid toq;fpapUe;jJ. epUkhzj;jpw;fhd ngWifr; nraw;ghLfs;
2019 Nk 31 ,y; epiwT nra;ag;glhJ Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; me;jj;
njhifapy; 3.6 kpy;ypad; &gh nrytplg;gl;bUe;jJld; epUkhzj;jpw;fhd Ntiy
fSk; Muk;gpf;fg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.
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(M)epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lq;fis elj;Jtjw;fhf tupir mikr;rpdhy; Ma;thz;Lf;F Kd;ida
Mz;Lfspy; toq;fg;gl;l njhifapy;> Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapd; Muk;gj;jpy;
eidj;Jg; gjg;gLj;Jk; epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk;> Gyikg;guprpy; epjpak;> kUjKid E}y;
rhakpLk; gapw;rp epiya epUkhzk;> Rfhjhu ghJfhg;G epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; kw;Wk;
ijay; ,ae;jpu gOJghHj;jy; gapw;rp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lk; vd;gtw;Wf;F KiwNa

toq;fg;gl;l 420,537/- &gh, 236,867/-&gh, 2,243,450/-&gh, 1,406,663/-&gh kw;Wk

1,047,344/- &gh njhiffs; ve;j Nehf;fj;jpw;Fk; gad;gLj;jg;gl;bUf;ftpy;iy.

(,) 2018 Mk; Mz;Lf;fhd nraw;wpl;lj;jpd;gb elj;jg;gltpUe;j 208 gapw;rpg; 
ghlnewpfs; jpl;lkplg;gl;l NghjpYk;> khjhe;j gapw;rp epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpd;gb 47 
ghlnewpfs; kl;LNk elj;jg;gl;bUe;jd. 

(<) Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapy; epjpf;$w;wpy; fhl;lg;gl;bUe;j 6,780,996/- &gh tHj;jf 

fld; epYitapy; 4,127,737/- &gh fle;j 3 Mz;LfSf;F Nkyhd fld; 
epYitfshFk;. 

(c) Ma;thz;L fhyg;gjpapy; epiwTw;w Mz;by; ,yq;if Gilit>Mil epWtfj;jpd;
mq;fPfupf;fg;gl;l gjtpazp 140> Mdhy; cz;ikapy; 93  NgH cs;sJld; 47
ntw;wplq;fs; cs;sld. Kd;ida Mz;Lld; xg;gpLkplj;J. ntw;wplq;fspd;
vz;zpf;if 05 ,dhy; mjpfupf;fg;gl;bUe;jJld;> Ma;thz;L fhyg;gFjpapd;
,Wjpapy;$l ntw;wplq;fis epug;Gtjw;F eltbf;if vLf;fg;gl;bUtpy;iy.

Xg;gk; 
lgps;A.gp.rp.tpf;fpukuj;d 
fzf;fha;thsH mjpgjp 
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AN OVERVIEW OF THE INSTITUTE 

INTRODUCTION 

Sri Lanka Institute of Textile, SLITA, has been in the forefront of the business world of 
Textile and Apparel industry and its presence is acknowledged by the producers, in the 
industry, as the institution has been contributing to  their success. Our institute, offers its 
competency to the industry in testing, training and consultancy services, which , in turn, 
would be adapted to industry advantages, in their own operations of the business. As a result, 
industrialists have been able to develop their edges of their own capabilities to gain the status 
as star class cash cows. This trend persists and continues unceasingly, with the contribution  
of our  organization and we, as the driving force of the knowledge , have envisioned to grow 
with the latest industry demands and requirements. 

In the global arena of textile and apparel industry, trends are dynamic and revolutionary with 
the developments of latest techniques on the production floor and the users are more 
intelligent than ever, to select the right product to their satisfaction. As a result,  producers 
are now, finicky about their products, that go to the market to match the pulse of the users. It 
is now a competition between the  product and the mind-set of the users, as customers look 
for fine and flawless products, in the market.  

In this process, SLITA, as a training institution, becomes  instrumental in producing 
visionary leaders to the  industry. The role of SLITA is crucial in this respect, as it offers  
training, testing  and consultancy services as  its core business services to cater to the 
emerging world of textiles and apparel.  In order to look for untapped opportunities in the 
global marketplace, the institution, now, is geared to train both school leavers  and industry  
personnel in various disciplines, that are  demanded in the industry sector.  

During the past years, the Institute has gained a sizeable portion of income through training 
activities and the income gained through testing remained average. Student population is, 
truly, on a rapid rise, reaching to a couple of thousands and more facilities are planned, to 
increase the intake, in the years to come. Further, as the concept of productivity is gaining 
grounds,  specialized training programmes are  offered to  those industrialists, that require 
improvements in productivity in order to compete in  local and international markets. In 
parallel to this, training courses for cottage based industries take a  centre stage of the 
services of the institute  to impart knowledge to  the communities in the less privileged  
districts, so that communities  are able to upgrade their standards of living through a 
sustainable livelihood. As the institutes progresses on the path of development, there looms 
large a host of business opportunities in the offing for the institution to grow with. 
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The Board of Governors 

The Board of Governors are entrusted with the powers to make decision on policy and 
legislation of the Institute and Director General executes the decisions of the Board. The Board 
Meetings are held each month and the members review the progress & activities and set 
guidelines for operations of the Institute. 

The Board as at 31.12.2018 

1 Mr.M.A.Thajudeen Chairman Ministry of Industry & Commerce 

2 Prof.C.N.Herath Member Open University 

3 Prof. (Ms.).U.G.S.Wijayapala Member University of Moratuva 

4 Mr.W.Dhananjaya U Silva Member Textile Manufacturing Association 

5 Mr.K.H.Bandula Fernando Member Chamber of Garment Exporters 
Association 

6 Mr.Felix Fernando Member Sri Lanka Apparel Exporters 
Association 

7 Mr.Jafar Sattar Member Sri Lanka Apparel Exporters 
Association 

8 Ms.R.M.Jayanthi Member Ministry of Finance & Planning 

9 Mr.Harsha Wijewardana Member Ministry of Industry & Commerce 

10 Mr.E.A.N.S.Perera Observer 

11 Mr. A.L.M. Saleem Member Ministry of Development Strategies 
& International Trade  

12 Mr.Roy Jayasinghe Advisor Ministry of Industry & Commerce 
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Staff As At 31.12.2018 

The total staff  strength – 110 

     Category Management 

& Operation 

 Technical/ 

Operation 

Finance      General/ 

Administration 

Employees         05        48      05            34 

Trainee         -        8       - - 

Assignment         -        10       - - 

Mr. A.Robert .V. Peries - Director General
B.Sc (Eng.) Hons,MBA(UK),AMIE(SL),MIAE(HK)
MCPM(SL),  PG Dip IE,MA Dev.studies & Public Policy

Mr. Mr. S. Ilangovan - Director (Training and Technical)
B.Sc. (Eng.) (Text),MBA,AMIE(SL)

Mr. P.V.S. Wijayaratne - Director (Operations)
M.Sc.(MIT), M.Sc (Mgt.), B.Tech(Eng.)Hons
AMIE(SL),LLB

Mr. M.P. Kannangara     - Deputy Director (Administration)
MBA(P.I.M.)
B.Sc.(Col.), PG. Dip in International   Rel:(BCIS)
Dip.in American Professional Qualification-HRM
LLB (UG),Diploma in Legal Studies.

Mrs. Y.A.P.G. Yapa - Accountant
B.Com (Special) , CBA

Mr.M.S.M.Ilham - Internal Auditor
HNDA,ACPM

Senior Staff ( Technical) 

Mr. G. K. K. S. Kumara - Chief Technologist, B.Sc.(Eng.) (Text),MBA,AMIE(SL)

Mr. B.L.S.P. Nishantha - Chief Technologist, B.Sc. (Hons.),M.Sc.(Text.)

Mr. J.P. Samarakoon - Chief Technologist, NDT (Mech)

Mrs. K.A.R.V. Abeywardena - Chief Technologist NDT (Text. Tech.)

Mr. K.Jegatheesan - Chief Technologist, B.Sc.(Eng.)(Text),M.Sc.(Text),AMIE(SL)

Mr.W.M.S.K.Wijebahu - Chief Technologist, B.Sc. (Eng.),M.Sc,AMIE(SL)
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN 

Sri Lanka Institute of Textile and Apparel  has been in the forefront of the business world of 
Textile and Apparel   as a pioneer services provider to the industry, and training, among other 
services, takes a centre stage with the annual student population of around 4000.  The courses 
offered , varying  from certificate to diploma levels, are in high demand from the industry, and 
we are proud to say that all students, are gainfully engaged in prosperous employment 
opportunities. 

In order to reach the next level of training, the Institute is planning to offer an accredited degree, 
on its own,  by the year 2020, apart from the  collaboration with a  university in India. Further, 
the course curricula are being, constantly, upgraded, to cater to the industry expectations, with 
latest teaching techniques armed with modern software, such as Optitex and electronic and 
mechatronic gadgetry. This is complemented by the opportunities accorded to the teaching 
faculty, so that human resources are upgraded to meet the future demands, as a prospective 
degree awarding institution. While operating as an institute, we have, now, embarked on 
innovative  opportunities in research activities and an  appreciable endeavour is exerted on a 
banana yarn extraction project. The intended project , serves the country, at large, as a backward 
integration activity for the textile industry and the related banana farmer communities, in return, 
are largely benefited.  

Institute is, additionally, strengthened with the capability of its ISO 17025 accredited 
laboratory, having its upgraded  facilities for numerous tests, that are  demanded in the industry, 
and , currently, facilities  have been extended to perform leather and footwear tests, as well, that 
are demanded from the industry. We take pride in mentioning that, the institute has contributed, 
immensely to the export oriented industry, in terms of training, testing and consultancy services, 
and subsequently, institute has achieved its self-sufficiency in finances through  its operation.  

M.A.Thajudeen,
Chairman - SLITA
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MESSAGE  FROM  DIRECTOR GENERAL 

Sri Lanka Institute of  Textile and Apparel , SLITA , has now gained popularity as the leading 

service  provider to the  industry with its excellent service delivery to the industry, and I 

consider it an honour to be at the helm to drive the organization.  I, further, believe that,  it is my 

bounden duty to spearhead the Institution to its success with the challenge in the industry. Sri 

Lanka Institute of Textile and Apparel, has gained its excellence  as the premiere institution to 

deliver its core businesses to the industry,  in terms of training, testing, consultancy and 

technical services. Now, in the market place, the buzz word is cost and quality and the trends in 

the industry are that, there develops   very competitive global market structures  ,and  the  

contribution of the Institute as a major role player of service delivery has earned its due place in 

the industry. Hence, we, as the pioneer organization in the services of textile and apparel sphere, 

should endeavour to gain service excellence in the presence of where,  quality and costs are the 

reigning words in the market. 

The institute shows a growth in its financial performance by showing increases in its revenues. 

Further, training has taken a fresh start  in introducing new courses, that suit the industry 

demands and at the same, consultancy services are made available to prospective industrialists 

on their requests for business improvements. Similarly, Productivity Improvement Programme, 

PIP, and Small & Medium Scale , SME, training programme, carry their own merits in 

strengthening the productivity and skill enhancement in industrialists.  

Records on financial performances,  for the year 2018  show healthy trends, that are the obvious 

results attributed to  employee commitment  , and meanwhile, SLITA is treading on a sure path 

of success in its business , in the years ahead to come. We see an accomplished way forward in 

future,  a multiple  opportunities in the pipeline for  our institution to prosper and I do sincerely 

admire the unstinted co-operation extended by  Hon Minister, Rishad Baduideen, enthusiasm 

shown by Chairman, the members of the Board of Governors and the fellow employees. 

I wish the institution a success in its every endeavor. 

Thanking you. 

Eng. Robert.V.Peiris 
Director - General 
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR GENERAL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
The responsibilities of the Director General, in relation to the financial statements of the 
Institute, differ from the responsibilities of the Auditors. 
 
As per the provisions of the Finance Act, the Director General is required to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year giving a true and a fair view of the state of affairs of the 
organization as at the end of the financial year and of the results of its operations for the 
financial year. 
 
The Director General considers that, in preparing these financial statements, appropriate 
accounting policies have been selected and applied in a consistent manner and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgment and that all applicable Accounting Standards, as relevant, have 
been followed. 
 
The Director General  is also confident that the organization has adequate resources to continue 
in operation and have applied the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements. 
Further the Director General has a responsibility to ensure that the organization maintains 
sufficient accounting records to disclose with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the 
organization and to ensure that the financial statements presented comply with the requirements 
of the Finance Act. 
 
The Director General is also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of 
the organization and in this regard to give proper consideration to the establishment of 
appropriate internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The Director General is confident that he has discharged his responsibilities as set out in this 
statement. The Director General also confirms that to the best of his knowledge, all statutory 
payments by the organization as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or where relevant, 
provided for. 
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set 
out below: 

1. Basis of Preparation

(i) The financial statements comply with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting
Standards (SLPSAS) for the accrual basis of accounting .The financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis and the accounting policies have
been applied consistently throughout the period.

(ii) The calendar year is the Financial Year of the Institute.
(iii) Financial Act No.38 of 1971 applies in respect of financial control and accounts

of the Institute.

Accounting Policies 

1. Property, Plant and Equipment
All Infrastructure, plant and equipment other than land are  stated at historical cost/
valuation, less accumulated depreciation.

Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bringing an asset to working condition for
its intended use. Significant renovations are capitalized if they extend the life of the asset
beyond its originally estimated useful life or increase its recoverable value. Maintenance,
repairs and minor renewals are charged to income as incurred.

The cost of Infrastructure, plant & equipment that are disposed of are eliminated from
the balance sheet, along with the corresponding accumulated depreciation. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by reference to their carrying amount and are taken
into account in determining operating profit.

2. Depreciation
The provision for depreciation is calculated by using a straight-line method on the cost
of all property, plant and equipment  in order to write-off such amounts over the
following estimated useful lives by equal installments.

Following rates are applied for the depreciation .

Buildings    2.5% 2.5%
Plant and Machinery 10% 
Furniture ,Fittings, Fixtures &Equipment 10% 10%
Canteen Equipment 10% 
Motor Vehicles 10% 
Computers & Software 20% 
Books and Periodicals 10% 
Lab Equipment 10% 
Video Programme 25% 
Industrial Sewing Machine 10% 

Full depreciation rate  is charged for the assets acquired in the first half of the year and  
50% depreciation rate is charged for acquisition during the second half of the year. 
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3. Inventories

All inventories are held to be used by the Institute, in providing its services. Inventories
are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using First In,
First Out (FIFO) method.

4. Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount.

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
hand, deposits and other short term highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less.

6. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Institute has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events. It is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

7. Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions and gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions are recognized in the income statement.

8 Superannuation

Terminal benefits are provided for those employees who have completed  one year of
service in the Institution, under the Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983 and LKAS 19 .Basic
salary includes  cost of living allowances and the special living allowance also.

9. Defined Contribution Plan

All employees of the Institute are members of the Employees’ Provident Fund and
Employees’ Trust Fund, to which the Institute contributes 12% and 3% respectively of
such  employees’  basic salary together with the  cost of living allowance and other
special living allowance.

10. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis on invoiced value for sale of services net off
Value Added Tax, Nation Building Tax and discounts.
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13. Expenditure

Expenses are recognized on accrual basis.  All expenditure incurred in running the
Institute and in maintaining property, plant & equipment in a state of efficiency have
been charged to income in arriving at the profit for the period.

14. Cash Flow

Statement of Cash Flow is prepared using the Indirect Method.

13. Government Grant

Government  grant related to assets and non monetary grants are accounted
according to the new standard (LKAS20).  Grants are recognized where there is
reasonable assurance that  the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expenditure  item, it is recognized as
income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is set up as deferred
income. Where the Institute receives non-monetary grants, the assets and that grants are
recorded at nominal amounts and are released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant assets by equal annual installments.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURE 

1. Financial statements have been prepared  as per the guidelines given in the SLPSAS-1
and SLPSAS -11 .

2. Investments in Treasury Bills, Fixed Deposit and call deposits

Investments in call Deposits  are stated in the accounts at cost.
Investments in Treasury Bills and Investment in fixed Deposits are stated in the accounts
at accumulated value.

3. Provision for Bad Debtors

Bad debtors provision is represented under deduction  of  Trade receivables .
In compliance with SLFRS, debtors are grouped in different categories' and according to
their pattern of payment following bad debtors provisions are applied.

 Age group                 Provision rate 

 <90 Days 0% 

 90 to 180 Days               2% 

 180 to 360 Days             3% 

 360 to 720 Days             4% 

 720 to 1080 Days           5% 

>1080 Days 100% 

4. Inventories
All inventories are held to be used by the institute, in providing its services. Inventories 
are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using first in 
first out (FIFO) method.

5. Gratuity provision

Total amount  of the gratuity provision  was invested on  fixed deposits from 2014 

and stated under Superannuation heading.

6. Government Grant

Depreciation portion of the Capital purchases from grants  are  accounted as deferred 

income.
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7. Revaluation

Completion of Revaluation Report was  not submitted  by the government valuation
department in   the  year.

8. Productivity Improvement programme

The excess amounts received by the institute on PIP programs are  included under Other
consultancy income.

9. Disposal of Assets

Disposal process  and  all adjustments were completed in the year.

10. Provision for staff development fund

Provision for staff development fund was calculated  for this year at  0.5%  on
recovery in accordance with the Act.

11. Research and  Development Project

SLITA implements the Banana Yarn project under Research and development project
and funded  by the Ministry.

12. Capital Grant

Under this, fund granted by the ministry for following projects.

o Building
o Productivity Improvement Programme
o SME
o Health and safety project
o Footwear Training
o Development of new Banana Yarn
o Wet Processing programme
o Training Need Analysis
o Fabric Library
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13. Palamunai Dye Centre

SLITA operates business at palamunai dye centre and  operating profit/loss of this

centre  was  separately  calculated.

14. Advance payment on Building Construction
Capital allocation for  Building construction was Rs.75 mn for the year. It was
allocated by the treasury based on cabinet paper passed by the
parliament.Rs.3,850,912 was paid as building advance.

15. Projects
Several projects were completed in the year and expenses were  born by the
Institute. An amount of Rs.38,078,766.19  is  due from Ministry of Industry and
Commerce at the end of the year.
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2018 2017
Rs Rs 

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1 258,032,421 196,684,604 

Receivables 2 62,642,741 92,730,546 

Inventories 3 2,744,173 3,006,954 

Pre payments 4 1,231,713 1,447,685 

Payment in advance for capital works 5 3,850,912 36,805,755 

Other current Assets 6 8,910,825 9,803,464 

Total current Assets 337,412,784 340,479,008 

Non - Current Assets

Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment (Net) 7 104,208,652 104,132,958 

Land & Buildings (Net) 8 50,696,779 49,167,918 

154,905,432           153,300,876 

Total assets 492,318,216 493,779,884 

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Payables 9 10,611,842 11,318,721 

Short - term provisions 10 2,148,627 2,247,802 

12,760,469 13,566,523 

Non current liabilities

Superannuation 11 38,005,998 38,548,057 

38,005,998 38,548,057 

Total liabilities 50,766,467 52,114,580 

Net assets 441,551,748           441,665,303 

Net assets/ Equity
Govt.Contributions & Foreign Aid 12 162,061,321 182,257,166 

Other projects 13 18,919,541 23,129,956 

Accumulated surplus (Deficit) 14 260,570,887 236,278,182 

Total net assets / Equity 441,551,748           441,665,303 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 

These Financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26.02.2019

and singed on their behalf.

……………………............... .............................................. ......................................
BOARD MEMBER ACCOUNTANT CHAIRMAN

  SRI LANKA INSTITUTE OF TEXTILE & APPAREL

STATEMENT OF  FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31.12. 2018

Note  

No.



116 

SRI LANKA INSTITUTE OF TEXTILE & APPAREL

          STATEMENT OF  FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE   FOR  THE  YEAR ENDED 31.12.2018

Note 2018 2017
No. Rs Rs

Revenue
Fees and others 15 177,510,267       202,882,320         

Total Operating Revenue 177,510,267       202,882,320         

Expenses

Personal Emoluments (Wages, Salaries & Employee benefits) 16 92,400,532         87,371,113 

Traveling 17 515,325 745,075 

Supplies & Consumables used 18 11,264,143         9,724,897 

Repairs and Maintenance 19 8,024,248 5,063,229 

Contractual Services 20 20,150,913         18,711,819 

Depreciation & Amortization expenses 21 23,945,918         21,456,927 

Other expenses 22 20,175,295         24,490,637 

Finance Cost 23 203,288 156,506 

176,679,662       167,720,204         

Surplus/(Deficit) from operation activities 830,605              35,162,116           

Other  revenue
Deferred Income 24 23,828,239         19,373,429 

Total other revenue 23,828,239         19,373,429           

Total Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 24,658,844         54,535,545           

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. 

These Financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on   26.02.2019

and singed on their behalf.

……………………    ………………… ………………
BOARD MEMBER    ACCOUNTANT CHAIRMAN
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Schedule 2018 2017
No. Rs Rs.

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period 24,658,844        54,535,545 

Adjustments for 

 Amortization - Differed income (23,828,239)       (19,373,429) 

 Depreciation 23,945,918        21,456,927 

Operating surplus/(Deficit) before working capital changes 24,776,523        56,619,044 

Increase in provision for Gratuity 3,588,649 3,033,726 

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 262,781 803,251 

(Increase)/Decrease in pre payments 215,972 560,833 

(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 892,639 (2,960,971) 

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables 30,087,806        (51,358,404) 

Decrease in previous year deficit (P/y/adj) (366,139) (1,116,520) 

Increase in Trade other Payables (706,879) (748,334) 

Increase in provisions (99,175) 1,190,802 

Gratuity Payments made (4,130,708)         (3,782,716) 

Net Cash Flows from Operating  Activities 54,521,469        2,240,710             

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Plant & Equipments (25,580,013)       (39,165,727) 

Advance Payment for Capital Expenditure 32,954,843        (35,757,554) 

Disposal of Assets 29,539 - 

Human Capacity Building - - 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 7,404,369          (74,923,281)          

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Grants  (Cash) 12,543,000        25,000,000 

Capital Grants  (Assets) 15,757,393        49,076,423 

Changes in other Grants (24,667,999)       

Changes in other projects (4,210,415)         957,881 

Net Cash Flows from financing Activities (578,021)            75,034,304           

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 61,347,817        2,351,733             

Cash and cash equivalent  at  beginning of period 196,684,603      194,332,870         

Cash and cash equivalent  at end of period 1 258,032,421      196,684,603         

Schedule  No.1

Cash & Cash  Equivalents

Cash at Bank
 Bank of Ceylon - Ratmalana(A/C 9521019) 3,940,984 

 Bank of Ceylon Ratmalana Foreign Currency (A/C7011691) 1,159,681 

Short term Investments 
 Fixed deposits in BOC NRFC A/C No.000008446418 3,931,740 

 Treasury Bills (Gratuity fund) 14,448,159        

 Call deposit (including Gratuity fund) 234,551,858      

258,032,421      

SRI LANKA INSTITUTE OF TEXTILE & APPAREL
 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st  DECEMBER  2018



118 

SRI LANKA  INSTITUTE OF TEXTILE & APPAREL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2018

Schedule 

No.
Contributed 

capital

 Other reserves  Translation 

reserves 

Accumulated 

surplus/deficit

Total       NA/E

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance as at 31.12.2017 1 205,387,121      - - 236,278,182         441,665,303      

Changes in accounting policy - - - - - 

Changes NA/E in the year 2        (24,406,260) -   (366,139) (24,772,399)       

Gain on property revaluation - - - - - 

- 

Loss on revaluation of Investments - - - - - 

Foreign currency translation losses - - - - - 

Net revenue directly recognized in NA/E (24,406,260)       - - (366,139) (24,772,399)       

Surplus/deficit for the period - - - 24,658,844 24,658,844        

Total revenue  recognized for the period - 

- 

Closing balance as at 31.12.2018 180,980,861      - - 260,570,887         441,551,748      

Schedule  No. 1 Rs.

Contributed capital
Govt. contributions & Foreign Aid Balance as at 

31.12.2017 149,726,247      

Total balance of other projects as at 31.12.2017 55,660,874        

205,387,121      

Schedule  No. 2

Changes NA/E in the year
Capital Grants in the year 3,632,394 

Amortization of Assets in the year (23,828,239)       

Changes in other projects during the year (4,210,415)         

(24,406,260)       
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1 Cash & Cash  Equivalents

3,940,984.16        3,481,533.64       

1,159,680.82        485,571.68          

Cash at Bank
Bank of Ceylon - Ratmalana A/C 9521019)    
Bank of Ceylon - Ratmalana  Foreign Currency (A/C7011691)
Short term Investments  (Discloser No.2)

1.1 252,931,756.05    192,717,496.75   

258,032,421.03    196,684,602.07

1.1 Short term Investments  (Discloser No2 )
Fixed deposits in BOC NRFC A/C No.000008446418 (Gratuity fund) 3,931,739.58        3,559,746.11       

Treasury Bills (Gratuity fund) 14,448,158.68      13,400,234.72     

Call deposit (including Gratuity fund) 234,551,857.79    175,757,515.92   

252,931,756.05    192,717,496.75   
2 Receivables 

Trade receivables (Discloser No.3)
Testing debtors  (2.1) 2,671,379.27        4,738,250.42       

Training -  Internal debtors (2.2) 3,486,648.80        8,719,291.58       

Training - External debtors (2.3) 161,600.00 251,600.00          

Consultancy  services debtors (2.4) 83,558.88 83,558.64 

Customer / Technical Services debtors (2.5) 32,680.00 70,800.39 

Other Trade debtors (2.6) 345,129.45 489,561.20          

6,780,996.40        14,353,062.23     

Less - Provision for Bad debtors (4,157,433.26)       (3,800,665.49)      

2,623,563.14        10,552,396.74     

Sundry debtors (2.7) 60,019,177.39      82,178,149.66     

62,642,740.53      92,730,546.40     

2.1 Testing Debtors 
Alpha Apparels 443,623.50 575,484.00          

American & Eire Lanka Put Ltd - 10,302.00 

Bernard Phil knit (Ceylon) Ltd 4,290.60 -

Brandi Apparel Ltd 19,317.75 19,317.75 

Brandi Apparel Ltd - FC 2,757.48 1,879.88 

Brandi Casual wear Ltd - FC 1,727.52 1,727.52 

Brandi Finishing (Pvt.) Ltd - 4,255.00 

Brandi Intimate Apparels Ltd 4,830.00 4,830.00 

Britannia Garment Packaging - 820.85 

Civil Security Department 33,350.00 80,211.35 

Clifton Industries Ltd  - Normal Testing 9,996.00 22,643.40 

Consumer Affairs Authority 5,255.04 5,255.04 

Cotton Para dais 29,295.68 -

Creative Textile Mills - Normal testing 22,111.05 69,734.86 

Department of  Textile Industry - 10,674.30 

DG Fashions Garment (put) Ltd 7,539.84 7,539.84 

Delink & Madushani Product 21,295.68 -

Directorate of Ordnance Services S.L.Army 248,600.40 248,600.40          

Dousle X L 3,069.43 -

D Samson Industries Pvt Ltd 850.43 -

Excise Department of Sri Lanka 27,096.30 -

Eligant Knitting(pvt)ltd - 2,142.00 

Firefiles for Lanterns - 3,636.30 

Genaral Sir John Kotalawala Defence University 22,111.05 22,111.05 

Globe Knitting (pvt)Ltd - 4,437.00 

G P Garments (Pvt) Ltd - 273,987.30 

Hela Clothing (Pvt) Ltd 570.80 570.80 

Hela Clothing (Pvt) Ltd - FC 44,999.21 44,999.21 

Hela Marketing & Design Centre 9,775.00 9,775.00 

Hela Salu Weaving 29,295.68 -

Irosha International 4,516.05 -

Interteck Lanka(pvt)ltd - 7,448.55 

Notes to Financial Statements contd....

2018               2017 
Rs Rs. 
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J.P.Fernando & Sons - 4,809.30 

Lanka Salusala 27,096.30 27,096.30 

Lakshman Industries 21,295.68 -

Liya Sahana Handloom Society 21,295.68 -

Lumiere Textiles Ltd - 13,606.80 

Mas Active (Pvt) Ltd - Linea Intimo 121,788.00 245,259.00 

Mas Active 14,994.00 -

Ministry of Education & Higher Education 6,740.16 6,740.16 

Ministry of Law & Order - 31,802.96 

Mirage Industries - Forces Uniform 21,134.40 21,134.40 

M.S.R.Apparel 3,753.60 3,753.60 

National Youth Service Council 26,509.80 -

NTS Interlining(pvt) Ltd - 5,155.30 

Omega Line Ltd 136,425.00 -

Openta Pvt Ltd 7,474.93 -

Penguin Leisurewear (Pvt)Ltd 26,128.58 26,128.58 

Police Head Quarters 111,908.94 222,729.81          

Praba Tex Industries - Forces Uniform - 289,203.16 

Rajitha Tex - Forces uniform - 86,729.80 

Regitsrar - Magistrate Court 49,999.99 49,999.99 

Rainwear Apparel(pvt) Ltd - 23,284.05 

Rhino Consultants & Facilitators 1,887.00 -

Radiant Textile 2,463.30 -

Sarasavi Exports (Pvt) Ltd 23,254.73 14,193.30 

Sarasavi Indus.(pvt) Ltd - 38,210.48 

S.G.S Lanka (Pvt) Ltd 204,506.65 180,816.28 

Shinsee Lanka (Pvt) Ltd 12,850.47 12,850.47 

Special Task Force - 50,937.53 

Spencer Denim Industries (Pvt) Ltd 1,583.55 1,583.55 

Sri Lanka Airforce Head Quarters 255,765.00 33,342.53 

Sri Lanka Army Headquarters - 412,366.75 

Sri Lanka Army 85,445.32 85,445.32 

Sri Lanka Army Ordance Factory - 5,539.00 

Sri lanka Home guard Forces 17,250.00 17,250.00 

Sri Lanka Navy 204,336.88 383,718.22 

Sri Lanka Standard Institution 17,344.30 47,725.00 

S & S Safety Equipment Holdings 23,973.10 23,973.10 

Star Textiles processing Industries - 38,269.13 

Sri Lanka Customs 17,595.00 17,595.00 

Super Fashion Garment 523.49 523.43 

Super Tex - 656,234.85 

Sin Mar Colombo Pvt Ltd 15,410.03 -

Sirio Ltd 60,537.00 -

Sriyani Ikramm Medical Industries Pvt Ltd 15,512.93 -

Texpro Industries Ltd - Normal Testing - 1,377.00 

Textured Jersey Lanka PLC 2,790.00 -

Tristar Apparel Export (Pvt) Ltd 790.00 790.00 

T & T Fashion 1,583.55 -

Vanguard Industries   Ltd 12,880.00 74,110.52 

Vanguard Industries   Ltd - Forces Uniform 100,277.42 151,582.35          

2,671,379.27        4,738,250.42       

Notes to Financial Statements contd....

2018 2017 
Rs Rs. 



121 

2.2 Internal Training Debtors
Course fees to be received from students 2,486,935.00        6,618,515.00       

Air Force Sewavanitha Garment (SME) 20,400.00 20,400.00 

Alpha Apparels Ltd 143,700.00 16,200.00 

Alpine Clothing(pvt) Ltd - 12,240.00 

Broadway Kids(pvt)ltd - 20,400.00 

Chamber of commerce - 86,700.00 

Celcious (Pvt) Ltd 46,000.00 46,000.00 

Courtaluds Clothing Lanka (Pvt) Ltd - 51,000.00 

District Secretariat - 40,800.00 

Dynamic Clothing(Pvt) Ltd 7,650.00 7,650.00 

Everest Footwear Industries 40,800.00 40,800.00 

Jayz Arvind Enterprises Ltd 118,320.00 118,320.00 

Lebara Welness Centre - 40,800.00 

Ministry of Education service - 601,800.00 

MRC Embroidery 17,952.00 -

Nordex (Pvt) Ltd 54,840.00 54,840.00 

N P N Perera & Co . (Pvt) Ltd 40,800.00 40,800.00 

Omega Line Ltd - -

One Time Training Customers 353,398.20 347,456.98          

Paradigm Clothing (Pvt) Ltd 3,750.00 3,750.00 

Pathma Distributors - 10,200.00 

Pearly Fashion 30,600.00 30,600.00 

Perks Clothing - 10,300.00 

Prym Intimates lanka (Pvt) Ltd 25,600.00 25,600.00 

Rusirumal (Pvt) Ltd. 1,000.00 1,000.00 

Sri Lanka Army 4,000.00 4,000.00 

Sirio Ltd 29,784.00 408,000.00 

Textured Jersey (Pvt) Ltd 46,350.00 46,350.00 

Trig Apparel (Pvt) Ltd 14,769.60 14,769.60 

3,486,648.80        8,719,291.58       

2.3 External Training Debtors
Design Clothing International( Pvt)ltd - 30,000.00 

Eligant Knitting(pvt)Ltd - 30,000.00 

Kane Apparel 10,200.00 10,200.00 

Lanka Garments Mfg. Co Ltd 7,500.00 7,500.00 

Pattern Garment (SME) 12,500.00 12,500.00 

Queens workwear 30,000.00 30,000.00 

Shas Wear (Pvt) Ltd 30,600.00 30,600.00 

S G Q Apparel 30,000.00 30,000.00 

Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Factory 40,800.00 40,800.00 

Sparkle Link (Pvt) Ltd - 30,000.00 

161,600.00           251,600.00          

2.4 Consultancy  Services   Debtors
Department of Health services 1,730.40 1,730.40 

Pathma Distributors 2,203.20 2,203.20 

Policy Headquarters 18,506.88 18,506.64 

Special Task Force 22,505.28 22,505.28 

Sri Lanka Customs 13,708.80 13,708.80 

Sri Lanka Navy 24,904.32 24,904.32 

83,558.88 83,558.64            

2.5 Customer /Technical Services Debtors
Department of Industries Development - 4,628.20 

Nordex (Pvt) Ltd 3,300.00 3,300.00 

Rajitha Tex - 45,222.19 

Sha Lanka Apparel 17,650.00 17,650.00 

Vanguard Industries   Ltd 11,730.00 -

32,680.00 70,800.39 

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
2018 2017 
Rs Rs. 
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2.6 Other Trade Debtors
Bearfoot (Pvt) Ltd 2,500.00 2,500.00 

Dream Fashion - 11,700.00 

Fidelity Manufacturing (Pvt) Ltd 200.00 200.00 

Forte Healthcare (pvt )ltd 3,240.00 3,240.00 

Kulendran Palamunai - 17,367.75 

MAS Active (Pvt) Linea Intimo - 500.00 

MAS Capital (Pvt) Ltd 46,920.00 46,920.00 

MAS Intimates (Pvt.) Ltd 82,516.86 91,900.86 

MAS cap team 800.00 800.00 

Orients Garments Ltd Sam-Dyeing 8,625.00 8,625.00 

Senthikumaran Palamunai - 5,400.00 

Sri Lanka Chamber of Garment Exporters 12,000.00 12,000.00 

Sri Lanka army Head Quarters 20,644.80 35,644.80 

State Ministry of Education 161,500.04 161,500.04 

Vanguard Industries - 70,380.00 

Textured jersey lanka (Pvt) Ltd 3,300.00 3,300.00 

Unichella (Pvt.) Ltd - Dyed sample 2,882.75 2,882.75 

Yasinndu Textiles - 14,700.00 

345,129.45 489,561.20          

2.7 Sundry Debtors
Ministry of Industry & Commerce (PIP & SME) 4,479,251.00        4,300,000.00       

Ministry of Industry & Commerce -Research &Dev. Unit Banana fiber 26,634,279.35      11,545,698.00     

Ministry of Industry & Commerce- Footwear 5,455,000.00        5,529,761.50       

Ministry of Industry & Commerce- Mini Apparel project - 810,000.00 

Ministry of Industry & commerce Sewing Machi.Dev Programme - 2,265,680.00 

Ministry of Industry & Commerce- Wet Process.Ind.Project 436,170.00 1,250,000.00 

Ministry of Industry & Commerce- Diviyata Udana-Train need analysis 681,763.74 437,147.08          

Ministry of Industry & Commerce- Health & Safety Project - 15,502,603.79 

Ministry of Industry & Commerce- Fabric Library 392,302.10 - 

Handloom Development Programme 31,981.85 - 

Over Expenditure Mini.of Ind.& Com.Mini Apparel Project 261,034.71 - 

Mini.of Ind.& Com.Improve. Of  Student Facilities 166,991.76 - 

General Treasury 5,442,000.00        30,000,000.00     

Canteen rental receivable A/C 15,000.00 5,000.00 

Miscellaneous advance 38,937.76 55,537.76 

Interest receivable on F/D 253,581.04 246,851.28          

Interest receivable  on Treasury bill 36,914.84 5,337.84 

Interest receivable  for Call deposits 10,002,058.66      9,126,855.68       

Returned Cheques - 9,765.63 

VAT receivable - 290,441.19 

Input VAT - 403,289.41 

Welfare Society 399,999.94 -

Salary advance. For communication 3,589.02 -

Sri Lanka Insurance co. 197,250.00 -

Bank guarantee for bid Security - Palamunei dye centre - 350,900.00 
Diviyata Udanaya'' Awareness Programme 300,905.90 

Conducted Train Need Ana for App. Indus Proj.Rs.2 M 378,617.51 

Fabric Library Establaish.Expen Rs 3.25Mn 1,200.00 

Health & Safety Certifi.Project.11.31 Mn-2018 2,394,174.15        

Health & Safety Survay Project-Rs.15 M-2017 1,328,893.56        

Sawing Machine Maintenance-Rs.8.290Mn 644,000.00 

Lanka  Ashok Leyland PLC 43,280.50 43,280.50 

60,019,177.39      82,178,149.66     

3 Inventories (Discloser No.4 )
Stationery   912,160.22 1,024,990.86       

Training  material & Consumables 1,220,249.62        1,271,778.03       

Dyes & Yarn 16.4.1 414,905.37           513,327.50          

Spare parts & Accessories 196,857.30 196,857.30          

2,744,172.51        3,006,953.69       

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
2018  2017 
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4 Pre payments
Insurance -  Medical 232,161.47 227,156.55          

Insurance-  Motor vehicles 391,681.74 376,167.32          

Insurance - Fire & other 99,137.09 107,042.10          

Insurance - Money in transit - 6,331.78 

Service Contracts - Computers 44,734.77 44,609.26 

Service Contract - Furniture & Equipment 135,186.68 116,850.11 

Vehicle License - 39,539.93 

Supplies- Accreditation fee of Testing Laboratory 328,811.13 529,988.04 

1,231,712.88        1,447,685.09       

5 Payment in Advance for capital works
Building Construction 3,850,911.98        36,805,755.23     

3,850,911.98        36,805,755.23

6 Other Current Assets
Staff loans    (6.1) 8,504,825.06        9,181,464.17       

Deposits (6.2) 406,000.00 622,000.00          

8,910,825.06        9,803,464.17       

6.1 Staff loans  
Distress loan (6.1.1) 8,499,825.06        9,168,964.17       

Festival advance (6.1.2) 5,000.00 12,500.00 

8,504,825.06        9,181,464.17       

6.1.1 Distress Loan
Mr. D L Wijetunga 187,500.04 -

Mrs.W A C Ashoka 70,833.42 120,833.46          

Mr. M N Amarasinghe - 41,666.64 

Mr. S D R Hemajith Fernando - 14,062.32 

Mrs. R M N D Ranasinghe 116,666.60 166,666.64 

Mr. R A D R I Perera 68,932.60 114,887.56 

Mr. H L P Gunawardena - -

Mr. J A Priyantha 99,999.92 149,999.96          

Mrs. D A M Priyangika 33,125.00 72,875.00 

Mrs. W M D A Warnasooriya 74,999.93 124,999.97          

Miss. G S Waduge 156,250.06 218,750.02          

Miss. S L S Karunaratne 156,250.06 218,750.02          

Miss. T R Jayatilake 156,250.06 218,750.02          

Mrs. E A D Sunitha 203,125.03 149,999.96          

Miss. P K R S Ariyaratne 234,375.01 124,999.94          

Mr. L T D Hettiarchchi 151,250.04 206,250.00          

Mr. M D U Jayadasa 74,999.91 124,999.95          

Mr. G R P Pushpa Kumara Perera - 5,833.33 

Mr. J P D R Wijewardene 155,000.00 215,000.00 

Mrs. D N Dodangoda 182,291.71 244,791.67 

Mrs. R A D T Samaranayake 79,166.74 129,166.78 

Miss. G S Ranjani 228,543.33 116,250.00 

Mr. R A N Prera - 23,333.30 

Mrs. C A D S Kandambi 182,291.71 244,791.67 

Mrs. T Balachndra 192,708.37 124,999.94 

Mrs. J M A S A Jayakodi 74,999.90 124,999.94 

Mrs. J M D R R Jayasekara 182,291.71 244,791.67 

Mrs. P D R R de Silva 187,500.04 250,000.00 

Mrs. B S A Mendis 118,055.64 201,388.92 

Mr. W M S K Wijebahu 187,500.04 250,000.00 

Mr. Y N Wikramanayake 234,375.01 133,333.29 

MR. K A M  Priyantha 243,055.56 215,277.80 

Mr. Susil Mapatuna 99,998.24 200,000.02 

Mr. U Wikramasinghe 182,291.71 244,791.67 

Mr. S I Rajapaksha - 118,066.25 

Mr. M R S K Manchanayake - 55,555.57 

Mr. N P P S K Pathirana 201,388.92 111,111.04 

Mrs. H T M D Dinesha 161,458.39 223,958.35 

Mr. S P A Sathyapala 187,500.04 4,166.55 

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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Mr. N P K Rajapaksha - 4,166.51              

Mrs. S M R Bhanu 222,222.22           4,166.51              

Mrs. R A D W S Rupasinghe - 8,333.18              

Mrs.S Thewarapperuma - 8,333.31              

Mr. K D Daya Rohana - 7,102.16              

Mr. R M U Ratnayake 182,291.71           244,791.67          

Mr. K A R V Abeywardene - 12,499.88            

Mr. P D R S Gunasekara - 8,125.12              

Mr. D P Weeraratne 182,291.71           244,791.67          

Mrs. Amali Chathurika 137,499.95           183,333.32          

Mrs. Y M de Silva 166,666.72           229,166.68          

Mrs. W D Nirosha 104,166.59           154,166.63          

Mrs. N K Manoja Badrani 166,666.64           16,666.55            

Mrs. N C Ranasinghe 166,666.72           229,166.68          

Mr. G T A Hemanha - 20,833.21            

Mr.J M D Jayalath 213,541.69           124,999.94          

Miss.M.D.L.Feranando 177,777.78           -

Mrs. M N  Ranasinghe 208,333.36           29,166.53            

Mr. S Illangovan - 29,166.53            

Mr. W A L N Kumara - 26,250.00            

Mr. J P Samarakoon - 33,333.20            

Mr. G K K S Kumara 166,666.72           229,166.68          

Mr. A M Chandrartne - 27,805.62            

Mrs. L I Kariyawasam 213,541.69           -

Mr.K.A.P.Fernando 151,041.73           213,541.69          

Mr.A.H.Hibras 151,041.73           213,541.69          

Mr.D.P.Wettasinghe 120,833.27           170,833.31          

Mrs.N.A.C.K.Thirimawithana 33,333.37             133,333.33          

Mrs.Y.A.P.G.Yapa 156,250.06           218,750.02          

Mrs.P.D.Maduwanthi 77,500.00             107,500.00          

Mrs P.A.Buddhika 129,166.61           179,166.65          

Mr.M.M.Mifras 199,850.01           91,666.68            

Mr.N.M.M.Rihan 120,000.00           165,000.00          

Mr.P.V.S.Wijayaratne 187,500.04           250,000.00          

8,499,825.06        9,168,964.17       

6.1.2 Festival Advance
Mr. M M M Shabeer 1,250.00               2,500.00              

Mrs. Rameeza Bhanu 1,250.00               2,500.00              

Mr. M M Misraf - 2,500.00              

Mr A H Hibraz - 2,500.00              

Mr.A Ahamed 1,250.00               2,500.00              

N.Z.Israth 1,250.00               

5,000.00               12,500.00            

6.2 Deposits
Electricity Board deposit 250,000.00           250,000.00          

 R.L.Fernando-Fuel deposit 100,000.00           100,000.00          

Oxygen & Acytesity cylinder 36,000.00             12,000.00            

Rent Deposit - 240,000.00          

Dialog Telecom PLC roaming facility 20,000.00             20,000.00            

406,000.00           622,000.00          

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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7.1 Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment
Property , Plant & Equipment - Additions

Plant & Machinery
Handloom Machine 1 50,000.00             

Air Conditioner(Panasonic) 5 881,134.31           

931,134.31           

Furniture, Fittings, Fixtures & Equipment

Water Dispenser 2 37,645.00             

Electric kettle 1 9,775.00               

CCTV Camera 4 33,150.00             

Office Cupboard & Wooden Chair Pearl Mahogani 1 11,497.50             

Lady Dummy Skin IC F7 1 20,950.00             

Gents Dummy Skin IC M2 1 20,950.00             

Children Dummy Skin IC C1 1 10,950.00             

Children Dummy Skin IC C2 1 11,950.00             

Law Back Chair 1 13,207.50             

Single Play Telephone Connection with Telephone 1 6,000.00               

Jug 1 3,740.00               

Steel Cupboard 8 150,930.00           

Visitor Chair 15 100,165.28           

Cordless Telephone 1 5,560.00               

Black Chair 2 23,587.50             

Manual Projector Screen 1 7,250.00               

Wall Fan 3 14,850.00             

Bar Stool With Transport Charges 13 101,664.00           

Chair for Library in Charges 1 10,686.04             

Library in Charge Table 1 19,794.37             

Computer Table 2 26,427.69             

Bar Stool - Black 15 116,520.00           

Office Chair Fabric,Nylon Base,Plastic Armrest & Hydraulic Height Adj. 2 14,285.00             

Binocular Microscope 1 1,300,000.00        

Customer Display for Note Counter Machine 1 134,375.00           

2,205,909.88        

Laboratory Equipment
Mechanical Shaker(Model 05-3000) 1 343,000.00           

Sharp Edge Tester(With Cleaning Charges) 1 2,463,347.04        

Conditioning Cabinet(Model : GT-C52) 1 1,712,000.00        

Ultra High Performance Liquid Chromatography(UNPLC) 1 9,389,521.30        

Hallow Cathode Lamps 1 1,396,686.81        

15,304,555.15      

Computers
UPS PRO 700(Prolink) 4 17,150.00             

Canon Colour Printer(WTJ14877) 1 102,925.00           

HP Monitor 10 1,370,000.00        

Asus Lap Top 2 273,400.00           

HP Colour Laser Printer 1 111,799.55           

1,875,274.55        

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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Books & Periodicals

Role of Yarn tension in weaving 1 8,489.25 

Bioprocessing of Textile 1 9,434.25 

Solution to problems in Textile and Garment Industry 1 8,489.25 

Product Safety and restricted Substances in apparel 1 5,339.25 

Work Quality management in the textile Industry 1 5,339.25 

Introduction to textile fibres (Revised edition) 1 7,229.25 

Textile Dyes 1 8,489.25 

Industrial Practice in weaving preparatory 1 7,229.25 

Fundamantals and practice in Colouration of textiles (2nd Edition) 1 11,639.00 

Training and development of Technical staff in the textile industry 1 9,434.25 

Fundamentals and advance in Knitting technology 1 7,859.25 

A Practical guide to textile testing 1 6,284.25 

Performance of home textiles 1 5,654.25 

pollution control in Textile Industry 1 9,843.75 

Non -Woven -Process,Structure,properties and appilications 1 10,379.25 

Fibre Strcture 1 7,229.25 

Hand book on fabric manufacturing 1 11,009.25 

Establishment Code 1 (Sinhala) 1 950.00 

Establishment Code 11 (Sinhala) 1 140.00 

Establishment Code 11 (English) 1 56.00 

Financial Regulation (English) 1 368.00 

Advance in Research & Appilication 1 46,990.18 

Easy of Learniing English Grammer & Composition 1 950.00 

Establishment Code 1 (Tamil) 1 550.00 

Establishment Code 11 (Tamil) 1 140.00 

Financial Regulation (Tamil) 1 560.00 

Procument Guide Line (Sinhala) 1 125.00 

Asia Foundation 115 558,509.76 

Electronic Textiles -Smart Fabrics and Wearable Technology 1 34,000.00 

Functional Finishes for Textiles -Improving Comfort,Performance & 

Protection 1 30,300.00 

Handbook of Fire Resistant Textiles 1 40,500.00 

Handbook of Natural Fibres -Volume 11 -Processing and Applications 1 33,000.00 

Home Furnishing 1 9,300.00 

Medical Textile Materials 1 21,000.00 

Performance Testing of Textiles -Methods,Technology & Applications 1 25,000.00 

Textiles for Sportwear 1 38,500.00 

Understanding and Improving the Durability of Textiles 1 26,000.00 

Activated Carbon Fiber and Textiles 1 31,960.00 

Advances in Technical Nonwovens 1 40,800.00 

Antimicrobial Textiles 1 38,760.00 

Braiding Technology for Textiles 1 27,200.00 

Crazing Technology for Polyester Fibers 1 27,200.00 

Denim - Manufacture,Finishing & Applications 1 39,440.00 

Electrospun Nanofibers 1 44,880.00 

Geotextiles:From Design to Applications 1 47,600.00 

Handbook of Natural Fibres:Types,Properties and Factors Affecting 

Breeding and Cultivation 1 43,520.00 

Handbook of Technical Textiles 2E:VOLUME 2 1 34,000.00 

Handbook of Technical Textiles 2E:VOLUME 1 1 31,960.00 

Ink Jet Textile Printing 1 29,240.00 

Nanofinishing of Textile Materials 1 34,000.00 

Principles of Textile Finishing -1 st Edition 1 34,000.00 

Process Control in Textile Manufacturing -1st Edition 1 36,720.00 

Smart Textiles and Their Applications 1 43,435.00 

Sustainable Fibres and Textiles -1st Edition 1 29,920.00 

Sustainable Apparel -1st Edition 1 31,960.00 

Textiles and Fashion Materials,Design and Technology 1 10,200.00 

Waterproof and Water Repellent Textiles and Clothing 1 31,960.00 

Sustainability in Denim -1st Edition 1 29,920.00 

1,724,985.44        

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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8.   Land & Buildings as at  31/12/2018

Land       Buildings Total
Rs. '000 Rs. '000 Rs. '000

Cost
Cost as at 01/01/2018 5,018,434.00     77,321,399.31    82,339,833.31       

Additions   - Note   No.8 . 1 -                        3,538,153.97         3,538,153.97         

Cost as at 31/12/2018 5,018,434.00        80,859,553.28       85,877,987.28       

Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation as at 01/01/2018 33,171,915.33       33,171,915.33       

Depreciation for the year -                        2,009,292.46         2,009,292.46         

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31/12/2018 -                        35,181,207.79       35,181,207.79       

Net Book Value as at 31/12/2018 5,018,434.00        45,678,345.49       50,696,779.49       

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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8.1 Land & Buildings
Buildings

Renovation of Canteen 1,759,857.28        

Parabolic Hut 745,713.26           

Repair of Old Canteen Roof 1,032,583.43        

3,538,153.97        

9 Payables
Trade creditors (9.1) 1,001,839.98        776,075.98

Accrued expenses                         (9.2) 5,116,716.10        6,059,732.68

Sundry creditors (9.3) 4,135,448.14        4,231,273.14

Current Tax Payable (9.4) 357,837.95           251,639.51

10,611,842.17      11,318,721.31

9.1 Trade Creditors
Cash received in advance (9.1.1) 1,001,839.98        776,075.98

1,001,839.98        776,075.98

9.1.1 Cash received in advance
Course fees received  in advance from students 1,001,839.98        776,075.98

1,001,839.98        776,075.98

9.2 Accrued Expenses
Casual wages & allowance for trainees 36,468.75             -

Staff payment for week end - 939,958.75

Telephone allowance - 1,800.00              

Co-coordinating fees 179,928.00           112,722.00          

Transport 312,368.04           211,998.00          

Stamp duty - 12,100.00            

Repairs &Maintenance of Computers 15,000.00             -

Repairs & Maintenance of Motor Vehicles 25,880.00             125,025.05

Repairs & Maintenance of Plant & Machinery 4,000.00               -

Repairs & Maint.of Building - 17,008.78

Overtime 318,243.26           452,846.02

Traveling & subsistence 52,925.00             73,750.00

Water 18,252.13             22,014.84

Electricity 217,339.42           832,411.03

Security charges 98,246.40             166,675.00

Communication services 88,572.13             100,478.93          

Fuel for vehicles & Generator 14,000.00             55,253.00

Medical scheme labour welfare 115,334.75           83,588.96

Janitorial services - 275,630.00

Expenses on gaze testing 21,400.00             21,600.00

Purchase of consumables 300.00                  -

Expenses for Testing of Forces Uniform 1,467.31               1,233.00              

Visiting Lecture fees 97,350.00             297,044.40

News paper bill - -

Office Rent - 80,000.00            

Productivity Improvement Project 156,886.41           112,992.32

Membership Subscription 11,732.57             4,347.00              

Weekend Payments 1,174,800.95        -

ABC Project Expenses - 112,805.52          

Training courses expenses - 6,095.00

Other Service Charges 50,000.00             -

Development of New Banana Yarn 87,973.75             -

Mannar branch - 11,576.95

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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Handloom Dye centre project - Palamunei 169,100.00           107,071.15          

Degree Awarding Status Expenses - 80,000.00            

Dev.of New Banana Yarn - 37,187.50            

ESC 188,032.00           241,806.53          

E.P.F. 1,017,232.61        1,037,482.41       

E.T.F. 138,713.54           141,474.87          

Improvement of Student Facilities 283,755.67           283,755.67          

Career Guidence Programme 8,107.85               -                       

Entertainment Expenses 540.00                  -                       

Bank Charges 29.40                    -                       

Welfare Society 200,000.00           -                       

Accredititations & Certifications Fees 12,736.16             -                       

5,116,716.10        6,059,732.68
9.3 Sundry Creditors

Consultancy advances -                        20,000.00            

Canteen tender deposit 25,000.00             15,000.00

Bid security 31,500.00             25,500.00

Refundable Deposit 200,000.00           100,000.00          

General Treasury (Vehicle Sale Proceed) 3,871,448.14        3,871,448.14

Sundry creditors -                        153,950.00          

Refundable Tender Deposit 7,500.00               45,375.00            

4,135,448.14        4,231,273.14       

9.4 Current Tax payable 
Stamp Duty Payable A/c 8,750.00               -                       
VAT PAYABLE 163,271.73           -                       
Withholding Tax Payable A/c 28,689.00             -                       

      NBT Payable 157,127.22           251,639.51

357,837.95           251,639.51

10 Short-term provisions
Provision for audit fees 625,075.00           1,457,000.00

Provision for Staff Development Fund 1,523,552.00        790,802.00

2,148,627.00        2,247,802.00       

11 Superannuation
Provision for Gratuity (Discloser No.6)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 38,548,057.00      39,297,047.00     

Less - Payments for the year (4,130,708.00)       (3,782,716.00)      

34,417,349.00      35,514,331.00     

Provision for the year 3,588,649.00        3,033,726.00       

Balance at the end of the year 38,005,998.00      38,548,057.00     

12 Govt.Contributions & Foreign Aid (Discloser No 7 )

Balance as at the beginning of the year 182,257,165.76    121,834,349.29   

Add - Grants in the year 12.1 3,632,393.81        79,796,245.45     

185,889,559.57    201,630,594.74   

Less- Amortization of the year 12.2 (23,828,238.92)     (19,373,428.98)    

Balance as at end of the year 12.3 162,061,320.65    182,257,165.76   

12.1 Capital Grant
Cash Grant in the year 12,543,000.00      25,000,000.00     

Receivable Capital Grant not released (30,000,000.00)     

Capital Grant Receivable 5,442,000.00        30,000,000.00     

Books & Periodicals Asia Foundation 558,509.76           -

Cost of Tab not paid by the Ministry (109,999.00)          -

Grant received from  Government through Ministry for Capital Expenditure12.1.1 15,148,883.05      24,796,245.45     

Handloom Machine DTI 50,000.00             -

3,632,393.81        79,796,245.45     
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12.1.1 Grant received from  Govern. through Ministry for Capital Expend.
Training Need Analysis 30,426.25 - 
Fabric Library 392,302.10 - 
Handloom Development Project 111,799.55 - 
Handloom Dev.Mardamunai Project - 941,808.82 

Banana Fibre Project 1,364,800.00        732,000.00          

Footwear Train Skill Development - 199,761.50 

Prod. Improvement Project - 109,999.00 

Upgrading SLITA W.Shop - 2,000,000.00 

Sewing Mach.Maint Project - 2,289,750.00 

Health & Safety Project 13,249,555.15      12,826,690.48 

ABC Project - 141,900.00 

Improvement of Student Facilities - 3,084,741.07 

Footwear Train Skill Development - 2,469,594.58 

15,148,883.05      24,796,245.45     

12.2  Amortization of the year
Depreciation portion of assets by the Government Grant 23,828,238.92      19,373,428.98     

Government contribution for human capacity building - -

23,828,238.92      19,373,428.98     

12.3 Govt.Contributions & Foreign Aid 
Capital Grant from the Government 450,417,181.18    446,784,787.37   

Assets transferred by the Ministry 50,043,791.00      50,043,791.00     

Foreign Aid  (World bank & JICA) 99,276,267.00      99,276,267.00     

Other donations received 291,081.00 291,081.00          

600,028,320.18    596,395,926.37   

Less- Accumulated total of amortization (437,966,999.53)   (414,138,760.61)  

162,061,320.65    182,257,165.76   

13 Other projects  
Handloom Development programme - 140,235.20 

Handloom Development programme - Marandmunei 2,243,449.88        2,243,449.88 

Ministry of industry & commerce Scholarship Fund 236,867.04 236,867.04          

FDDI 30,405.42 30,405.02 

Improvement of student facilities - 135,082.66 

Mini Apparel teacher training programme - 688,515.58 

Development of New Banana Yarn -Rs.8.4 Mn 10,991,338.97     10,061,505.63 

Health & Safety Survay Project-Rs.15 M 1,406,663.00       1,406,663.00 

Sawing Machine Maintenance-Rs.8.290Mn 1,047,343.77       1,047,343.77 

Wet Processing Rs.2.5Mn 420,537.04 420,537.04          

Prod.Improve.Project 1,675,386.77       - 

Apparel Base cottage Industry 867,549.06 6,719,350.85       

18,919,540.95      23,129,955.67     
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14 Accumulated surpluses/ (deficit)
Profit Brought Forward 236,278,181.87    182,859,156.57   

Prior Year Adjustments for event occurred after balance sheet date

Adjustment of F.D.Interest 13,550.02 

Visiting Lect fees Mini App Teach Tra.Prog. (72,000.00) 

Closing Stock adjustment Palamunai Dye centre (1,058,070.00)      

Course fees refunded (132,750.00)          -

Revised Expenses 2,896.91 -

Input VAT Adjustment (290,441.19)          -

Under stated Fixed deposit Interest (6,329.52) -

Fixed deposit interest 2017 60,484.86 -

235,912,042.93    181,742,636.59   

Excess for the year 24,658,843.93      54,535,545.28     

260,570,886.86    236,278,181.87   

15 Operating Income
Testing (15.1) 48,652,141.63      48,645,836.62     

Training (15.2) 84,353,742.35      113,797,288.34   

Consultancy services (15.3) 7,400,000.00        5,248,319.93       

Customer / Technical Services  & other sales 11,446,515.99      13,296,105.14     

Seminars 259,592.98 -

Loss on sale of Yarn at Palamuei Dye center (15.4) (1,113,703.60)       (2,641,543.92)      

Other income      (15.5) 26,257,311.03      24,506,443.38     

Excess amount received for SME project (15.6) (2,693.39) 3,770.74 

Excess amount received on disposal of assets (15.7) 257,360.00 26,100.00 

177,510,266.99    202,882,320.23   

15.1 Testing
Normal testing 37,775,213.38      42,054,084.06     

Forces uniforms 10,892,311.67      6,849,734.75       

less - Discounts given-Testing (15,383.42) (257,982.19)         

48,652,141.63      48,645,836.62     

15.2 Training
Week Day Training 22,026,893.40      28,200,286.46     

Week End Training 48,485,645.00      56,012,690.00     

External Training 11,745,729.97      13,458,153.45     

SME Training 2,095,473.98        5,200,158.43       

Footwear Training - 8,007,000.00 

DTAC Training - 2,919,000.00 

84,353,742.35      113,797,288.34   

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
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15.3 Consultancy services (Discloser No. 10)
Consultancy service income 1,500,000.00        172,031.96          

Add-Institute portion of  Productivity Improvement 
Progarmme by consultancy
Funds received from The Government 15,005,251.00      15,000,000.00     

Received from Factories 540,000.00 690,000.00          

15,545,251.00      15,690,000.00     

Less-Amount C/F for Next year 1,675,386.77        

13,869,864.23      

Less- Expenditure
Electricity 427,542.40 426,466.00          

Advertisement 172,258.00 239,552.91          

Refreshments 2,560.00 37,801.00 

Allowance to co-coordinator 90,000.00 90,000.00 

W/E,Ot,Trav. 1,561,705.49        2,593,449.85       

Staff Training 73,971.00 5,000.00 

Telephone bill 59,155.79 15,014.37 

Telephone allowance - 74,250.00 

Transport 1,878,155.00        2,429,810.28 

Purchase of Tab - 109,999.00 

Publication & Magazines - 49,687.50 

Salary , EPF,ETF,& Other allowance 3,103,782.79        3,556,522.99 

Purchase of consumables 20,930.00 9,736.10 

Medical Bills 41,170.48 23,944.64 

Stationery - 119,597.34 

Legal Fees - 195,300.00 

Accommodation 231,500.00 199,400.00 

Visiting lecture fee 3,000.00 153,707.80 

Repairs & Maint.of Equipments 5,850.00 51,341.25 

Repairs & Maint.of Building 1,700.00 20,784.00 

Repairs & Maint of Pl.& Machi 42,986.00 4,500.00 

Others 4,106.26 5,520.00 

Postage - 2,400.00 

GSD upgrading 249,491.02 199,927.00 

Less - Total expenditure 7,969,864.23        10,613,712.03     

Institute portion received from PIP 5,900,000.00 5,076,287.97
Total consultancy service income 7,400,000.00 5,248,319.93

15.4 Profit form sale of Yarn at Palamuei Dye center (Discloser No.21)
Income
Sale of Yarn 254,214.63 978,534.91          

Less- Expenditure
Raw material used 15.4.1 119,929.13 2,149,636.15       

Electricity charges 23,973.90 67,301.05 

Physical verification 65,556.05 18,351.00 

Water Bill 2,030.90 - 

Electrical items 500.00 4,795.00 

Bid security expenditure - 3,500.00 

Consumables 34,477.00 - 

Salaries & Wages 1,096,231.25        1,303,347.63       

Refreshments 620.00 - 

Stationery 150.00 - 

Supplier Registration Fee 1,000.00 

Transport 23,450.00 73,148.00 

Total expenditure 1,367,918.23        3,620,078.83       
Profit/(loss) (1,113,703.60)       (2,641,543.92)      
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15.4.1 Raw materials used
during the year
Opening Stock
Dyes & chemicals 110,880.00           136,486.00          

Yarn 402,447.50           1,394,888.50       

513,327.50           1,531,374.50       
Add-Purchases during the year 21,507.00             1,131,589.15       

534,834.50           2,662,963.65       
Less - Closing stock
Dyes & chemicals 121,261.62           110,880.00          

Yarn 293,643.75           402,447.50          

414,905.37           513,327.50          
Amount used 119,929.13           2,149,636.15       

15.5 Other Income
Other Sales Income (15.5.1) 922,117.00           711,950.00

Miscellaneous income   (15.5.2) 1,219,196.87           1,661,992.05

Savings A/C interest 7,112.75                  6,858.47                  

Fixed Deposit interest 398,399.12              351,935.21              

Treasury Bills interest 1,079,501.72           1,131,381.93           

Call deposit interest 21,160,615.37         19,988,533.20         

Staff Loan Interest 650,412.48              518,792.52              

Transport charges  (PIP and Divineguma,Funerals, Others) 16,640.00                -

Registration of Suppliers 48,600.00                46,000.00                

Canteen rental 50,000.00                60,000.00                

Tender deposits/document  Fees - 29,000.00                

Non Refundable Tender Deposit 36,500.00                -

Forex Gain 668,215.72              -

26,257,311.03      24,506,443.38     

15.5.1 Other Sales Income

Auditorium,Seminar Hall,Class Room Hiring Charges 238,000.00              671,000.00              

GSD Reports - 40,950.00            

Preparation of Specification 88,000.00             

Facilities Provided for Students 596,117.00           

922,117.00           711,950.00          

15.5.2 Miscellaneous Income
Admin. Fee for course fees refunded - 8,050.00              

Sale of Coconut/ King coconut 1,080.00               1,050.00              

Sale of Tyres & Tube light 11,300.00             8,500.00              

Not taken Bid Security - 17,500.00            

Un presented & Not taken cheques - 73,914.50            

Photocopy charges 67,185.00             101,303.50          

Repeat exam fees & VIVA 167,500.00           63,000.00            

Cancellation of sundry credit balances - 3,664.33              

Other - 933.30                 

Transport charges  (PIP and Divineguma,Funerals, Others) 898,739.01              1,379,426.42           

Unidentified Direct Credit 16,318.00             4,650.00              

Over Payment Debtors 23,174.86             -                       

Sales on T-Shirts 1,500.00               -                       

Revision Session 30,000.00             -                       

Fusing 400.00                  -                       

Refund TEC Member Fee 2,000.00               -                       

1,219,196.87        1,661,992.05       
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15.6 Small and Medium Enterprises  development programme  
(Discloser No. 11)

Funds received from The Government 2,474,000.00        5,000,000.00       

2,474,000.00       5,000,000.00

Less- Expenditure
Amount transferred to training income 2,321,243.39        4,782,084.96       

Allowance paid to co-coordinator 55,000.00             60,000.00            

Telephone allowance 11,000.00             12,000.00            

Advertisement 55,900.00             129,794.30          

Transport 9,950.00              

Postage 2,400.00              

Purchase of Pen Drive 2,500.00               -

Highway Expenses 1,050.00               

Guest Lecture Payment 30,000.00             

Less - Total expenditure 2,476,693.39        4,996,229.26
Excess amount received for SME programme -2,693.39 3,770.74

15.7 Excess amount received on disposal of assets

Cost of the Assets

2016 3,189,044.63

Depreciation 3,187,104.63

Sale proceed 153,950.00

profit on sale 152,010.00

Cost of the Assets

2017 689,085.92

Depreciation 689,085.92

Sale proceed -                        

profit on sale -                        

Cost of the Assets

2018 1,575,182.17        

Depreciation 1,547,582.17        

Sale proceed 132,950.00           

profit on sale 105,350.00           

Total profit on disposal 257,360.00           

16 Personal Emoluments (Wages, Salaries & Employee benefits)
Salaries & wages (Including interim allowance) 41,892,645.09      37,186,027.85     

Adjustment Allowance 1,260,233.19        4,473,211.20       

Cost of Living Allowance 7,750,600.00        7,996,060.80       

Internal Auditor Acting allowance 21,080.50             -

EPF 6,118,412.30        5,972,006.92       

ETF 1,520,575.38        1,439,212.06       

Allowance to chairman 450,000.00           450,000.00          

Casual wages / Allowance to trainees 1,096,694.96        1,250,655.20       

Overtime 4,045,921.67        5,354,590.87       

Week-end payments 12,393,517.49      11,663,204.04     
Professional Allowance 2,538,583.33          657,000.00          

Bonus/Appreciation allowance 1,407,375.00        1,429,500.00       

Board secretarial fee 60,000.00             60,000.00            

Allowance for week-end school staff 408,000.00           408,000.00          

Telephone allowance 336,000.00           344,000.00          

Transport allowance 4,575,000.00        4,302,050.00       

Co-coordinating fee 2,277,879.35        912,540.32          

Testing lab Staff allowance 513,675.00           423,000.00          

Gratuity 3,588,649.00        3,033,726.00       

Allowance for Chairman's Driver 54,321.90             -

E.P.F.,E.T.F.Arrears Payment 91,367.55             

Salary arrears  paid on emalgamation-2011-2014 -                        16,327.99            

92,400,531.71      87,371,113.25

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
                        2018                 2017 
                         Rs                     Rs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



136 

17 Traveling 
Local 515,325.00 745,075.00          

515,325.00           745,075.00          

18 Supplies & Consumables
Stationery & office requisites   (18.1) 3,147,183.33        2,489,566.57       

Other consumables    (18.2) 1,524,890.70        1,018,673.08       

Accreditations & certification fees 2,656,652.05        2,318,319.67       

Fuel for vehicles & generator 3,935,416.81        3,898,337.83       

11,264,142.89      9,724,897.15       

18.1 Stationery & Office Requisites   
Stock as at beginning of the year 1,024,990.86        834,015.33          

Add -Purchases during the year 3,034,352.69        2,680,542.10       

4,059,343.55        3,514,557.43       

Less - Stock as at end of the year (912,160.22)          (1,024,990.86)      

3,147,183.33        2,489,566.57       

18.2 Consumables,QC Lab materials, Yarn & Dyes
Stock as at beginning of the year 1,271,778.03        189,887.28          

Add -Purchases during the year 1,473,362.29        2,100,563.83       

2,745,140.32        2,290,451.11       

Less - Stock as at end of the year (1,220,249.62)       (1,271,778.03)      

1,524,890.70        1,018,673.08       

19 Repairs and Maintenance
Land & Buildings 2,279,972.80        566,707.96          

Motor Vehicles 1,889,537.43        2,371,544.49       

Furniture & Fittings and Equipment 1,112,858.17        443,121.94          

Lab Equipment 1,363,917.23        639,248.75          

Plant & Machinery (19.1) 853,550.71           379,581.00          

Computers 469,431.61 427,390.35          

Generator 54,980.00 235,634.13          

8,024,247.95        5,063,228.62       

19.1 Repairs and Maintenance
Spare parts stock as at beginning of the Year 196,857.30 196,857.30          

 Spare Parts purchases during the year 15,000.00 - 

Repairs & maintenance 838,550.71 379,581.00          

1,050,408.01        576,438.30          

Less - Stock as at end of the year - - 

Cash received for lost accessories (196,857.30)          (196,857.30)         

Transferred to Maintenance of Machinery 853,550.71           379,581.00          

20 Contractual Services
Insurance 162,045.56           149,161.60          

Security charges 1,872,994.58        1,745,998.96       

Janitorial services 3,123,792.06        3,238,622.84       

Electricity    8,084,943.99        7,813,409.03       

Water  829,926.91 510,434.51          

Communication services 940,004.15 1,025,875.71       

Postage 246,639.00           164,002.00          

Advertisement Expenses 763,099.50 849,276.39          

Office Rent 400,302.90 560,532.40          

Transport charges 3,727,164.21        2,654,505.49       

20,150,912.86      18,711,818.93     
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21 Depreciation
Building 2,009,292.46        1,895,186.64       

Computers 2,747,385.84        2,436,009.71       

Furniture ,Fittings & equipment 4,694,500.97        4,354,905.32       

Motor Vehicles 1,366,897.73        2,048,891.61       

Plant & Machinery 2,034,319.33        1,962,796.24       

Industrial sewing machinery 8,833,123.81        1,267,139.29       

Lab Equipment 2,048,891.61        6,936,062.08       

Video Programmes 208,381.27 52,500.00 

Books & Periodicals 3,125.00 164,388.50          

Spare parts & accessories - 339,048.00 

23,945,918.02      21,456,927.39     

22 Other expenses
Visiting lecturer fees 2,584,031.71        2,907,175.20       

Audit fees - provision for the year 500,000.00 400,000.00          

Training courses expenses 4,323,075.47        5,710,492.09       

Miscellaneous expenses (23.1) 534,298.36 416,228.45          

Human capacity building /Staff training - Local 1,139,605.53        1,295,115.00       

Human capacity building - Foreign 1,372,387.67        1,207,065.01       

Staff Welfare - Tea Expenses 1,234,908.18        939,446.72          

Staff Medical scheme labour welfare 1,523,067.30        1,523,246.15       

Welfare society 275,000.00 1,700,000.00       

Fees to Board of Governors 642,600.00 460,000.00          

Exhibition expenses 369,022.63 538,817.00          

Stamp duty 35,275.00 63,220.00 

Career guidance programme 206,620.50 233,722.55          

Doubtful debtors 356,767.77 230,828.33          

Research & Development unit expenses 9,000.00 

Expenses of gauze testing 309,000.00 282,900.00          

Membership Subs.Fees 125,774.21 -

Exp. For testing of school uniform material 20,644.14 18,651.79 

Withholding Tax 569,038.36 2,056,596.16       

VAT 1,407.60 209,646.10          

NBT - 2% expenses 34,984.50 19,564.33 

Allowance to TEC and MTB Members 163,000.00          

Allowance to Audit & Management committee, Academic council members 120,000.00 136,654.00          

Professional membership fees - Officers/ Institute 145,403.02          

Annual subscription fees 3,290.79 21,286.38 

Entertainment expenses 400,708.65 184,145.08          

ISO 9001-2015 Implementation -

Certificate Award ceremony 56,596.00 25,565.00 

Expenses on Mannar Centre (22.2) 30,913.73             108,889.34          

Degree Awarding status Expenses 1,131,735.00        791,647.00          

Diviyata Udana Prgramme Expenses 115,016.00          

Economic Service Charges 752,046.00 658,985.05          

Legal Fees 8,000.00 32,700.00 

Publication & magazines 781,746.21 1,094,829.69       

Staff Development Fund 732,750.00 790,802.00          

20,175,295.31      24,490,637.44     
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22.1 Miscellaneous Expenses
News paper bills 37,700.00 39,690.00 

Labour charges 14,500.00 4,135.00 

Renewal of driving license 3,000.00 2,700.00 

Garbage removal charges 26,973.90 25,199.20 

Honorarium fee 129,000.00 65,000.00 

Translation Fees - annual report & others 95,509.50 30,205.00 

Vehicle parking fee (BOI) 950.00 4,049.00 

Medicine/Medical treatment for students 10,085.41 6,776.25 

Books  & report binding 7,710.00 2,014.00 

Pirith ceremony 56,337.50 35,000.00 

Vesak decorating & Sinhala New year festival contribution 43,190.00 67,874.00 

Interview panel charges 6,000.00 8,000.00 

Fish Tank 2,950.00 3,200.00 

Laundry fee 5,395.05 1,000.00 

Other Expenses 12,807.00 16,310.00 

New Year Greetings 52,000.00 57,575.00 

Textile Institute - 15,000.00 

Wall Clock - 3,320.00 

Coconut Plucking - 1,600.00 

Visa Photos - 2,300.00 

Tender Documents - 2,000.00 

Refreshments - 16,371.00 

Appreciation Gift 5,090.00 6,910.00 

Identity Cards for Staff 6,500.00 

Donation for Drama 5,000.00 

Verification of Educational Certificates 6,300.00 

X'mas Expenses 7,300.00 

534,298.36           416,228.45          

22.2 Expenses on Mannar Centre

Expenditure
Allowances  for Mannar staff 42,000.00 

Overtime,Traveling,Week end payment 21,293.73 25,850.54 

Physical verification Expenses 9,620.00 18,351.00 

Electricity 11,820.30 

Water 10,867.50 

Expenses incurred by the Institute 30,913.73             108,889.34          

23 Finance cost
Foreign exchange loss 597.97 

Bank charges 203,288.24 155,908.18          

203,288.24           156,506.15          
24 Deferred income

Depreciation portion of assets by the Government Grant 23,828,238.92      19,373,428.98     

Amortization of re-valuation reserve - -

Government contribution for human capacity building - -

23,828,238.92      19,373,428.98     

Notes to Financial Statements contd.... 
2018  2017 
Rs Rs. 
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REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Income 

The Institute has recorded a total annual income of Rs. 177  Mn  during  the year  under review 

which is  a decrease of 12% compared to the year 2017 and this is due to mainly  drop of 

students.   

Operating Income 
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The income generated by Testing, Training and Consultancy services  are  85% of the total 

operating income while  15% of the operating income is contributed by sources such as Interests 

Income (Fixed Deposit, Treasury Bills and  Call Deposits interest), Transport income and, 

miscellaneous activities. The technical Services income is 7% of the total income. However, 

training is the main income source over the year contributing to the total income in the current 

year.  

Testing Income 

During the year, testing has generated an income of Rs. 48.65 Mn. through 47,478 tests from 

7,502  samples. There was  not any significant fluctuation in the testing income compared to  the 

previous year. 
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Training and Consultancy 
Training is one of the key services provided by the Institute. In the year 2018, Institute records a 

total number of Trainees as 3,751 and total number of Training Programs as 137,  Total training 

income generated in the year under review amounts to Rs.84.35 Mn. compared to Rs. 113.79 

Mn. earned in 2017. This is a decrease of 26%, compared to the year 2017. 

Income from Other Sources 

Other income sources, comprise mainly of Interest on Fixed deposits, Treasury bills and Call 

Deposit investments income ,transport income, Distress loan interest income  and the balance  

contribution is made from Miscellaneous activities such as Sample Dyeing, Canteen rent and 

Tender document fees, photocopy charges, ....etc. 
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Expenditure 

  Total recurrent expenditure incurred during the year is Rs. 176.679  Mn. compared to Rs. 

167.72 Mn. previous year and  this indicates a  increase  of 5 % of expenditure. 

Recurrent expenditure mainly consists of personal emoluments, supplies and consumables, 

contractual services, maintenance expenditure  , depreciation  and gratuity provision and other 

expenses.  

Overall  Financial Structure. 

 Infrastructure, Plant and  Equipment consist of a net value of Rs. 154.905  Mn. Total 

investment during the year is Rs. 25.5 Mn.  

Overall institutional income decreased  by 12% that is income from Rs. 202 Mn to 

Rs.177 Mn for this year. Main reason for this decrease  is the shrinking  of number of 

participant  for training courses. 

Total Expenditure increased by 5% from Rs.168 Mn to Rs. 177 Mn. 

Total operating income decreased  from.Rs.35.16 Mn  to Rs.0.83Mn. 

2018 2017

Rs. Mn Rs. Mn

Operating Income 177.51 202.88

Less:

Total Operating 

Expenditure 176.679 167.72

Operating profit/loss 0.831 35.16

Deferred Income 23.828 19.37

Net Surplus/ (Deficit) 

for the Period 24.659 54.53
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ACTIVITIES  - YEAR 2018 
HIGHLIGHTS IN  2018 

Award Wining Students Of SLITA At  Leather & Footwear Fair 

Jaya Liya !opening ceremony of Mini Garment at Kotte. 

SLITA Welfare Cricket Tournament 
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SLITA වසත්සර 

A 

ISEX Exhibition – BMICH 

Certificate Award Ceremony 
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Education, Vocational and Career Guidance Exhibition At Kuliyapitiya  
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Diploma Award Cermony at Nelum Pokuna 

Staff Development Programme: on Footwear Manufacturing Technology 
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Certificate Award Ceremony 

R&D division of SLITA developed Banana yarn fibre for clothing and Displayed in Fashion 
show at Taj Samudra 
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FUTURE PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2019 

- Introduction of a Learning Management System, LMS, for academic purposes

- Introduce  e-Library facilities for academic purposes

- Introduce Banana Fibre as a fabric-suited yarn to the commercial market

- Commence collaborative activities with Bangladesh Fashion Institute to start Diploma

and Degree level programmes

- Obtain approval from Higher Education Ministry to offer Degree programmes

- Obtain NVQ status for Diploma programmes

- Construction of a spacious building facility

- Encourage staff to engage in Doctoral level studies

- Implement Health and Safety certification for children’s wear

- Expand testing facilities to other areas, such as water-based , foods and rubber-based

products

- Establish Networking with local and foreign research institutions for new knowledge
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Auditor General’s Report on the Financial Statements and other legal and monitoring 
requirements of the Sri Lanka Institute of Textile and Apparel, for the year ended on  
31st day of December, 2018, as per Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.1. Qualified  Opinion 

The Financial Statements of the Sri Lanka Institute of Textile and Apparel¸ for the year ended 
on 31st December, 2018 including the Statement of Financial Positions as at 31st December, 
2018 and the Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of the Change of Ownership for the 
year ended on that date and the Cash Flow Statement and the Notes relating to the Financial 
Statements for the year ended on that date, with the summarized important Accounting Policies, 
were audited under my direction, as per the Provisions of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 
2018 and the Financial Act, No. 38 of 1971, read with Section 154 (1) of the Constitution of the 
Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka. My Report would be tabled in Parliament in due 
course, as per the Provisions of Section 154 (6) of the Constitution. 

Except for the effect from the matters described in the Base for the qualified  Opinion section of 
my Report, my opinion is that the Financial Position as at 31st December, 2018 and Financial 
Operations and Cash Flow for the year ended on that date of the Institute reflect a true and just 
position according to the Accounting Standards of the Public Sector of Sri Lanka. 

1.3 Basis for the qualified  Opinion 

(A) An excess of Rs.10,250,125/- has been accounted, for the amount receivable to the
“Banana Project” from the Ministry at the end of the year under review.

(B) An excess of Rs.460,008/- borne over the estimated cost for three programs
implemented under the provisions provided by the line Ministry during the year
under review, has been given as an amount that should be received from the
ministry for sundry debtors, without considering it as an expenditure of the year.

(C) Rs.3,108,500/- applied for installing a CCTV camera system, has been included in
the amount of Rs.5,442,000/- under the sundry debtors that should be received from
the Treasury, and therefore an excess of Rs.3,108,500/- has been shown in the
balance to be received in Statement of Financial Status.

(D) Even though the remaining value and the usable lifetime  of an asset should be
reviewed  at least on the expiry of every period of annual reporting, as per the Sri
Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard No. 7, and even though the Institution
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has used Machinery and equipment of a cost of Rs.204,839,496/- that has been 
totally depreciate, steps had not been taken to account real value of those, without 
reviewing the usable lifetime after revaluation those assets. 

I conducted the audit according to the Sri Lanka Audit Standards. My responsibility under these 
audit standards, have been further described in the section called ‘auditor’s responsibility 
regarding auditing of financial statements’ of this report. 

 I believe that the audit evidences I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate   to provide  a 
basis for my audit  opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Management and the governing parties regarding Financial 
Statements 

It is the responsibility of the Management to decide the internal control for preparing these 
Financial Statements according to the Auditing Standards of the Sri Lanka Public Sector and 
forwarding those in a just manner, and for enabling to prepare Financial Statements without 
quantitative errors that can be caused by frauds and mistakes. 

When preparing Financial Statements, it is a responsibility of the Management to decide the 
ability of continued existence of the Institution, and also it is the responsibility of the 
Management to keep the accounts and to disclose the matters regarding the continued existence 
of the Institution, except when the Management decides to liquidate the Institution or to 
discontinue the operations of the Institution, when there is no other alternative. 

The responsibility of Financial Reporting process of the Institution is borne by the governing 
parties. 

The Institution should maintain relevant books and reports on its revenue, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities to enable to prepare its annual and periodic Financial Statements as per Subsection 
16(1) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor regarding the auditing of Financial Statements 

My intention is to forward an equitable assurance that the Financial Statements, as a whole, are 
without quantitative errors that can be caused by frauds and mistakes and to issue the Auditor’s 
Report including my opinion. Even though the equitable assurance is an assurance of a higher 
level, it would not be an assurance that it would always disclose quantitative misstatements 
when performing an audit according to Sri Lanka Audit Standards. Quantitative misstatements 
can be made by the effects of frauds and mistakes singularly or collectively, and it is expected 
that it would affect the financial decisions taken by the users based on these Financial 
Statements. 

I conducted the audit with professional judgment and professional scepticism  according to the 
Sri Lanka Audit Standards. Further, 
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 When identifying and assessing risks of quantitative false statements that can be caused
in financial statements due to frauds and mistakes, the base for my opinion is to obtain
sufficient and relevant audit evidences, in order to avoid the risks caused by frauds and
mistakes by using relevant auditing procedures that suit the situation. The effect caused
by a fraud is more dangerous than that is caused by a quantitative statement, and the
causes for a fraud are unholy alliance,  preparing false statements, intentional avoidance
or the avoidance of internal control.

 Even though an understanding regarding the internal control of the Institution was
obtained for planning relevant audit procedures to suit the situation, it is not intended to
give an opinion regarding the success of the internal control.

 Justifiability of the auditing policies and accounting estimates, and the relevancy of
connected disclosures made by the Management is appreciated.

 Based on obtained audit evidences whether there is any quantitative uncertainty of
continued existence of the Institution due to happenings or causes, the relevancy of using
the continued existence of the Institution as a base for accounting was decided. If I
conclude that there is a quantitative uncertainty, I should focus my attention to the
disclosures in the financial statements regarding those, and if those disclosures are not
sufficient, my opinion should be modified. However, it is probable to end the continued
existence due to future happenings or causes.

 Presentation of Financial Statements consisting disclosures, its structure and the content
were appreciated and it is appreciated that the transactions and happenings based for that
are included in financial statements in a relevant and just manner.

Governing parties were made to understand the Important audit findings, main internal control 
weaknesses and other matters identified in my auditing.  

2. REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Special provisions regarding the following requirements are included in the National Audit Act, 
No. 19 of 2018 : 

 According to the requirements contained in Section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No.
19 of 2018, except for the effects described in  basis for the qualified  Opinion part of my
Report, I obtained all the required information and explanations for auditing and as seen
in my inquiry, the Institution has maintained relevant Financial Records.

 According to the requirements contained in Section 6 (1) (d) (iii) of the National Audit
Act, No. 19 of 2018, Financial Statements forwarded by the Institution are similar to the
last year.
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 According to the requirements contained in Section 6 (1) (d) (iv) of the National Audit 
Act, No. 19 of 2018, recommendations done by me in the last year have been included in 
the Financial Statements. 

Procedures followed and on the evidence obtained, and within the limits of quantitative matters, 
there was nothing for my attention to make following statements : 

 

 According to the requirements contained in Section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act, No. 
19 of 2018, there is a connection directly or otherwise out of the normal business 
position of any member of the Board of Management of the Institution regarding any 
agreement of the Institution. 

 According to the requirements contained in Section 12 (f) of the National Audit Act, No. 
19 of 2018, acted in non compliance to any of the relevant written law or any other 
common or special provisions issued by the Board of Management of the Institution, 
except for the following observation. 

Reference to laws/provision   Description 

Public Enterprise Circular No. 95  Even  though  the  approval   of  the   relevant   
Ministry,  
14th June 1994    General  Treasury  and the  other  relevant  
Institutions, 
      Rs.2,961,879/-  had  been  paid by  the  
Management as  

Weekend training school allowances, course 
coordination allowances, allowances  to  the 
Controlling  

      Secretary and allowances to the Accountant in the  
      year 2018. 
. 

 According to the requirements contained in Section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, No. 
19 of 2018, acted in non compliance to the powers, duties and business of the Institution, 
except for the following observation. 

The Management had invested the excess funds amounting to Rs.214,925,758/- 
in short 
Term deposits and an interest of Rs.17,980,982/- had been received. But, it is 
observed that, that funds had not been effectively utilized to fulfil the main 
objectives of the Institution. 
 

 According to the requirements contained in Section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act, No. 
19 of 2018, assets of the Institution has not been procured and utilized efficiently and 
effectively within the time limits and according to the relevant laws and rules of the 
Institution, except for the following observations. 
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(a) Engineering estimate for the proposed internal decorations of the canteen was        
Rs.6,000,000/- and an amount of Rs.6,411,515/- had been received from the Treasury 
in the month of December, 2017. Even though the work of this contract had to be 
completed within 60 days from 09th September, 2018 as per the agreement entered 
into between both parties. The contract had not been completed as yet. Rs. 
2,101,562/- had been paid for providing consultancy services and as advance 
payments. 
 

(b) Rs.10,000,000/-had been estimated for the renovation of the Conference Hall and an 
amount of Rs.9,695,000/- had been received by the Treasury on 30th October, 2018. 
That amount had remained as a balance at the end of the year under review, due to 
non implementation of the procurement Procedure properly. 

 
(c) Rs.3,260,000/- had been approved by the Ministry of Industry and Commerce in the 

year 2018 to arrange a Textile Library. Furniture and equipment worth of 
Rs.392,302/- had been purchased in the year 2018 for this library. But, as the 
construction work of the Textile Library had not been started, purchased items were 
stored idling without a use in the Weaving Workshop of the Institution. 

 
(d) As a portion of the old building should be demolished for constructing a new 

building consisting 4 stories, a building had been rented at a monthly rent of 
Rs.80,000/- for office work, from 01st June, 2017 for period of one year. The rented 
building was remained closed without utilizing due to not commencing the 
construction work and lodging had been provided for several days for some trainee 
students. Even though the period of contract of the rented building had been 
cancelled since 16th April, 2018, Rs.960,000/- as rentals and Rs.8,353/- for electricity 
had been paid. 

 
(e) According to Section 5.4.8 (a) of the Procurement Guidelines, a Procurement 

Security should be forwarded and as per the provisions of Section 5.4.8 (b) the 
Performance bond  should be in force for 28 days after date of the completion of the 
work. Bids have been called under the National Competitive Bid Calling Procedure 
on 14th October, 2017 for the internal decoration purposes of the canteen of the 
Institution and the bid had been awarded for Rs.8,024,885/- on 28th November, 2017. 
The period of validity of the Performance Security of Rs.802,488/- that had been 
obtained had been lapsed on 07th March, 2018. The period of validity of the 
Performance Security had been extended again only from 23rd July to 31st December, 
2018. Even though 01 year and 03 months had been ended after the period of 
Advance Payment Security too had been lapsed, no steps had been taken to renew it 
and the Report of the Engineer regarding the work completed under the contract, had 
not been provided. 
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3.   OTHER AUDITING OBSERVATIONS 

(a) Cabinet approval had been given on 11th November, 2015 to construct a new 4 storied    
building for the purpose of providing basic facilities to conduct courses relevant to 
textile and apparel field and for post graduate and degree courses and the plan had 
been altered to construct a 6 storied building and the Cabinet approval had been 
obtained for it on 19th December, 2017. Buildings Department had estimated 
Rs.505,910,000/- as the cost for the new building. The Treasury had provided Rs. 23 
million, Rs. 18 million in the year 2015 and Rs. 5 million in the year 2017, for the 
construction of the new building. Rs. 3.6 million had been spent out of that amount 
by the end of the year under review, Procurement activities for the construction had 
not been completed as at 31st May, 2019 and the construction work too had not been 
commenced. 

(b) Out of the amounts provided by the line Ministry for the previous years of the year 
under review for the implementation of programs, the amounts granted  at the 
beginning of the year under review were Rs.420,537/-, Rs.236,867/-, Rs.2,243,450/-, 
Rs.1,406,663/- and Rs.1,047,344/- respectively for Wet Processing Program, 
Scholarship Fund, construction of the Maradamune Thread Colouring Training 
Centre, Health Protection Program and Sewing Machine Repair Training Program 
had not been utilized for any purpose. 

(c)  Even though 208 Training Course had been planned to be conducted as per the 
Action Plan of the year 2018, only 47 course had been conducted according to the 
monthly training program plan. 

(d)  Rs.4,127,737/- out of the commercial debit balance of Rs.6,780,996/- shown in the 
financial statements as at the end of the year under review, are debit balances for 
over 3 years. 

(e)  Approved cadre of the Sri Lanka Institute of Textile and apparel as at the end of the 
year under review was 140, but the real number of the staff was 93 and 47 vacancies 
existed. When compared with the previous year, the number of vacancies had been 
increased by 05 and no action had been taken to fill these vacancies even at the end 
of the year under review. 

               

Auditor General 

 
 

 








